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As a world class manager of credit risk, we help our clients achieve their financial goals by
providing Triple-A access to global capital markets and superior asset management services.
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MBIA is a leading financial guarantor and provider of fixed-income asset management services, listed on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol MBI. The Company’s core business is credit enhancement of municipal bonds and asset- and mortgage-backed transactions in the new issue and secondary markets. MBIA’s Triple-A
pledge on transactions around the globe guarantees timely payment of principal and interest for investors and
lowers the cost of capital for the issuing entity. The Company has approximately 620 employees located in
11 offices around the world.

MBIA’s financial strength, underwriting performance and record of service are reflected in the Triple-A rating of
MBIA’s claims-paying resources by Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings,
and Rating and Investment Information, Inc. For more information, visit our Web site: www.mbia.com.
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Financial Highlights

Percent Change

Net income
Gross premiums written
Gross revenues from continuing operations
Total assets
Shareholders’ equity
Per share data:
Net income
Basic
Diluted
Diluted operating earnings
Book value
Adjusted book value
Operating return on average
shareholders’ equity
Total claims-paying resources

2005
$ 711
985
2,301
34,561
6,592

2004
$ 843
1,117
2,054
33,036
6,559

2003
$ 825
1,269
1,886
30,301
6,150

$ 5.30
5.18
5.57
49.17
70.62

$ 5.94
5.82
5.35
47.05
66.34

$ 5.75
5.69
4.89
42.75
59.84

(11)%
(11)%
4%
5%
6%

3%
2%
9%
10%
11%

12.5%
$13,416

13.5%
$12,918

13.7%
$12,744

4%

1%

Revenues from
Continuing Operations

Book Value and Adjusted Book
Value Per Share

(dollars in millions)

(dollars)

Per Share Earnings
(dollars)
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted operating earnings per share(a)

Book value per share
Adjusted book value per share(a)

5.18

05

5.35

4.89

04

5.82

5.69

03

4.26

3.96

02

3.78

3.81

70.62

49.17

05

66.34

31.37

04

47.05

2,301

03

42.75

2,054

02

59.84

01

37.10

05

51.76

04

44.75

03

1,886

01

02

1,457

(a) Excludes the net income effects
of net gains or losses, net gains or
losses on derivative instruments
and foreign exchange, and other
non-operating items.

1,425

(a) Includes after-tax effects of deferred
premium revenue less prepaid reinsurance
premiums and deferred acquisition costs,
the present value of installment premiums,
the present value of the net spread of
asset/liability products, and a provision for
loss and loss adjustment expenses.

01

2004 vs.
2003
2%
(12)%
9%
9%
7%

5.57

In millions except per share amounts

2005 vs.
2004
(16)%
(12)%
12%
5%
1%
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“Our Company is built on the solid foundation of a long-term perspective and an attractive business model.

Market cycles may ebb and flow, but the enduring value of our credit risk management franchise is centered on

creating value from a broad range of products, services and geographies.”
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To Our Owners:

The durability of our business and the strength of our franchise, reputation and people were well demonstrated
during 2005. Notwithstanding many significant challenges, we adhered to our core values and produced satisfactory
financial results. Some of these challenges were new to us, such as the regulatory investigations, while other challenges we have weathered before, such as less-than-ideal market conditions.
As I will outline in this letter, despite these challenges, the markets continued to recognize the stability and resilience
of our franchise as our Triple-A ratings were reaffirmed with a stable outlook by the major rating agencies, and
investor demand for bonds insured by MBIA was, and continues to be, among the strongest in the industry. As our
long-term shareowners understand well, success in this business is measured over years, not months. We continue
to believe that the secular trends in the global capital markets are conducive for long-term, profitable growth.
The difficult market conditions I described in last year’s letter remained almost the same throughout 2005, and will
likely continue through 2006. Intense competition from the uninsured market, from the traditional as well as the new
monolines, and from select European banks, continues unabated, resulting in ongoing pricing and underwriting pressure in most of the markets and sectors in which we operate. Overall demand for our product was muted in certain
markets as very liquid investors reached for yield in what continues to be, for them, a very favorable and benign
global credit environment. Corporate default rates persisted below historical averages at around 2%, which shored
up investor confidence and fueled demand for uninsured bonds.
As a result of these market dynamics, credit spreads between Triple-A and Triple-B corporates were virtually
unchanged. We believe that the perception of risk is very much understated relative to the level of real risk in today’s
market. As a result, many investors are underestimating and underpricing the risks they take. Under these conditions,
we believe it is exactly the wrong time to be overly aggressive in our financial guarantee business. It would be the
equivalent of “buying high.”
Historically we have had our best years when the perception of risk exceeds the real risk, quite the opposite of
today’s market. But we do not believe the characteristics of today’s market reflect a new and permanent economic
paradigm. Though we don’t know when, we believe that the economic pendulum will inevitably swing back to a position that’s more favorable for our industry. No economic cycle lasts forever. As with most things in nature, there is a
tendency to revert to the mean.
Gary C. Dunton

We know one thing for certain, though, and that is how to respond successfully to difficult market conditions. For
example, we will aggressively pursue only those business opportunities that meet MBIA’s underwriting and pricing
criteria. Our Triple-A is our franchise, and conservative underwriting is key to maintaining our ratings. And we will not
significantly cut pricing or book deals with sub-par returns just to book new business. Simply put, our product delivers
value that deserves an appropriate return.
Just this year, the value of our guarantee was once again proved to investors following the widespread municipal
devastation caused by Hurricane Katrina in August. Through March 1, 2006, we have made payments of $2 million in
principal and interest as it came due to holders of MBIA-insured bonds in FEMA-designated counties in Louisiana
and Mississippi. To date, we have been reimbursed the full $2 million and have not established any case loss reserves
for MBIA-insured transactions in the affected region. However, it is still early in the cleanup process, and we
continue to monitor the situation closely. Notwithstanding this uncertainty, we and the industry currently believe that
losses, if any, will be modest.
Working through the year’s uncertain markets and the regulatory investigations, we couldn’t help but be reminded of
several valuable lessons. These include the importance of effective and frequent communication with our stakeholders, the benefits of maintaining a very transparent business model and financial reporting standards, and the wisdom
of operating with “best in class” corporate governance practices.

Letter to Shareholders
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In fact, in recognition of our commitment to and past demonstration of best practices in corporate governance, Institutional Shareholder Services, the world’s leading provider of proxy voting and corporate governance services, ranked
MBIA first among all S&P 500 companies for excellent governance in 2005.
Under all conditions and in any situation, we will remain faithful to our four foundation principles of maintaining the
strongest team, underwriting to a no-loss standard, protecting our Triple-A ratings and, of course, generating longterm shareholder wealth.
Selected Accomplishments
Against the headwind of the challenges I’ve described, we produced satisfactory financial results in 2005 with operating earnings per share growing 4% to $5.57 and insurance business pre-tax operating income once again topping
the $1 billion mark. Our core franchise continues to prove its durability in this difficult business environment. Total net
income declined 16% to $711 million, due to an $8 million 2005 net realized loss compared with a $104 million net
realized gain in 2004 as well as a $75 million accrual taken during the third quarter of 2005 for estimated penalties
and disgorgement related to potential settlements of regulatory investigations.
Gross insurance expenses, before the effects of expense deferrals or the offset from ceding commissions received,
increased by 3%. We continue to manage staff resources and other variable components of our expense structure
effectively so that we can maintain solid profit margins.
Although income statement success was modest in 2005, our balance sheet is as strong as ever. At year-end, total
claims-paying resources stood at $13.4 billion, a record level for the Company and the industry. And, also at year-end,
81% of our outstanding book of business was rated Single-A or better.
Recognizing that we had a more limited number of new business opportunities to generate shareholder value,
we took advantage of weaker MBIA stock prices to repurchase shares in 2005 and thereby return capital to our
shareholders. We repurchased a total of 5.9 million shares at an average price of $57.77, well below adjusted book
value per share (which increased 6% during the year to $70.62). While we suspended our share repurchases after the
second quarter, this capital management strategy helped, in part, to achieve an operating return on equity of 12.5%.
We remain a net generator of capital, and do not expect this to change until market forces create a more favorable
environment where excess capital can be put to work on transactions that meet both our credit standards and our
return on capital hurdle rates. Until we can redeploy our excess capital at acceptable returns, and once any regulatory
settlements are final, we will continue to look for opportunities to buy back stock in a manner consistent with our
own and rating agency capital requirements.
Finally, among the year’s most impressive successes were the results achieved by MBIA Asset Management. Pre-tax
operating income in this segment was up 41% over 2004 levels, contributing 8% of the Company’s total pre-tax
operating income. Steady growth in asset/liability products and advisory services fueled the momentum.
Selected Disappointments
The relative scarcity of large, attractive insurance transactions that met our profitability goals and credit standards in
2005 was a disappointment. Adjusted Direct Premium (ADP) production was down 4% over the prior year, but even
more disappointing were pricing results. Average industry pricing (regrettably, including our own) in the U.S. public
finance market fell back to 2001 levels as the industry lost much of the ground it had gained from 1999 through 2003
when premium rates increased each year.
Pricing in the U.S. structured finance market also declined, although it is harder to measure over time due to the
changing mix of business in the industry. What is clear in both the public finance and structured finance business segments is that industry profitability results continued a downward trend. Standard & Poor’s profitability reports for the
first half of 2005 indicate 14% and 6% declines in the U.S. public and structured finance markets, respectively.
The nearly $189 million in net case loss additions during the year were also a source of disappointment for MBIA.
Insured Enhanced Equipment Trust Certificates secured by aircraft financed by Northwest Airlines, late 1990’s
vintage high-yield CDOs, tax liens, and mortgage-backed and manufactured housing deals represented the bulk of
this activity.
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The regulatory investigations challenged our Company in a way that we had never experienced before, but I am
happy to say that we have emerged a more transparent and organizationally sound franchise. This result has not
come without costs, however, which can be measured both in direct and indirect terms. From an economic perspective, the accrual and incremental legal and consulting fees were significant expenses in 2005. Harder to quantify,
but also costly, was the enormous amount of time the investigations required of the Company’s Board of Directors,
employees and management team. The disruption was balanced by your continuing support and encouragement, for
which I am tremendously grateful.

Credit Quality Distribution
Net Par Outstanding
A:
B:
C:
D:
E:

AAA
AA
A
BBB
<BBB

19%
27%
35%
17%
2%

Results by Business Unit
Through it all, we continued to adhere to our underwriting discipline, passing on several large transactions that we
considered to be structured inadequately or insufficiently priced. In Global Public Finance, we saw a 19% decrease
in total year-end ADP, primarily due to weakness in the international public finance market. Year over year, there was
a 65% decrease in non-U.S. public finance production, due mainly to a scarcity of insurance demand for European
Private Finance Initiative and infrastructure deals, which was fostered by competition from European banks. But we
saw robust activity in Latin America and Australia and a 7% growth in our U.S. public finance business. Deal flow in
this market remained strong, and we closed some particularly noteworthy transactions this year in the transportation
and military housing sectors.

E
A

D

B

C

For example, MBIA insured $1.35 billion of a $1.6 billion bond issue for Army Hawaii Family Housing, which will fund
the renovation or construction of almost 7,900 homes for military families stationed on the island of Oahu. The transaction, which is the largest military housing privatization ever awarded by the U.S. Army, is a good example of the opportunities available in Public-Private Partnerships, and was named “Deal of the Year” by Project Finance magazine.
Including Army Hawaii, MBIA has insured over $4 billion in the military housing sector at bases in California, North
Carolina, South Carolina, Maryland, Texas, Virginia, Missouri and New York.
There was robust growth in Global Structured Finance, with ADP up 22% in 2005. Growth was broad-based, including

Growth in Ending Assets
Under Management

the Operating Assets, Future Flow, CDO and Consumer Asset-Backed business lines.

($ billions)

01

02

03

04

05

One especially important asset-backed transaction we insured was Hertz Vehicle Financing, where we guaranteed
$2.15 billion in notes backed by rental car fleet leases. The transaction was notable for its scale and because it
helped promote the acceptance of securitization as a way to facilitate the buyout of a stable rental fleet business.
The transaction was named “U.S. ABS Deal of the Year” by Asset Securitization Report magazine.
MBIA’s Asset Management business had a superb year. Not including conduits, ending assets under management
increased 13% to over $44 billion. Pre-tax operating income increased an impressive 41% to $87 million, driven by
strong growth in revenues and a modest decline in expenses. Operating margin improved to 54% and results were
accretive to MBIA’s total return on equity. This business provides a diversified income source in the high quality fixedincome asset management space, successfully leveraging our core competency of credit risk management.

$44

$39

$34

$30

$29

MBIA’s small MuniServices business generated a modest pre-tax operating profit of $2.1 million in 2005. We will
continue to explore opportunities to sell this business.
Organizational Strength
One area in which we consistently achieve high marks is on our investment in human capital. In a challenging year
like 2005, I was most pleased to have a hard working, dedicated and loyal team alongside me. They are the real
muscle behind the strength of our franchise. That is why we invest heavily in training programs designed to develop
and challenge our people, and in technology to facilitate their productivity.
For example, in 2005, MBIA’s corporate training program provided over 1,400 days of tailored sessions focused
on building leadership capacity and core skills, including an ethics and integrity program for all participants.
To date, over 75% of employees have completed this training. Skills training now includes a focus on fraud
detection techniques.

Letter to Shareholders
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We also continue to assess our organizational structure for optimum efficiency and discipline. For example, in 2005,
we reengineered our Insured Portfolio Management Division to produce more proactive surveillance, remediation and
restructuring. A dedicated Special Situations Group was created, composed of specialists with substantial workout
experience in a wide variety of situations and financial structures. This team now leads our remediation work, reducing reliance on outside consultants and improving the avoidance and mitigation of losses.
We also strengthened our Board and our leadership team. We were delighted to welcome Jeff Yabuki to our Board
in August. As president and chief executive officer of Fiserv, Inc., a global provider of information management
solutions to the financial services industry, Jeff brings invaluable financial expertise and perspective to our team.
We added two new positions to the Executive Policy Committee. In July, Bill Fallon joined us from McKinsey &
Company to oversee corporate strategy. Bill brings a broad perspective to our business and will help us manage
continued growth of our global platform. In December, Willard Hill, formerly our head of equity investor relations,
was named chief compliance officer. As a corporate and securities lawyer with over 25 years of both legal and
business experience, Willard will oversee regulatory compliance, corporate governance and business practices
within the organization.
Throughout 2005, integrity and conviction were evident at every level of the Company with every challenge we
faced. From the Board Room on down, our organization is populated with highly ethical and dedicated people for
whom MBIA’s long-term success is a personal goal.
The Opportunities Ahead
Our Company is built on the solid foundation of a long-term perspective and an attractive business model. Market
cycles may ebb and flow, but the enduring value of our credit risk management franchise is centered on creating
value from a broad range of products, services and geographies. Our scale and our financial structure permit us the
freedom to pursue opportunities that meet our underwriting and pricing standards without the undue pressure to
book business we cannot live with in the years to come. Markets are best judged by the years that follow them.
While slow markets test the patient and the disciplined, they are most harsh on those focused on the short-term,
often punishing them with a legacy of ill-deployed capital and losses.
We remain optimistic about our credit risk management franchise and the embedded global trends that favor us:
globalization, bank disintermediation and financial deregulation, privatization and pension reform, as well as opportunities for furthering insured penetration, particularly in the structured finance and international markets. There can
be no doubt that the globalization and growth of the debt capital markets will be the cornerstone of our future growth
and success. We are both a facilitator and a beneficiary of the development of these markets around the world.
Demand for insurance in the U.S. municipal bond market shows no sign of abating and will remain strong as baby
boomers expand the ranks of retirees, increasing demand for Triple-A-rated insured bonds.
Bank disintermediation in Europe and elsewhere is mirroring the U.S. experience. A recent McKinsey survey indicates
that this process is inevitable due to the inherent efficiency, transparency and liquidity of capital markets. Regulatory
and capital relief needs, in anticipation of BASEL II, present MBIA with further opportunities in the form of banks
needing to realign their balance sheets for optimal capital productivity. This trend is well-entrenched in Europe with
many banks using the capital markets to increase capital efficiency. Because they don’t need liquidity, synthetic
executions proliferate.
The privatization of key infrastructure assets, such as roads, water utilities, power plants and airports continues to be
a powerful trend in the market. Private sector financing methods and structures are simply more efficient than government balance sheet funding, and MBIA’s experience in analyzing and providing guarantees against these assets is
unrivaled. We believe there are also growth opportunities in the privatization of major public projects, as the Private
Finance Initiatives/Public-Private Partnership technology so familiar in the U.K. moves across geographic borders in
Europe and begins to penetrate U.S. infrastructure financing.
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Adjusted Direct Premium Sources
A: U.S. Municipal Finance
B: U.S. Structured Finance
C: International Municipal
Finance
D: International Structured
Finance

45%
28%
8%
19%

Total: $1.1 billion

In keeping with these global trends which favor established financial guarantors, our growth will increasingly come
from international markets in both the public and structured finance areas. This does not mean that such growth
from international sources will be predictable or smooth. Public finance volumes abroad will continue to be uneven
as the regulatory and legal frameworks underpinning public finance issuance in capital markets continue to mature.
Structured finance, by its nature, will likely see more consistent growth due to greater flexibility in the application
of securitization technology, particularly in solving complex or cross-border funding arrangements. Opportunities in
Europe have been slower to develop than anticipated because capital market issuance levels are still dominated by
uninsured senior/sub structures for residential mortgage-backed securitizations, commercial mortgage-backed securities and consumer credit issuers.

D
C

Global pension reform presents the market with significant potential issuance needs, driven by huge unfunded
liabilities in Italy, France, Germany and in the U.S. public sector in particular. Populations across Europe and the U.S.
continue to “gray,” mandating that their pension obligations are adequately funded. Many pension sponsors will
prefer a risk-managed, fixed-income solution, as these investors are not always used to taking risks like cross-border
or commercial risks in different geographic jurisdictions. Triple-A-rated insured bonds address their need for secure
and reliable capital markets solutions.

A

B

Domestic public finance growth is expected to be modest but consistent. The relatively low interest rate environment
and the continuing funding needs of governments to renew their infrastructure will drive issuance. For example, the
American Society of Civil Engineers estimates that in the U.S., $1.6 trillion in spending will be necessary over the
next five years to expand aging roads, rail lines and other infrastructure.
Claims-Paying Resources
($ billions)

01

02

03

04

Our product offerings in domestic structured finance point to strong growth with plenty of room for innovation. The
market will continue to favor our strategy of focusing on larger, more complex transactions, which attract fewer
competitors and feature wider spreads, allowing us to achieve our structuring and pricing goals.

05

$13.4

$12.9

$12.7

$11.1

$10.1

So, the bottom line? For now, as current market conditions are likely to persist, we do not expect that we will achieve
our historical average growth rates in 2006. But as I have pointed out before, our focus is on strict adherence to
no-loss underwriting and acceptable returns and not on short-term growth. At the same time, by only underwriting
transactions that generate robust premium earnings over a long term, we create relative stability in our earnings
growth and book value. We expect to achieve attractive growth in our business over time, but we are prepared for
results to vary in any individual year – or even several years.
Having said that, we continue to be optimistic about the future and the opportunities that lie ahead. MBIA’s employees allow us to make the most of these opportunities - they are without a doubt the most resilient, experienced and
hard-working team anyone could have the good fortune of leading. With their support, and the support of our strong
Board of Directors, I have every confidence in the great things ahead for our Company.

Gary C. Dunton
Chief Executive Officer and President, MBIA Inc.
March 17, 2006

Letter to Shareholders

00195_MBIA_Editorials.indd 9

7

3/21/06 11:30:23 AM

“MBIA’s goals are to manage its business with the highest ethical standards, to provide accessible and

transparent information about the business, and to adhere to best practices in corporate governance.”
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Letter from the Lead Director

Dear Shareholders:
I thought it important to report briefly to you on the Board’s actions in relation to the regulatory investigations
during the past year and to communicate your Board’s view about MBIA, its management and its employees.
MBIA’s goals are to manage its business with the highest ethical standards, to provide accessible and transparent
information about the business, and to adhere to best practices in corporate governance. Not only have those
goals not changed, they have provided clear guidance to management and the Board as we navigated through the
events of 2005.
Early in the fourth quarter of 2004, your Board, through its Audit Committee, hired outside counsel to investigate
certain transactions related to a 1998 default by AHERF (the Allegheny Health, Education and Research Foundation,
a hospital network whose bonds were insured by MBIA). This investigation by outside counsel subsequently
expanded to encompass all of the matters covered by the regulatory information requests that the Company received.
In addition, the independent directors hired another firm as separate counsel to evaluate and advise them independently on the regulatory investigations. The Audit Committee and other Board members participated in almost
weekly meetings in 2005 as part of their careful oversight of these investigations.

David C. Clapp

In May 2005, the independent directors hired Promontory Financial Group LLC, a nationally recognized regulatory
and financial consulting firm, to analyze and make recommendations to further improve MBIA’s risk management
infrastructure, compliance organization and monitoring systems, internal audit functions, governance and other
controls. Its comprehensive review of MBIA’s business practices and processes included interviews with many
employees at all levels. Promontory made recommendations for further improvements in certain areas, and the Board
and management are committed to implementing these recommendations and to continue strengthening the
Company and its practices. There is always room to improve, but the Company’s foundation is extremely strong and
the motivation of its employees remains high.
The Board is proud of MBIA’s employees and extends its thanks for their commitment to the Company and their
continued adherence to the Company’s high standards. As we look to 2006 and beyond, the entire Board has every
confidence in MBIA’s senior management team, its employees, and its strategies. Ours is a great Company that is
solidly positioned to achieve its goals, and, with your continued support, it will.

David C. Clapp
Lead Director
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Punch Taverns

MBIA’s guarantee gave Punch the flexibility both to consolidate its portfolio and to refinance its floating-rate notes.

Katrina

With our unconditional and irrevocable guarantee on
financings in the Gulf Coast region, investors can count
on receiving timely payment of principal and interest
when due.
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Adding Value, Securing the Future

At MBIA, success is about more than generating profits. It’s about skillfully balancing risk and return while steadily building value
for our shareholders. Our commitment to risk management is etched in every transaction we underwrite and is consistent with our
Triple-A ratings. Our results prove our success: In 33 years of doing business, we have insured more than 90,000 issues totaling
nearly $2 trillion in net debt service while incurring gross losses of only .04% of our insured debt service. This was
accomplished through MBIA employees’ discipline, commitment, intelligence and experience – qualities that represent the unique
value proposition that MBIA offers to our clients worldwide and which are illustrated in the following examples from 2005.

Innovative Structured Finance Solutions
Punch Taverns – MBIA guaranteed $875 million of senior secured debt for Punch Taverns Finance B Limited. Punch
is the largest pub operator in the United Kingdom with an estate of over 9,600 pubs. MBIA’s involvement facilitated
issuance of long-dated paper, use of a non-sequential amortization structure and inclusion of an interest-only period.
The resulting structure was well-received by investors, and the financing commanded tight spreads. The transaction
was the first completed by our new subsidiary, MBIA UK Insurance Limited.
This “whole business securitization” gave Punch the flexibility both to consolidate its portfolio and to refinance its
floating-rate notes to benefit from attractive market spreads. Since this complex and promising area of securitization
first emerged, MBIA has been a leader and innovator across a variety of sectors, from pubs to water and trucking.
Proving the Value of Financial Guarantees
Hurricane Katrina – After hurricanes Katrina and Rita slammed into the Gulf Coast late in August 2005, the immediate outpouring of support and compassion gave victims of the disaster a reason to hope. MBIA and other members
of the financial guarantee industry are working closely with the region’s state and local officials to ensure that their
hope doesn’t fade.
Few events in history have provided stronger evidence of the value of our Triple-A-rated insurance. With our
unconditional and irrevocable guarantee on financings in the Gulf Coast region, investors can count on receiving
timely payment of principal and interest when due, and issuers have uninterrupted access to the capital markets.
To date, we have paid out approximately $2 million in claims, for which we have been fully reimbursed. We
continue to work closely with government officials, affected issuers, financial advisors and legal counsel to
monitor the situation.
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Military Housing

Funds guaranteed by MBIA will be used to construct,
demolish or renovate almost 7,900 housing units for U.S.
Army personnel located on the island of Oahu, Hawaii.

Asset Management

Today, MBIA Asset Management is one of the nation’s
largest asset managers, with over $50 billion in assets
under management.
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Landmark Public Finance Executions
Army Hawaii Family Housing – Promising opportunities exist in the Public-Private Partnership category, where the
skills and assets of public sector entities and private companies combine to share in the risks and rewards inherent
in the completion of a project that serves the public interest.
MBIA’s guarantee of $1.35 billion for Army Hawaii Family Housing this past year demonstrates the benefits of such
partnerships. Funds will be used to construct, demolish or renovate almost 7,900 housing units for U.S. Army personnel located on the island of Oahu, Hawaii. The master plan also includes the creation of new community centers with
swimming pools, water parks and playgrounds.
MBIA’s participation in the innovative structuring led to the issuance of a series of classes and sub-classes of bonds,
including fixed-rate, LIBOR floating-rate and auction-rate bonds, which attracted a lot of attention in the marketplace.
As a result, the bonds sold quickly and were oversubscribed, reflecting investor acceptance.
Building on Our Core Competency
Asset Management – Our best success occurs when we build upon our core competencies and capitalize on our
competitive advantages, as we have done in our asset management business. Using the same credit risk management competencies, risk philosophy and discipline, our asset management business has grown solidly in the past
several years and provides MBIA with additional market opportunities in stable, high quality fixed-income products.
The business is reported in three segments: asset/liability products (where we earn a net spread between investments and match-funded guaranteed investment contracts and medium-term notes), advisory services (where we
manage client monies for a fee), and conduits (where we help finance our insurance clients). In each of the three
areas, we focus on high quality assets, just as we do in our insurance business, because of their stability and favorable risk-adjusted return profile. Our results have been solid; we have generated consistent profits and returns on
capital that enhance MBIA’s overall results.
Today, MBIA Asset Management is one of the nation’s largest asset managers, with over $50 billion in assets under
management. The group’s public- and private-sector clients range from municipalities and local school districts to
insurance companies, pension funds and asset-backed product originators.
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Left to right, row one: Jay Brown and David Clapp;
row two: C. Edward Chaplin, Gary Dunton,
Claire Gaudiani and Dan Kearney; row three:
Laurence Meyer and Debra Perry; row four: John Rolls
and Jeff Yabuki
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Board of Directors

Joseph W. Brown (57) Mr. Brown has been executive chairman of the Company since May 2004. He joined MBIA as chief
executive officer in January 1999 and became chairman in May 1999. Mr. Brown has served as a director of MBIA since 1990
and previously served as a director from December of 1986 through May of 1989. Mr. Brown also serves as the non-executive
chairman of the Board of Safeco Corporation.
C. Edward Chaplin (49) Mr. Chaplin is senior vice president and treasurer of Prudential Financial Inc., responsible for
Prudential’s capital and liquidity management, corporate finance, and banking and cash management. Mr. Chaplin joined the
MBIA Board at the end of 2002.
David C. Clapp (68) Mr. Clapp was a partner at Goldman, Sachs & Co. from 1972 to 1994. From 1990 until late 1994, he was
partner-in-charge of the Municipal Bond Department at Goldman, Sachs & Co. Mr. Clapp is the lead director and has served on
the MBIA Board since 1994.
Gary C. Dunton (50) Mr. Dunton, who joined MBIA in early 1998, is president and chief executive officer of the Company, a
position to which he was named in May 2004. He was named president in 1999 and chief operating officer in 2000. Mr. Dunton
served as a director of MBIA from 1996 until early 1998, rejoining the Board in 1999.
Claire L. Gaudiani (61) Dr. Gaudiani has been a professor at New York University since 2004. Prior to that, she was a senior
research scholar at Yale Law School and president of Connecticut College from 1998 to 2001. She serves as a Board member of
the New London Development Corporation, The Bank of Southern Connecticut and the Henry Luce Foundation Inc. She has been
a director of MBIA since 1992.
Daniel P. Kearney (66) Mr. Kearney, currently a financial consultant, retired as executive vice president of Aetna Inc. in February 1998. He serves as a director of Fiserv, Inc., MGIC Investors Corporation and the Joyce Foundation. Mr. Kearney has served
on MBIA’s Board since 1992.
Laurence H. Meyer (62) Dr. Meyer is currently vice chairman of Macroeconomic Advisers, which he joined in 2002. He is also
a distinguished scholar at the Center for Strategic and International Studies and a Board member for the National Bureau of
Economic Research. He also serves as a senior adviser to the G-7 Group and is a fellow of the National Association of Business
Economists. Dr. Meyer joined MBIA’s Board in 2004.
Debra J. Perry (54) Ms. Perry was formerly a senior managing director at Moody’s Corporation where she worked from 1992 to
2004. Ms. Perry is a member of the Board of Directors of Conseco, Inc. and has been a director of MBIA since 2004.
John A. Rolls (64) Mr. Rolls has been president and chief executive officer of Thermion Systems International since 1996. He is
a director of Bowater, Inc., Fuel Cell Energy, Inc. and Thermion. Mr. Rolls joined MBIA’s Board in 1995.
Jeffery Yabuki (45) Mr. Yabuki is president and chief executive officer of Fiserv, Inc. Previously, Mr. Yabuki was the executive
vice president and chief operating officer at H&R Block, Inc. Mr. Yabuki also serves as a director of PETsMART, Inc. and Fiserv,
Inc. Mr. Yabuki was elected to the MBIA Board in August 2005.
Board Committees
Each Board committee has a charter, which can be found on the Company’s Web site at www.mbia.com, along with MBIA’s
Corporate Governance Practices and Standard of Conduct. This information is also available in print upon request. Below are
the current members of each MBIA Board committee.
Audit Committee: Messrs. Chaplin, Clapp, Ms. Perry, Mr. Rolls (Chair) and Mr. Yabuki
Compensation and Organization Committee: Mr. Clapp (Chair), Dr. Gaudiani and Messrs. Kearney and Rolls
Executive Committee: Messrs. Brown (Chair), Clapp, Dunton and Kearney
Finance Committee: Messrs. Brown, Chaplin (Chair), Clapp, Dr. Meyer and Mr. Rolls
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee: Mr. Chaplin, Dr. Gaudiani (Chair), Mr. Kearney and Ms. Perry
Risk Oversight Committee: Messrs. Brown, Clapp, Kearney (Chair), Dr. Meyer, Ms. Perry and Mr. Yabuki
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Left to right, row one: Jay Brown and Gary Dunton;
row two: Neil Budnick, Cliff Corso, Bill Fallon, Nick Ferreri
and Willard Hill; row three: Tom McLoughlin, Andrea Randolph
and Kevin Silva; row four: Mitch Sonkin, Chris Weeks and
Ruth Whaley; row five: Ram Wertheim and Mark Zucker
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Locations

MBIA Corporate, Regional,
International and Subsidiary
Offices

Corporate Headquarters
MBIA Inc.
113 King Street
Armonk, New York 10504
+1-914-273-4545
www.mbia.com
Global Financial Guarantee
Offices:

MBIA Insurance Corporation
113 King Street
Armonk, NY 10504
+1-914-273-4545
MBIA UK Insurance Limited
1 Great St. Helen’s
London, EC3A 6HX
England
+44-20-7920-6363

MBIA Sucursal España
Serrano, 20-2º Dcha
28001 Madrid
Spain
+34-91-435-1043
MBIA Assurance, S.A.
Italian Representative Office
Via Monte di Pietá 21
20121 Milan
Italy
+39-02-86-337-627
MBIA Insurance Corporation
650 Fifth Avenue, 7th Floor
New York, NY 10019
+1-212-713-6400
MBIA Assurance, S.A.
112, avenue Kléber
75116 Paris
France
+33-1-53-70-4343

MBIA International
Marketing Services Pty. Ltd.
Level 29
The Chifley Tower
2 Chifley Square
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
+61-2-9375-2117
MBIA Insurance Corporation
Shiroyama JT Trust Tower
16th Floor
4-3-1 Toranomon, Minato-ku
Tokyo 105-6016
Japan
+81-3-5403-4774

Asset Management and
Financial Services Offices:

MBIA Asset Management
113 King Street
Armonk, NY 10504
+1-914-273-4545
MBIA Asset Management
1700 Broadway, Suite 2050
Denver, CO 80290
+1-303-860-1100
MBIA Asset Management
1 Great St. Helen’s
London, EC3A 6HX
England
+44-20-7920-6363
MBIA MuniServices
7335 North Palm Bluffs Avenue
Fresno, CA 93711
+1-800-800-8181

MBIA Insurance Corporation
150 California Street, 20th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94111
+1-415-352-3050
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Selected Financial and Statistical Data

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

Dollars in millions except per share amounts

GAAP SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT DATA:
Insurance:
Gross premiums written
Premiums earned
Net investment income
Total insurance expenses
Insurance income
Investment management services income
Corporate loss
Income from continuing operations before
income taxes
Net income
Basic EPS:
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations
Net income
GAAP SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Fixed-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments
Short-term investments
Other investments
Total assets
Deferred premium revenue
Loss and LAE reserves
Investment agreements
Commercial paper
Medium-term notes
Long-term debt
Shareholders’ equity
Book value per share
Dividends declared per common share
FINANCIAL RATIOS:
Loss and LAE ratio
Underwriting expense ratio
Combined ratio
NET DEBT SERVICE OUTSTANDING (1)
NET PAR AMOUNT OUTSTANDING (1)
(1) Net

20

2005

$

985
843
492
294
1,056
131
(173)

2004

$

1,117
850
474
273
1,208
48
(84)

2003

$

1,269
773
438
256
1,166
55
(59)

2002

$

952
618
433
217
818
34
(64)

2001

$

865
547
413
203
795
38
(63)

1,016
711

1,173
843

1,163
825

789
585

765
570

5.31
5.30

5.92
5.94

5.74
5.75

3.99
3.99

3.82
3.84

5.19
5.18

5.80
5.82

5.68
5.69

3.96
3.96

3.80
3.81

$ 24,476
5,765
1,678
235
34,561
3,185
722
10,806
860
7,542
1,210
6,592
49.17
1.120

$ 20,411
7,540
2,405
262
33,036
3,211
749
8,679
2,599
6,944
1,333
6,559
47.05
0.960

$ 17,090
8,891
1,913
357
30,301
3,080
712
6,959
2,640
7,092
1,022
6,150
42.75
0.800

$ 15,154
—
1,728
213
18,796
2,755
638
6,388
—
842
1,033
5,369
37.10
0.680

$ 13,674
—
707
135
16,172
2,565
595
6,055
—
—
805
4,653
31.37
0.600

10.0%
24.9
34.9
$889,019
$585,003

of reinsurance and other reimbursement arrangements not accounted for as reinsurance.

10.0%
22.2
32.2
$890,222
$585,575

10.0%
23.2
33.2
$835,774
$541,026

10.5%
24.5
35.0
$781,589
$497,343

11.1%
26.0
37.1
$722,408
$452,409
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
This annual report of MBIA Inc. (MBIA or the Company) includes
statements that are not historical or current facts and are “forward-looking statements” made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “believe,”
“anticipate,” “project,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “will likely result,”
“looking forward” or “will continue,” and similar expressions identify
forward-looking statements. These statements are subject to certain
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from historical earnings and those presently anticipated or projected.
MBIA cautions readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only to their respective dates.
The following are some of the factors that could affect financial performance or could cause actual results to differ materially from estimates
contained in or underlying the Company’s forward-looking statements:
• fluctuations in the economic, credit, interest rate or foreign currency
environment in the United States (U.S.) and abroad;
• level of activity within the national and international credit markets;
• competitive conditions and pricing levels;
• legislative or regulatory developments;
• technological developments;
• changes in tax laws;
• the effects of mergers, acquisitions and divestitures; and
• uncertainties that have not been identified at this time.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly correct or
update any forward-looking statement if it later becomes aware that
such results are not likely to be achieved.

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

bonds, asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, investor-owned
utility bonds, bonds backed by publicly or privately funded public-purpose projects, bonds issued by sovereign and sub-sovereign entities,
obligations collateralized by diverse pools of corporate loans and credit
default swaps and pools of corporate and asset-backed bonds, both in
the new issue and secondary markets. The financial guarantees provide
an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee of the payment of principal
and interest on insured obligations when due.
MBIA’s investment management services operations provide an
array of products and services to the public, not-for-profit and corporate sectors. Such products and services are provided primarily through
wholly owned subsidiaries of MBIA Asset Management, LLC and
include cash management, discretionary asset management and fund
administration services and investment agreement, medium-term note
and commercial paper programs related to funding assets for thirdparty clients and for investment purposes.
MBIA’s municipal services operations provide revenue enhancement services and products to public-sector clients nationwide, consisting of discovery, audit, collections/recovery and information services
through MBIA MuniServices Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Additionally, the municipal services operations include Capital Asset Holdings GP, Inc. and certain affiliated entities (Capital
Asset), a servicer of delinquent tax certificates.
The Company’s results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are discussed in the Results of Operations
section included herein.

RESTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OVERVIEW
MBIA is a leading provider of financial guarantee products and specialized financial services. MBIA provides innovative and cost-effective
products and services that meet the credit enhancement, financial and
investment needs of its public- and private-sector clients worldwide.
MBIA manages its activities primarily through three principal business
operations: insurance, investment management services and municipal
services. The Company’s corporate operations include revenues and
expenses that arise from general corporate activities and not from one of
the Company’s three principal business operations.
MBIA’s insurance operations are principally conducted through
MBIA Insurance Corporation and its subsidiaries (MBIA Corp.).
MBIA Insurance Corporation has Triple-A financial strength ratings
from Standard and Poor’s Corporation (S&P), Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s), Fitch, Inc. and Rating and Investment Information, Inc. Additionally, MBIA Insurance Corporation’s insurance
subsidiaries have Triple-A financial strength ratings from at least S&P
and Moody’s. MBIA Corp. issues financial guarantees for municipal

On November 8, 2005, MBIA announced its decision to correct and
restate its previously issued financial statements for 1998 and subsequent years in connection with potential settlements of investigations
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the New York
Attorney General’s Office (NYAG) regarding agreements entered into
by its subsidiary, MBIA Corp., in 1998. On November 12, 2005,
MBIA filed with the SEC Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to its
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 to reflect the restatement of its financial statements as of and for the years ended December
31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998.
In 1998, three reinsurers, Converium Reinsurance (North
America) Inc. (Converium), AXA Re Finance S.A. (ARF) and Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-Gesellshaft (Munich Re) paid the Company
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

$170 million under three separate agreements (the Excess-of-Loss
Agreements) in connection with losses the Company incurred on $265
million of MBIA-insured bonds issued by the Alleghany Health, Education and Research Foundation (AHERF). The Excess-of-Loss Agreements were structured as three successive excess-of-loss facilities that
aggregated to $170 million. Under the Excess-of-Loss Agreements,
Converium paid the Company $70 million, and Munich Re and ARF
each paid the Company $50 million.
In connection with the arrangements for the Excess-of-Loss
Agreements, the Company entered into quota share agreements with
Munich Re, ARF and Converium (each a Quota Share Agreement and,
collectively, the Quota Share Agreements). Under the Quota Share
Agreements, the Company agreed to cede to the three reinsurers new
business written with an aggregate par sufficient to generate $297 million in gross premiums over a six year period ending October 1, 2004.
Of the $297 million in premiums to be ceded under the Quota Share
Agreements, the Company agreed to cede to Converium cash premiums equal to $102 million, to ARF adjusted gross premiums of $97
million and to Munich Re adjusted gross premiums of $98 million over
this period.
On March 8, 2005, the Company announced its decision to
restate its financial statements for 1998 and subsequent years to correct
the accounting for the agreements with Converium and reflected this
correction in the consolidated financial statements of its original
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.
At that time, the Company believed that the accounting for the Excessof-Loss Agreements and Quota Share Agreements with Munich Re
and ARF was appropriate under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 113, “Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance
of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts.”
The restatement of the Company’s financial statements for the
Munich Re and ARF Excess-of-Loss and Quota Share Agreements,
made in connection with the potential settlements, corrects and restates
its accounting for these agreements because, taking into account developments in the regulatory investigations since March and further
accounting analyses, they did not satisfy the risk transfer requirements
for reinsurance accounting under SFAS 113. As a result, the Company
restated its financial statements issued prior to September 30, 2005
to reflect the Excess-of-Loss and Quota Share Agreements with Munich
Re and ARF under deposit accounting in accordance with Statement
of Position (SOP) 98-7, “Deposit Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Risk” instead
of under reinsurance accounting. The Company also corrected and
restated its 2004 statutory financial statements for the Munich Re and
ARF Excess-of-Loss and Quota Share Agreements because they did
not satisfy the requirements for reinsurance accounting under Regulation 108 of the New York State Insurance Department (NYSID).
The restatements did not have a significant effect on the Company’s
financial position.
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Additionally, in the third quarter of 2005, the Company completed a detailed review of its derivative instruments for which it
applied shortcut method hedge accounting under SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended.
Shortcut method hedge accounting allows the assumption that the
change in fair value of a hedged item exactly offsets the change in fair
value of the related derivative. After completing its review, the Company determined that certain hedging relationships did not meet every
technical aspect of shortcut method hedge accounting, although, such
hedging relationships would have qualified for basic hedge accounting.
Since the documentation that the Company prepared was designed to
support shortcut method hedge accounting, it was not sufficient to support basic hedge accounting. As a result, the Company must account
for these derivatives, from 2001 through September 30, 2005, as if they
were not part of hedging relationships, which requires the change in fair
value of these derivatives to be reflected in the Company’s income statement without an offsetting change in fair value of the hedged items.
The Company has restated its financial statements to correct the
accounting for these derivatives for the year ended December 31, 2001
and subsequent periods through June 30, 2005. As of October 1, 2005,
all of the subject hedging relationships met the requirements for basic
hedge accounting and have been recorded as such in the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The following table presents the effects of the ARF, Munich Re
and derivative accounting restatement on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the three months ended March 31,
2005 and June 30, 2005. The effect of the Converium restatement was
reflected in the previously issued consolidated financial statements of
the Company for these periods.
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As of and For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2005
Previously
Reported

In thousands except per share information

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Ceded premiums
Net premiums written
Increase in deferred premium revenue
Scheduled premiums earned
Refunding premiums earned
Premiums earned
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and
foreign exchange-insurance
Total insurance revenues
Losses and loss adjustment expenses
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs
Operating expenses
Total insurance expenses
Insurance income
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and
foreign exchange-IMS
Investment management services income
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Basic EPS:
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations
Net income
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Deferred acquisition costs
Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Derivative assets
Other assets
Total assets
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
Investment agreements
Deferred income taxes, net
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity

$

(35,688)
246,931
(40,693)
169,873
36,365
206,238

As of and For the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2005
Previously
Reported

Restated

$

(32,126)
250,493
(39,648)
173,760
37,085
210,845

$

(33,641)
215,324
(6,391)
177,207
31,726
208,933

Restated

$

(31,622)
217,343
(3,958)
180,902
32,483
213,385

(6,075)
325,945
20,385
16,293
29,166
65,844
260,101

(6,072)
330,555
20,851
16,657
30,262
67,770
262,785

4,119
339,264
21,265
16,506
32,268
70,039
269,225

4,002
343,599
21,708
16,858
33,261
71,827
271,772

$

11,178
36,812
277,706
77,202
200,504
200,504

$

27,421
53,055
296,633
83,826
212,807
212,807

$

(3,439)
15,372
261,312
73,722
187,590
187,590

(27,395)
(8,584)
239,903
66,229
173,674
173,674

$
$

1.46
1.46

$
$

1.55
1.55

$
$

1.40
1.40

$
$

1.30
1.30

$
$

1.43
1.43

$
$

1.52
1.52

$
$

1.37
1.37

$
$

1.27
1.27

371,932
462,390
33,202
270,648
282,295
33,756,665
755,563
9,316,470
573,849
428,360
381,426
27,320,654
5,377,327
500,516
$ 6,436,011

$

417,454
427,028
34,091
270,485
281,406
33,766,662
778,064
9,318,116
563,551
427,334
397,724
27,349,775
5,361,923
496,796
$ 6,416,887

$

383,006
451,113
42,869
252,637
253,843
34,784,595
667,570
10,005,780
661,184
484,842
396,596
28,197,097
5,527,063
630,628
$ 6,587,498

$

$

The restatement of the Company’s financial statements did
not have a material effect on its financial condition and MBIA does
not expect the restatement to have any impact on its ratings or on
the Triple-A ratings of MBIA Insurance Corporation. The following
information presented in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations gives effect to
the restatement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The following accounting estimates are viewed by
management to be critical because they require significant judgment

$

428,613
418,184
41,671
252,544
255,041
34,797,180
690,801
9,998,534
654,888
484,003
412,019
28,221,370
5,497,743
648,260
$ 6,575,810

on the part of management. Financial results could be materially
different if alternate methodologies were used or if management modified its assumptions.
LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES The financial guarantees issued by MBIA Corp. insure scheduled payments of principal and
interest due on various types of financial obligations against a payment
default on such payments by the issuers of the obligations. Loss and
LAE reserves are established by the Company’s Loss Reserve Committee, which is comprised of members of senior management, and require
the use of judgment and estimates with respect to the occurrence, timing and amount of a loss on an insured obligation.
The Company establishes two types of loss and loss adjustment
expense (LAE) reserves for non-derivative financial guarantees: an unallocated loss reserve and case basis reserves. The unallocated loss reserve
23
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is established with respect to the Company’s entire insured portfolio.
The Company’s unallocated loss reserve represents the Company’s estimate of losses that have or are probable to occur as a result of credit
deterioration in the Company’s insured portfolio but which have not
yet been specifically identified and applied to specific insured obligations.
Each quarter the Company calculates its provision for the unallocated loss reserve as a fixed percent of scheduled net earned premium.
Annually, the Loss Reserve Committee evaluates the appropriateness of
this fixed percent loss factor. In performing this evaluation, the Loss
Reserve Committee considers the composition of the Company’s
insured portfolio by municipal sector, structured asset class, remaining
maturity and credit quality, along with the latest industry data, including historical default and recovery experience for the relevant sectors of
the fixed-income market in order to determine if a trend is developing
that indicates the loss factor should be increased or decreased. In addition, the Company considers its own historical loss activity and how
those losses develop over time. The Loss Reserve Committee reviews
the results of its annual evaluation over a period of several years to
determine whether any long-term trends are developing. The Company’s additions to specific case basis reserves in the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 exceeded the 12% loss factor currently
used by the Company. The Loss Reserve Committee is continuing to
monitor this trend and evaluate whether an adjustment to the Company’s current loss factor is appropriate. However, if a catastrophic or
very unusual loss occurred, the Loss Reserve Committee would consider taking an immediate charge through “Losses and loss adjustment
expenses” and possibly also increasing the loss factor in order to maintain an adequate level of loss reserves. Since 2002, the Company calculated its provision for the unallocated loss reserve as 12% of scheduled
net earned premium.
Significant changes to any variables on which the 12% loss factor is based, over an extended period of time, would likely result in an
increase or decrease in the Company’s loss factor with a corresponding
increase or decrease in the amount of the Company’s loss and loss
adjustment expense provision. For example, as external and internal statistical data are applied to the various sectors of the Company’s insured
portfolio, a shift in business written toward sectors with high default
rates would likely increase the loss factor, while a shift toward sectors
with low default rates would likely decrease the loss factor. Additionally,
increases in statistical default rates relative to the Company’s insured
portfolio and in the Company’s actual loss experience or decreases in
statistical recovery rates and in the Company’s actual recovery experience would likely increase the Company’s loss factor. Conversely,
decreases in statistical default rates relative to the Company’s insured
portfolio and in the Company’s actual loss experience or increases in
statistical recovery rates and in the Company’s actual recovery experience would likely decrease the Company’s loss factor. During the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company calculated
its provision for the unallocated loss reserve of $84 million, $85 million
and $77 million, respectively. This provision represents loss and loss
adjustment expenses as reported on the Company’s income statement.
The Company establishes specific reserves in an amount equal to
the Company’s estimate of identified or case basis reserves with respect
to specific policies. A number of variables are taken into account in
establishing specific case basis reserves for individual policies that
depend primarily on the nature of the underlying insured obligation.
These variables include the nature and creditworthiness of the underlying issuer of the insured obligation, whether the obligation is secured or
unsecured and the expected recovery rates on the insured obligation,
the projected cash flow or market value of any assets that support the
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insured obligation and the historical and projected loss rates on such
assets. Factors that may affect the actual ultimate realized losses for any
policy include the state of the economy, changes in interest rates, rates
of inflation and the salvage values of specific collateral. The Company
does not believe that changes to these factors would materially change
the amount of the Company’s case basis loss reserves, with the exception of significant changes in salvage values of specific collateral. However, the Company does not believe that significant changes in salvage
values of specific collateral are reasonably likely to occur.
The Company’s total loss reserves of $722 million represent a
small fraction of its outstanding net debt service insured of $889 billion. However, management believes that these reserves are adequate to
cover ultimate net losses. Given that the reserves are based on estimates,
there can be no assurance that the ultimate liability will not exceed such
estimates resulting in the Company recognizing additional loss and loss
adjustment expense in earnings. While the underlying principles
applied to loss reserving are consistent across the financial guarantee
industry, differences exist with regard to the methodology and measurement of loss reserves. Alternate methods may produce different estimates than the method used by the Company. Additionally, the
accounting for non-derivative financial guarantee loss reserves is possibly subject to change. See “Note 3: Significant Accounting Policies” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the
Company’s loss and loss adjustment expense accounting policy.
PREMIUM REVENUE RECOGNITION Upfront premiums are
earned in proportion to the expiration of the related insured par while
installment premiums are earned on a straight-line basis over each
installment period, generally one year or less. Therefore, for transactions in which the premium is received upfront, premium earnings are
greater in the earlier periods when there is a higher amount of par outstanding. The upfront premiums are apportioned to individual sinking
fund payments of a bond issue according to an amortization schedule.
After the premiums are allocated to each scheduled sinking fund payment, they are earned on a straight-line basis over the period of that
sinking fund payment. Accordingly, deferred premium revenue represents the portion of premiums written that is applicable to the unexpired risk of insured bonds and notes. When an MBIA-insured issue is
retired early, is called by the issuer, or is in substance paid in advance
through a refunding accomplished by placing U.S. Government securities in escrow, the remaining deferred premium revenue is earned at
that time since there is no longer risk to the Company.
The effect of the Company’s upfront premium earnings policy is
to recognize greater levels of upfront premiums in the earlier years of
each policy insured, thus matching revenue recognition with exposure
to the underlying risk. Recognizing premium revenue on a straight-line
basis over the life of each policy without allocating premiums to the
sinking fund payments would materially affect the Company’s financial
results. Premium earnings would be more evenly recorded as revenue
throughout the period of risk than under the current method, but the
Company does not believe that the straight-line method would appropriately match premiums earned to the Company’s exposure to the
underlying risk. Therefore, the Company believes its upfront premium
earnings methodology is the most appropriate method to recognize its
upfront premiums as revenue. The premium earnings methodology
used by the Company is similar to that used throughout the financial
guarantee industry.
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VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS The fair market values
of financial instruments held or issued by the Company are determined
through the use of available market data and widely accepted valuation
methods. Market data is retrieved from a variety of third-party data
sources for input into the Company’s valuation systems. Valuation systems are determined based on the characteristics of transactions and
the availability of market data. The fair values of financial assets and
liabilities are primarily calculated from quoted dealer market prices.
However, dealer market prices may not be available for certain types
of contracts that are infrequently purchased and sold. For these contracts, the Company may use alternate methods for determining fair
values, such as dealer market quotes for similar contracts or cash flow
modeling. Alternate valuation methods generally require management
to exercise considerable judgment in the use of estimates and assumptions, and changes to certain factors may produce materially different
values. In addition, actual market exchanges may occur at materially
different amounts.
The Company’s financial instruments categorized as assets are
mainly comprised of investments in debt and equity instruments. The
majority of the Company’s debt and equity investments are accounted
for in accordance with SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities.” SFAS 115 requires that all debt instruments and certain equity instruments be classified in the Company’s
balance sheet according to their purpose and, depending on that classification, be carried at either amortized cost or fair market value. Quoted
market prices are generally available for these investments. However, if
a quoted market price is not available, a price is derived from internally
developed models which use available market data. Equity investments
outside the scope of SFAS 115 are accounted for under cost or equity
method accounting principles. Other financial assets that require fair
value reporting or disclosures within the Company’s financial notes are
valued based on underlying collateral or the Company’s estimate of discounted cash flows.
MBIA regularly monitors its investments in which fair value is
less than amortized cost in order to assess whether such a decline in
value is other than temporary and, therefore, should be reflected as a
realized loss in net income. Such an assessment requires the Company
to determine the cause of the decline and whether the Company possesses both the ability and intent to hold the investment to maturity or
until the value recovers to an amount at least equal to amortized cost.
Additionally, this assessment requires management to exercise judgment as to whether an investment is impaired based on market conditions and trends and the availability of relevant data. See “Note 13:
Investment Income and Gains and Losses” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding other
than temporary losses recorded in net income.
The Company’s financial instruments categorized as liabilities
primarily consist of obligations related to its asset/liability products,
conduit medium-term note and conduit commercial paper programs,
and debt issued for general corporate purposes. These liabilities are typically recorded at their face value adjusted for premiums or discounts.
The fair values of such instruments are generally not reported within
the Company’s financial statements, but rather in the accompanying
notes. However, financial liabilities that qualify as part of hedging
arrangements under SFAS 133 are recorded at their fair values in the
Company’s balance sheet with respect to those risks being hedged.
MBIA has instituted cash flow modeling techniques to estimate the

value of its liabilities that qualify as hedged obligations under SFAS 133
based on current market data. Other financial liabilities that require fair
value reporting or disclosures within the Company’s notes to its financial statements are valued based on underlying collateral, the Company’s estimate of discounted cash flows or quoted market values for
similar transactions.
The Company’s exposure to derivative instruments is created
through contracts into which it directly enters and through third-party
contracts it insures. The majority of MBIA’s exposure to derivative
instruments, measured by notional values, is related to certain synthetic
collateralized debt obligations (CDOs) that it insures. These contracts
meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS 133 but effectively represent an alternate form of financial guarantee execution. The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments are estimated using
various valuation models that conform to industry standards. The
Company utilizes both vendor-developed and proprietary models,
based on the complexity of transactions. Dealer market quotes are typically obtained for regularly traded contracts and provide the best estimate of fair value for those contracts. However, when reliable dealer
market quotes are not available, the Company uses a variety of market
data relative to the type and structure of derivative contracts entered
into by the Company. Several of the more significant types of market
and contract data that influence the Company’s valuation models
include interest rates, credit quality ratings, credit spreads, default probabilities and diversity scores. The data is obtained from third-party
sources and is reviewed for reasonableness and applicability to the
Company’s derivative portfolio. The fair value of the Company’s derivative portfolio may be materially affected by changes in existing market
data, the availability of new or improved market data, changes in specific contract data or enhancements to the Company’s valuation models
resulting from new market practices.
MBIA expects to hold all derivative instruments to their contractual maturity. Upon maturity of a contract, the unrealized value
recorded in the Company’s financial statements will be zero. However,
in the unlikely event circumstances require the termination and settlement of a contract prior to maturity, any unrealized gain or loss will
be realized.
The Company has dedicated resources to the development and
ongoing review of its valuation models and has instituted procedures
for the approval and control of data inputs. In addition, regular reviews
are performed to ensure that the Company’s valuation models are
appropriate and produce values reflective of the current market environment. See “Note 27: Fair Value of Financial Instruments” in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
on the various types of instruments entered into by MBIA and a comparison of carrying values as reported in the Company’s balance sheet to
estimated fair values.
GOODWILL Under SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are no
longer amortized but instead tested for impairment at least annually.
The standard includes a two-step process aimed at determining the
amount, if any, by which the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds
its fair value and should be charged as an expense through net income.
In performing its impairment test, the Company determined
that the best measure of the fair value of the insurance reporting segment is its book value adjusted for the after-tax effects of net deferred
premium revenue less deferred acquisition costs, the present value of
installment premiums and a provision for losses to arrive at an adjusted
book value. Adjusted book value is a common measure used by analysts
to determine the value of financial guarantee companies.
25
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In performing the impairment test for the investment management services operations, the fair values of the reporting segments were
determined using a multiple of earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA), as this is a common measure of fair
value in the investment management industry. The multiple was determined based on a review of current industry valuation practices.
The Company performed its annual impairment testing of
goodwill as of January 1, 2005 and January 1, 2006. On both dates, the
fair values of the reporting segments exceeded their carrying values
indicating that goodwill was not impaired. Alternate valuation methods
would have likely produced different fair values. However, the Company believes that the valuation methods used provided the best estimates of fair value.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
The following table presents highlights of the Company’s consolidated
financial results for 2005, 2004 and 2003. Items listed under “Other
per share information (effect on net income)” are items that management commonly identifies for the readers of its financial statements
because they are a by-product of the Company’s operations or due to
general market conditions beyond the control of the Company.
In millions except per share amounts

Revenues:
Insurance
Investment management services
Municipal services
Corporate
Gross revenues from continuing
operations
Expenses:
Insurance
Investment management services
Municipal services
Corporate
Gross expenses from continuing
operations
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations,
net of tax
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax
Net income
Net income per share information:*
Net income
Other per share information
(effect on net income):
Penalties and disgorgement
Accelerated premium earned
from refunded issues
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign
exchange
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations
* All per share calculations are diluted.
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2005

2004

2003

$1,350
910
25
16

$1,481
538
27
8

$1,423
412
27
24

2,301

2,054

1,886

295
780
22
188

273
491
26
92

256
357
26
84

1,285
304

882
332

723
340

712

840

823

3

2

$ 711

(1)

$ 843

$ 825

$ 5.18

$ 5.82

$ 5.69

$ (0.52)

$

$

$ 0.61
$ (0.04)

$ 0.59
$ 0.47

$ 0.54
$ 0.36

$ 0.18

$ (0.01)

$ 0.43

$ (0.01)

$ 0.02

$ 0.01

—

—
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Consolidated revenues from continuing operations increased
12% to $2.3 billion in 2005 from $2.1 billion in 2004. The growth in
consolidated revenues was primarily due to a substantial increase in
investment management services’ interest income resulting from
growth in asset/liability products. Offsetting the increase in investment
management services’ revenues was a decrease in insurance revenues
resulting from a decline in gains on investment securities. Consolidated
expenses from continuing operations increased 46% to $1.3 billion
in 2005 from $882 million in 2004. This increase was principally
due to an increase in investment management services’ interest expense,
which was commensurate with the increase in interest income, and
estimated penalties and disgorgement related to the potential settlement of regulatory investigations of the Company. Net income for
2005 of $711 million was down 16% from $843 million for 2004. Net
income per share was $5.18 for 2005 compared with $5.82 for 2004,
an 11% decrease.
Consolidated revenues from continuing operations for 2004
were $2.1 billion compared with $1.9 billion for 2003, a 9% increase.
The growth in consolidated revenues was primarily due to increases in
insurance premium earnings and investment income, investment management services medium-term note program revenues and the fullyear impact of the consolidation of conduit revenues. Consolidated
expenses for 2004 were $882 million compared with $723 million for
2003, a 22% increase. This increase was primarily due to an increase in
investment management services medium-term note program interest
and operating expenses and the full year impact of the consolidation of
conduit expenses. Net income for 2004 of $843 million was up 2%
from $825 million recorded in 2003. Net income per share for 2004
was $5.82 compared with $5.69 for 2003, also a 2% increase.
The Company’s book value at December 31, 2005 was $49.17
per share, up 5% from $47.05 at December 31, 2004. The increase was
principally driven by income from operations, which was somewhat
offset by the effect of repurchasing shares into treasury stock at prices
above the Company’s book value per share. Book value per share has
shown steady growth over the past three years with a three-year compound average growth rate of 10%.
INSURANCE OPERATIONS
The Company’s insurance operations are principally comprised of the
activities of MBIA Corp. MBIA Corp. issues financial guarantees for
municipal bonds, asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities,
investor-owned utility bonds, bonds backed by publicly or privately
funded public purpose projects, bonds issued by sovereign and sub-sovereign entities, obligations collateralized by diverse pools of corporate
loans and credit default swaps and pools of corporate and asset-backed
bonds, both in the new issue and secondary markets.
The municipal obligations that MBIA Corp. insures include
tax-exempt and taxable indebtedness of states, counties, cities, utility
districts and other political subdivisions, as well as airports, higher education and healthcare facilities and similar authorities and obligations
issued by private entities that finance projects which serve a substantial
public purpose. The asset-backed and structured finance obligations
insured by MBIA Corp. typically consist of securities that are payable
from or which are tied to the performance of a specified pool of assets
that, in most cases, have a defined cash flow. Securities of this type
include residential and commercial mortgages, a variety of consumer
loans, corporate loans and bonds, trade and export receivables, aircraft,
equipment and real property leases, and infrastructure projects.
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Revenues from the Company’s insurance operations decreased
9% to $1.35 billion in 2005 compared with $1.48 billion in 2004. The
decline in insurance operations’ revenues was primarily the result of a
decrease in net gains from investment securities and, to a lesser extent, a
decrease in advisory fee income and net gains on derivative instruments. Net investment income increased 4%, partially offsetting the
overall decline in revenues. Insurance expenses, which consist of loss
and LAE, the amortization of deferred acquisition costs and operating
costs, increased 8% to $295 million in 2005 compared with $273 million in 2004. Loss and LAE and the amortization of deferred acquisition costs remained relatively flat. Operating costs increased largely due
to loss prevention costs, costs associated with the Company’s Money
Market Committed Preferred Custodial Trust securities (CPCT securities), consulting services and a decrease in the rate at which compensation and other costs are deferred as policy acquisition costs. Gross
insurance expenses (expenses before ceding commission income and
the deferral or amortization of acquisition costs) increased 3% in 2005
compared with 2004.
In 2004, revenues from insurance operations of $1.48 billion
increased 4% compared with 2003. The growth in insurance operations
revenues in 2004 was due to increases in earned premiums, net investment income and net realized gains offset by decreases in advisory fee
income and net gains on derivative instruments. Insurance expenses
increased 7% in 2004 compared with 2003. Loss and LAE and the
amortization of deferred acquisition costs both increased in line with
the increase in earned premiums. Operating expenses increased 3%,
principally due to higher compensation costs, premiums related to the
renewal of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and loss prevention
costs. Gross insurance expenses for 2004 increased 1% compared
with 2003.
The Company’s gross premiums written (GPW), net premiums
written (NPW) and net premiums earned for the last three years are
presented in the following table:

GPW, slightly offset by a reduction in premiums ceded to reinsurers.
Premiums ceded to reinsurers from all insurance operations were
$127 million, $159 million and $194 million for 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Reinsurance enables the Company to cede exposure
and comply with its single risk and credit guidelines, although the
Company continues to be primarily liable on the insurance policies
it underwrites.
Net premiums earned include scheduled premium earnings as
well as premium earnings from refunded issues. Net premiums earned
in 2005 of $843 million decreased 1% over 2004 due to a 2% decrease
in refunded premiums earned and a 1% decrease in scheduled premiums earned. The decrease in refunded premiums earned resulted from a
modest slow down in refinancing activity in the municipal market from
historically high levels.
In 2004, GPW decreased 12% compared with 2003, reflecting
declines in both U.S. and non-U.S. business. NPW decreased 11%
compared with 2003, resulting from the decline in GPW, slightly offset
by lower cession rates on U.S. business. The growth in net premiums
earned in 2004 compared with 2003 reflects the increase in new business written in past years, increased refundings and a decline in the use
of reinsurance.
MBIA evaluates the premium rates it charges for insurance guarantees through the use of internal and external rating agency quantitative models. These models assess the Company’s premium rates and
return on capital results on a risk adjusted basis. In addition, market
research data is used to evaluate pricing levels across the financial guarantee industry for comparable risks. Although pricing has been acceptable in 2004 and 2005, the Company, along with the industry,
experienced significant price increases over the period from 1998
through 2003. The Company’s pricing levels indicate continued acceptable trends in overall portfolio profitability under all models, and the
Company believes the pricing charged for its insurance products produces results that meet its long-term return on capital targets.

Percent Change

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

In millions

2005

2004

2003

Gross premiums written:
U.S.
Non-U.S.

$710
275

$ 737
380

$ 862
407

(4)% (15)%
(28)% (7)%

$985

$1,117

$1,269

(12)% (12)%

$658
200

$ 683
275

$ 765
310

(4)% (11)%
(27)% (11)%

$858

$ 958

$1,075

(10)% (11)%

$620
223

$ 637
213

$ 615
158

(3)%
5%

4%
35%

$843

$ 850

$ 773

(1)%

10%

Total
Net premiums written:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total
Net premiums earned:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total

GPW reflects premiums received and accrued for in the period
and does not include the present value of future cash receipts expected
from installment premium policies originated during the period. GPW
was $985 million in 2005, down 12% from 2004.
NPW, which represents gross premiums written net of premiums ceded to reinsurers, decreased 10% to $858 million in 2005 from
$958 million in 2004. The decline in 2005 was a result of the decline in

CREDIT QUALITY Financial guarantee companies use a variety
of approaches to assess the underlying credit risk profile of their
insured portfolios. MBIA uses both an internally developed credit rating system as well as third-party rating sources in the analysis of credit
quality measures of its insured portfolio. In evaluating credit risk, the
Company obtains, when available, the underlying rating of the insured
obligation before the benefit of its insurance policy from nationally
recognized rating agencies (Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, Inc.). All references to insured credit quality distributions contained herein reflect the
underlying rating levels from these third-party sources. Other companies within the financial guarantee industry may report credit quality
information based upon internal ratings that would not be comparable
to MBIA’s presentation.
The credit quality of business insured during 2005 remained relatively high as 81% of total insured credits were rated A or above,
before giving effect to MBIA’s guarantee, compared to 76% in 2004
and 81% in 2003. At December 31, 2005, 81% of the Company’s outstanding book of business was rated A or above before giving effect to
MBIA’s guarantee, up from 80% at December 31, 2004.
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GLOBAL PUBLIC FINANCE MARKET MBIA’s premium writings
and premium earnings in both the new issue and secondary global public finance markets are shown in the following table:

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

GLOBAL STRUCTURED FINANCE MARKET MBIA’s premium
writings and premium earnings in both the new issue and secondary
global structured finance markets are shown in the following table:

Percent Change

Global Public Finance
In millions

Gross premiums written:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total
Net premiums written:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total
Net premiums earned:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total

2005

2004

2003

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

$450
119

$458
208

$570
263

(2)% (20)%
(43)% (21)%

$569

$666

$833

(15)% (20)%

$431
83

$439
145

$530
215

(2)% (17)%
(43)% (33)%

$514

$584

$745

(12)% (22)%

$389
106

$400
95

$371
65

(3)%
12%

8%
46%

$495

$495

$436

0%

14%

Global public finance GPW decreased 15% over 2004. This
decrease reflects a drop in European business as significantly fewer
transactions came to market during 2005, despite growth in the Latin
American and Australian markets. U.S. GPW declined 2% over 2004.
Although U.S. GPW declined slightly, it was positively impacted by
steady flow business, particularly within the military housing and transportation sectors. NPW decreased 12% to $514 million in 2005 as a
result of the decrease in GPW and a lower cession rate. The overall cession rate for business written during 2005 was 10% compared with
12% in 2004. The decrease in the overall cession rate was principally
due to a decline in U.S. business ceded. Global public finance net premiums earned were $495 million in both 2005 and 2004. An increase
in scheduled net premiums earned from non-U.S. business was offset
by a decline in refunded premiums earned from U.S. business.
In 2004, global public finance GPW and NPW decreased 20%
and 22%, respectively, over 2003. The decrease in GPW was primarily
due to a significant decline in first quarter U.S. production and third
quarter U.S. and non-U.S. production, which resulted from lower market issuance, increased competition and lower overall pricing. In 2004,
the cession rate on total global public finance business written was
12%, which increased from an 11% cession rate in 2003. The increase
in the 2004 cession rate resulted from an increase in non-U.S. business
ceded. The greater decline in NPW compared with the decline in GPW
was a result of the increase in cessions to reinsurers. Global public
finance net premiums earned increased 14% over 2003. This growth
reflects earnings generated from increased levels of U.S. and non-U.S.
business written over the last several years and a 10% increase in
refunded premiums earned.
The credit quality of global public finance business written by
the Company in 2005 remained high. Insured credits rated A or above
before the Company’s guarantee represented 91% of global public
finance business written in 2005, compared with 87% in 2004 and
88% in 2003. At December 31, 2005, 83% of the outstanding global
public finance book of business was rated A or above before the Company’s guarantee, up from 82% at December 31, 2004.
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Percent Change

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

Global Structured Finance
In millions

2005

2004

2003

Gross premiums written:
U.S.
Non-U.S.

$260
156

$279
172

$292
144

(7)%
(9)%

(4)%
19%

$416

$451

$436

(8)%

3%

$227
117

$244
130

$235
95

(7)%
(10)%

4%
37%

$344

$374

$330

(8)%

13%

$231
117

$237
118

$244
93

(3)%
(1)%

(3)%
27%

$348

$355

$337

(2)%

5%

Total
Net premiums written:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total
Net premiums earned:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total

Global structured finance GPW decreased 8% in 2005 to $416
million from $451 million in 2004, resulting from decreases in U.S.
and non-U.S. business written. The global structured finance sector
continues to be adversely impacted by increased competition, tight
spreads and greater investor demand for uninsured transactions. However, GPW was positively impacted by business from repeat issuers
across all sectors. NPW in 2005 decreased 8% due to the decrease in
GPW. The overall cession rate for business written during 2005 and
2004 was 17%. In 2005, global structured finance net premiums
earned of $348 million were 2% below 2004. The decrease in net premiums earned resulted from the decline in business written and prepayments and maturities of insured issues.
In 2004, global structured finance GPW increased 3% to $451
million from $436 million in 2003, resulting from an increase in nonU.S. business written. Overall, the global structured finance sector was
adversely impacted by tight spreads and greater investor demand for
uninsured transactions. NPW for 2004 increased 13% due to the
increase in GPW and lower cession rates on both U.S. and non-U.S.
business written. The 2004 cession rate on total global structured
finance business written was 17%, which declined from a 24% cession
rate in 2003. In 2004, global structured finance net premiums earned
of $355 million increased 5% over 2003. This increase was driven by
higher levels of new non-U.S. business written over the last two years
and a declining cession rate.
The credit quality of MBIA’s global structured finance insured
business written rated A or above, before giving effect to the Company’s
guarantee, was 69% in 2005, compared with 64% in 2004 and 71% in
2003. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, 77% of the outstanding global
structured finance book of business was rated A or above before giving
effect to the Company’s guarantee.
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INVESTMENT INCOME The Company’s insurance-related net
investment income and ending asset balances at amortized cost for the
last three years are presented in the following table:
Percent Change

In millions

Pre-tax income
After-tax income
Ending asset balances at
amortized cost

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

2005

2004

2003

$ 492
$ 392

$ 474
$ 376

$ 438
$ 348

4%
4%

8%
8%

$9,939

$9,201

$9,034

8%

2%

The Company’s insurance-related net investment income,
excluding net realized gains and losses, increased 4% to $492 million
from $474 million in 2004. After-tax net investment income also
increased 4% in 2005 as the proportion of taxable investments
remained relatively consistent with 2004. Growth in investment
income has been adversely impacted by the continued low interest rate
environment, however, benefited from slightly higher average yields
and an increase in average invested assets as a result of a reduction in
dividends paid by MBIA Corp. to MBIA Inc. during 2005 as compared
with 2004.
In 2004, insurance-related net investment income, excluding
net realized gains and losses, increased 8% to $474 million in 2004, up
from $438 million in 2003. After-tax net investment income also
increased 8% compared with 2003 as the proportion of taxable investments remained consistent from year to year. The increase in investment income for 2004 was principally the result of an increase in
invested assets due to premium collections and reinvested interest.
Since the fourth quarter of 2003, a portion of MBIA-administered conduit investment income has been reported as insurance-related net
investment income. Excluding investment income related to MBIAadministered conduits, after-tax insurance-related investment income
would have increased 6% from 2003.
ADVISORY FEES The Company collects advisory fees in connection with certain transactions. Depending upon the type of fee received
and whether it is related to an insurance policy, the fee is either earned
when it is due or deferred and earned over the life of the related transaction. Work, waiver and consent, termination, administrative and management fees, and expense reimbursements are earned when the related
services are completed. Structuring fees are earned on a straight-line
basis over the life of the related insurance policy and commitment fees
are earned on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.
In 2005, advisory fee revenues decreased 32% over 2004 to $28
million. The decrease in advisory fees was primarily due to a decline in
waiver and consent and commitment fees, as well as a decline in work
fees reflecting fewer large complex transactions requiring advisory services. Partially offsetting the decrease in such fees was an increase in
expense reimbursements associated with loss prevention efforts. In
2004, advisory fee revenues decreased 30% to $42 million, from $60
million in 2003. This decrease was primarily due to a decline in work
fees, resulting from fewer large and complex transactions, and a decline
in waiver and consent and structuring fees. Fees earned when due represented 72% of total advisory fee income in 2005, 63% in 2004 and
75% in 2003. Due to the transaction-specific nature inherent in advisory fees, fee revenues can vary significantly from year to year.
NET GAINS AND LOSSES Net realized losses in the insurance
operations were $8 million in 2005, compared with net realized gains
of $109 million and $48 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. In

2005, net realized losses were primarily due to $19 million of impairment losses on receivables the Company recorded through salvage and
subrogation rights it obtained as a result of claim payments it previously
made on insured credits. Partially offsetting the impairment losses were
net gains from sales of investment securities. The net realized gains in
2004 were largely due to a $77 million realized gain resulting from the
sale of a common stock investment MBIA Corp. purchased in 2002
and $41 million resulting from the termination of certain transactions
that were accounted for as deposits. The increase in 2004 was partially
offset by an $11 million realized loss resulting from an other-thantemporary impairment of a fixed-maturity security.
Net losses on derivative instruments and foreign exchange in the
insurance operations, which primarily represent changes in the market
value of the Company’s insured credit derivative portfolio, were $4 million in 2005 compared with net gains of $7 million and $104 million
in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The 2005 net losses primarily resulted
from the reversal of gains recorded in prior years on credit derivatives as
transactions approach their maturity and that terminated in 2005, net
of foreign currency gains. The 2004 and 2003 net gains were primarily
due to an increase in the value of the Company’s insured credit derivative portfolio, reflecting a tightening of credit spreads. Gains or losses
on derivatives are largely driven by movements in credit spreads affecting the insurance operations’ insured portfolio of synthetic CDOs.
However, credit spreads did not move significantly in 2005 and 2004
relative to 2003.
LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (LAE) The following
table shows the case-specific, reinsurance recoverable and unallocated
components of the Company’s total loss and LAE reserves, as well as its
loss provision and case basis activity, at the end of the last three years.
Percent Change

In millions

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

2005

2004

2003

$513

$435

$387

59

35

61

Net case reserves
Unallocated

$454
209

$400
314

$326
325

14%
(33)%

23%
(3)%

Net loss and LAE reserves

$663

$714

$651

(7)%

10%

Losses and LAE
Case basis activity

$ 84
$189

$ 85
$127

$ 77
$ 60

(1)% 10%
49% 112%

Case-specific:
Gross
Reinsurance recoverable
on unpaid losses

18%

12%

69% (44)%

The Company recorded $84 million in loss and LAE in 2005,
a slight decrease from 2004. The variance in loss and LAE corresponds
to the slight decrease in scheduled net earned premium, as scheduled
net earned premium is the base upon which the Company’s 12% loss
factor is applied. Likewise, the growth in loss and LAE in 2004 compared with 2003 is a direct result of growth in scheduled net earned
premium during 2004. At December 31, 2005, the Company had
$209 million in unallocated loss reserves, which represent the Company’s estimate of losses associated with credit deterioration that has
occurred in the Company’s insured portfolio and are available for future
case-specific activity. During 2004, the unallocated loss reserve was
increased by reserves of $32 million related to an agreement with Asian
Securitization & Infrastructure Assurance (Pte) Ltd (ASIA Ltd)
whereby, as part of the agreement, the Company assumed ASIA Ltd’s
insurance obligations.
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Total case basis activity transferred from the Company’s unallocated loss reserve was $189 million in 2005, $127 million in 2004 and
$60 million in 2003. During 2005, case basis activity primarily consisted of loss reserves for insured obligations within the aircraft
enhanced equipment trust certificates (EETCs), CDO and manufactured housing sectors and within MBIA’s guaranteed tax lien portfolios.
Case basis activity during 2004 primarily consisted of loss reserves for
insured obligations issued by Fort Worth Osteopathic Hospital, MBIA’s
guaranteed tax lien portfolios, AHERF, an older vintage CDO and a
manufactured housing exposure. During 2003, case basis activity
included reserves for MBIA’s guaranteed tax lien portfolios, losses associated with the guarantee of an older vintage CDO and a Trenwick
America Corp. debt obligation.
MBIA established a case loss reserve of $76 million in the fourth
quarter of 2005 in connection with $686 million of net par exposure
under four insured EETCs secured by 64 aircraft financed by Northwest Airlines. Northwest Airlines filed for bankruptcy protection in
September 2005 and, subsequently, did not make scheduled payments
on leases supporting outstanding senior debt for 31 aircraft in three of
the four MBIA-insured EETCs. MBIA established the case loss reserve
based on projected lower lease income related to these leases, the projected revenue from the potential redeployment of certain aircraft and
estimated valuations for the aircraft subject to the defaulted leases. Currently, the leases related to the remaining 33 aircraft are performing
according to the original contract terms. Temporary extensions are in
place to allow Northwest Airlines to continue flying the non-compliant
aircraft, with negotiations regarding the future of the aircraft underway
at this time.
MBIA continues to closely monitor the manufactured housing
sector, which has experienced continued stress during 2005 and 2004.
MBIA ceased writing business in this sector, other than through certain
CDO transactions, in 2000. At December 31, 2005, the Company had
$33 million in case basis reserves, net of reinsurance, covering net
insured par outstanding of $580 million on three credits within the
manufactured housing sector. The Company had additional manufactured housing exposure of $1.8 billion in net insured par outstanding as
of December 31, 2005, of which approximately 45% has been placed
on the Company’s “Caution List-Medium” and “Caution List-High.”
An explanation of the Company’s “Classified List” and “Caution Lists”
is provided below.
The Company has significant exposures in its insured portfolio
relating to regions impacted by hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma.
Insured credits in these regions encompass various types of sectors,
including general obligation bonds, tax-backed, healthcare, transportation and higher education, among others. The Company is continuing
its communication efforts with issuers, trustees and relevant state officials to evaluate the actual and potential impact that the hurricanes may
have on its insured credits. Based on available information, the Company does not currently expect there to be material cases of prolonged
nonpayment that would result in unreimbursed losses. As a result, during 2005, MBIA did not establish specific reserves for its exposure to
the regions impacted by these hurricanes. To date, MBIA has paid
$2 million in claim payments, for which it has been fully reimbursed.
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MBIA’s Insured Portfolio Management (IPM) Division is
responsible for monitoring MBIA insured issues. The level and frequency of MBIA’s monitoring of any insured issue depends on the type,
size, rating and performance of the insured issue. If IPM identifies
concerns with respect to the performance of an insured issue it may
designate such insured issue as “Caution List-Low,” “Caution ListMedium” or “Caution List-High.” The designation of any insured issue
as “Caution List-Medium” or “Caution List-High” is based on the
nature and extent of these concerns and requires that an increased monitoring and, if needed, a remediation plan be implemented for the
related insured issue.
In the event MBIA determines that it must pay a claim or that a
claim is probable and estimable with respect to an insured issue, it
places the issue on its “Classified List” and establishes a case basis
reserve for that insured issue. As of December 31, 2005, MBIA had 38
open case basis issues on its “Classified List” that had $454 million in
aggregate case reserves, net of reinsurance. The Company does not
establish any case basis reserves for issues that are listed as “Caution
List-Low,” “Caution List-Medium” or “Caution List-High” until such
issues are placed on the Company’s “Classified List.”
Included in the Company’s case basis reserves are both loss
reserves for insured obligations for which a payment default has
occurred and MBIA has already paid a claim and also for which a payment default has not yet occurred but a claim is probable and estimable
in the future. At December 31, 2005, case basis reserves were comprised of the following:
Number of Case
Basis Issues

Loss
Reserve

Par
Outstanding

Gross of reinsurance:
Issues with defaults
Issues without defaults

30
8

$379
134

$2,528
1,231

Total gross

38

$513

$3,759

Net of reinsurance:
Issues with defaults
Issues without defaults

30
8

$354
100

$2,179
1,020

Total net

38

$454

$3,199

Dollars in millions

When MBIA becomes entitled to the underlying collateral of an
insured credit under salvage and subrogation rights as a result of a claim
payment, it records salvage and subrogation as an asset. Such amounts
are included in the Company’s balance sheet within “Other assets.” As
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had salvage and subrogation of $143 million and $154 million, respectively. The decrease was
principally due to $19 million of impairment losses in 2005 on receivables the Company recorded as a result of claim payments it previously
made on insured credits.
As a result of discussions in January and February 2005 between
the SEC staff and several financial guarantee industry participants,
including MBIA, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
staff is considering whether additional guidance with respect to
accounting for financial guarantee insurance should be provided. In
June 2005, the FASB decided to add to its agenda a project to consider
the accounting by insurers for financial guarantee insurance. As part of
this project, the FASB is considering several aspects of the insurance
accounting model for financial guarantee insurers, including claims
liability recognition, premium recognition and the related amortization
of deferred policy acquisition costs. When the FASB or the SEC reaches
a conclusion on this issue, the Company and its financial guarantor
peers may be required to change some aspects of its loss reserving poli-
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cies and the potential changes could extend to premium and expense
recognition. The Company cannot currently assess how the FASB and
SEC staff ’s ultimate resolution of this issue will impact its loss reserving
policy or the effect it might have on recognizing premium revenue and
policy acquisition costs. Until the issue is resolved, the Company
intends to continue to apply its existing policy with respect to the establishment of both case basis and unallocated loss reserves and the recognition of premium revenue and policy acquisition costs. A further
description of the Company’s loss reserving policy is included in “Note
3: Significant Accounting Policies” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
RISK MANAGEMENT In an effort to mitigate losses, MBIA is
regularly involved in the ongoing remediation of credits that may
involve, among other things, waivers or renegotiations of financial
covenants or triggers, waivers of contractual provisions, the granting of
consents, and the taking of various other remedial actions. The nature
of any remedial action is based on the type of the insured issue and the
nature and scope of the event giving rise to the remediation. In most
cases, as part of any such remedial activity, MBIA is able to improve its
security position and to obtain concessions from the issuer of the
insured bonds. From time to time, the issuer of an MBIA-insured
obligation may, with the consent of MBIA, restructure the insured
obligation by extending the term, increasing or decreasing the par
amount or decreasing the related interest rate with MBIA insuring the
restructured obligation. If, as the result of the restructuring, MBIA estimates that it will suffer an ultimate loss on the restructured obligation,
MBIA will record a case basis loss reserve for the restructured obligation
or, if it has already recorded a case basis loss reserve, it will re-evaluate
the impact of the restructuring on the recorded reserve and adjust the
amount of the reserve as appropriate.
REINSURANCE Reinsurance enables the Company to cede exposure for purposes of increasing its capacity to write new business while
complying with its single risk and credit guidelines. The rating agencies
continuously review reinsurers providing coverage to the financial guarantee industry. When a reinsurer is downgraded, less capital credit is
given to a financial guarantee provider under rating agency models.
Over the past several years, most of MBIA’s reinsurers have been downgraded and others remain under review. Any reduced capital credit associated with reinsurer downgrades has not and is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the Company. The Company generally
retains the right to reassume the business ceded to reinsurers under certain circumstances, including rating downgrades of its reinsurers. The
Company also remains liable on a primary basis for all reinsured risk,
and although MBIA believes that its reinsurers remain capable of meeting their obligations, there can be no assurance of such in the future.
As of December 31, 2005, the aggregate amount of insured par
ceded by MBIA to reinsurers under reinsurance agreements was $73.5
billion. Additionally, the Company has other reimbursement agreements not accounted for as reinsurance, primarily with a Single-A rated

reinsurer, covering $7.2 billion of insured par. The following table displays the percentage ceded to and reinsurance recoverable from reinsurers by rating levels:

Reinsurers

Standard &
Poor’s
Rating

Percentage Reinsurance
Moody’s
of Total Recoverable
Rating Par Ceded (in thousands)

Channel Reinsurance Ltd. AAA
Aaa
Assured Guaranty Corp.
AAA
Aa1
Ram Reinsurance
Company, Ltd.
AAA
Aa3
Ambac Assurance
Corporation
AAA
Aaa
Mitsui Sumitomo
Insurance Company Ltd.
AAAa3
Swiss Reinsurance
Company, Zurich,
Switzerland
AA
Aa2
Radian Asset Assurance Inc. AA
Aa3
Assured Guaranty Re Ltd.
AA
Aa2
Sompo Japan Insurance Inc. AAAa3
Transatlantic Reinsurance
Company
AAAa3
Other (1)
A or above A1or above
Not Currently Rated
Total
(1) Several

45.19% $ 4,546
17.73
23,947
12.20

4,386

9.40

—

6.36

2

2.81
1.61
0.82
0.81

—
7,838
—
2

0.59
2.40
0.08

1,620
16,347
277

100.00% $58,965
reinsurers within this category are not rated by Moody’s.

While Channel Reinsurance Ltd. (Channel Re) continues to be
a Triple-A rated reinsurer of MBIA, S&P has revised their outlook on
Channel Re from stable to negative in 2005. MBIA does not expect
S&P’s revised outlook on Channel Re to have a material negative
impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
Additionally, MBIA owned an equity interest of 17.4% and 11.4% in
Channel Re and RAM Holdings Inc., the holding company of Ram
Reinsurance Company, Ltd., respectively, at December 31, 2005.
POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Expenses that vary with and are primarily related to the production of
the Company’s insurance business (policy acquisition costs) are
deferred and recognized over the period in which the related premiums
are earned. If an insured bond issue is refunded and the related premium is earned early, the associated acquisition costs previously
deferred are also recognized early.
Annually, MBIA reviews its insurance-related expenses to determine if there have been any changes in its business or cost structure that
would materially change the amount of costs accounted for as policy
acquisition costs. If so, the Company conducts a policy acquisition cost
study to determine the amount of insurance costs that relate to acquiring new insurance policies and that are deferrable under GAAP. MBIA
completed its latest study in July 2005. The current policy acquisition
cost study, which was effective beginning with the third quarter of
2005, resulted in a decrease of approximately $9.6 million in deferred
policy acquisition costs for the year with a corresponding increase in
insurance operating expenses. The change was principally driven by a
reduction in the rate at which compensation costs associated with
acquiring new insurance policies are deferred. The Company expects
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the quarterly change to be in the $5 million range going forward. However, policy acquisition costs and operating expenses will be influenced
by the level of actual future expenses that qualify for deferral.
MBIA will recognize a premium deficiency if the sum of the
expected loss and loss adjustment expenses and unamortized policy
acquisition costs exceed the related unearned premiums. If MBIA was
to have a premium deficiency that is greater than unamortized acquisition costs, the unamortized acquisition costs would be reduced by a
charge to expense and a liability would be established for any remaining
deficiency. Although GAAP permits the inclusion of anticipated investment income when determining a premium deficiency, MBIA currently
does not include this in making its determination.
The Company’s insurance expenses, as well as its expense ratio,
are shown in the following table:
Percent Change

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

In millions

2005

2004

2003

Gross expenses

$266

$258

$257

3%

1%

Amortization of deferred
acquisition costs
Operating expenses

$ 67
143

$ 67
122

$ 60
119

0%
17%

10%
3%

Total insurance operating
expenses

$210

$189

$179

11%

5%

Expense ratio

24.9%

22.2%

23.2%

In 2005, the amortization of deferred acquisition costs remained
flat compared with 2004, in line with insurance premiums earned. The
amortization of deferred acquisition costs increased 10% in 2004 compared with 2003 resulting from an increase in related premium earnings. At December 31, 2005 and 2004 there was an increase in the ratio
of deferred expenses carried as assets on the balance sheet to deferred
revenues carried as liabilities on the balance sheet plus the present value
of future installment premiums. The increasing ratio in 2004 and 2005
reflects higher costs associated with acquiring new policies relative to
the smaller growth in deferred premiums.
Operating expenses increased 17% to $143 million in 2005
from $122 million in 2004. This increase was largely due to loss prevention costs, costs associated with the Company’s CPCT securities,
consulting services and a decrease in the rate at which compensation
costs are deferred as policy acquisition costs. In 2004, operating
expenses increased 3% to $122 million from $119 million in 2003
largely due to higher compensation costs related to the expansion of the
Company’s global operations, premiums related to the renewal of directors and officers’ liability insurance and loss prevention costs.
Financial guarantee insurance companies use the expense ratio
(expenses divided by net premiums earned) as a measure of expense
management. The Company’s 2005 expense ratio of 24.9% is higher
than the 2004 ratio of 22.2% and the 2003 ratio of 23.2% as a result of
the 17% increase in operating expenses.
VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES The Company provides structured funding and credit enhancement services to global finance clients
through the use of certain MBIA-administered, bankruptcy-remote
special purpose vehicles (SPVs) and through third-party SPVs. Thirdparty SPVs are used in a variety of structures guaranteed or managed by
MBIA, whereby the Company has risks analogous to those of MBIAadministered SPVs. The Company has determined that such SPVs fall
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within the definition of a variable interest entity (VIE) under FASB
Interpretation No. (FIN) 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities (Revised).” Under the provisions of FIN 46(R), MBIA must
determine whether it has a variable interest in a VIE and if so, whether
that variable interest would cause MBIA to be the primary beneficiary.
The primary beneficiary is the entity that will absorb the majority of
the expected losses, receive the majority of the expected residual
returns, or both, of the VIE and is required to consolidate the VIE.
In the third quarter of 2004, the Company began consolidating
two VIEs established in connection with the Capital Asset Research
Funding Series 1997A and Series 1998A tax lien securitizations to
which the Company provided financial guarantees. The assets of these
entities, which are principally reported within “Other assets” on
MBIA’s consolidated balance sheet, totaled $2.5 million at December
31, 2005 and $16.8 million at December 31, 2004. Liabilities of the
securitizations substantially represented amounts due to MBIA,
which were eliminated in consolidation. Additionally, the Company
consolidates certain third-party VIEs as a result of financial guarantees
provided by the insurance operations. Third-party VIEs’ assets and
liabilities are primarily reported in “Investments held-to-maturity” and
“Variable interest entity floating rate notes,” respectively, on the face
of the Company’s balance sheet. The assets and liabilities of these
VIEs each totaled $1.3 billion at December 31, 2005 and $600.5 million at December 31, 2004. Consolidation of such VIEs does not
increase MBIA’s exposure above that already committed to in its insurance policies.
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
The Company’s investment management services operations provide an
array of products and services to the public, not-for-profit and corporate sectors. Such products and services are provided primarily through
wholly owned subsidiaries of MBIA Asset Management, LLC (MBIAAML) and include cash management, discretionary asset management
and fund administration services and investment agreement, mediumterm note and commercial paper programs related to funding assets for
third-party clients and for investment purposes. The investment management services operations are comprised of three operating segments:
asset/liability products, which include investment agreements and
medium-term notes (MTNs) not related to the conduit programs;
advisory services, which consist of third-party and related-party feebased asset management; and conduit programs. During the third
quarter of 2004, the Company completed the sale of the assets of 1838
Investment Advisors, LLC, which comprised the Company’s equity
advisory services segment. This segment has been reported as a discontinued operation in the Company’s financial statements. See “Note 16:
Discontinued Operations” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information.
In 2005, investment management services’ revenues of $910
million increased 69% over 2004. Excluding realized gains and losses
from investment securities and gains and losses on derivative instruments and foreign exchange, revenues of $866 million increased 57%
over 2004. The increase in revenues was primarily attributable to
growth in the Company’s asset/liability products segment and, to a
lesser extent, higher yielding conduit segment assets. Advisory services’
revenues were also favorable compared to 2004 as a result of growth in
managed assets. Total investment management services’ expenses in
2005 were $780 million, up 59% compared with 2004. This increase
was primarily driven by higher interest expense from the growth in
asset/liability products activity and higher yielding conduit liabilities,
both of which were consistent with the growth in revenues.
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In 2004, investment management services’ total revenues of
$538 million increased 31% compared with 2003. Excluding net realized gains or losses and net gains or losses on derivative instruments and
foreign exchange, 2004 total revenues increased $148 million, or 37%,
compared with 2003 as a result of increased activity in asset/liability
products and third-party management of CDO transactions in the
advisory services segment. However, profitability in the pooled investment business declined compared with 2003 due to lower fees and an
unfavorable geographic mix. Total investment management services’
expenses in 2004 were $491 million, up 37% compared with 2003 due
to higher interest expense from increased asset/liability products activity, which was consistent with the growth in revenues.
Net realized gains from investment securities in the investment
management services operations were $1 million in 2005 compared
with net realized losses of $4 million in 2004 and net realized gains of
$17 million in 2003. Net realized gains and losses in the investment
management services operations were generated from the ongoing
management of its investment portfolios.
Net gains on derivative instruments and foreign exchange from
the investment management services operations in 2005 were $43
million compared with net losses of $10 million and $9 million in
2004 and 2003, respectively. The net gains in 2005 were primarily generated from an increase in U.S. dollar interest rates resulting in higher
market values on pay fixed/receive floating U.S. dollar interest rate
swaps associated with the asset/liability products and conduit programs. Such swaps economically hedge against interest rate movements
but do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133.
Similarly, the net losses on derivative instruments and foreign exchange
in 2004 and 2003 were largely due to movements in interest rates on
interest rate swaps associated with the asset/liability products and conduit programs.
Fixed-income ending assets under management as of December
31, 2005, which do not include conduit assets, were $44.2 billion, 13%
above the 2004 year-end level and 29% above the 2003 year-end level.
Conduit assets are held to their contractual maturities and are originated and managed differently from those held as available-for-sale by
the Company or those managed for third parties. The following table
summarizes the consolidated investment management services’ results
and assets under management over the last three years:
Percent Change

In millions

2005

2004

2003

Interest and fees
$
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on
derivative instruments
and foreign exchange

866 $
1

552 $
(4)

404
17

43

(10)

(9)

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses

910
705
75

538
414
77

412
302
55

780
130 $

491
47 $

357
55

Total expenses
Pre-tax income
Ending assets under
management:
Fixed-income

$

$44,246 $39,129 $34,408

n/m – Percentage change not meaningful.

2005
vs.
2004

2004
vs.
2003

57% 37%
n/m
n/m

n/m
69%
70%
(4)%

(8)%
31%
37%
40%

59% 37%
174% (13)%

13%

14%

The following provides a summary of each of the investment
management services’ businesses by segment. See “Note 15: Business
Segments” for a tabular presentation of the results of the investment
management services’ segments.
Asset/liability products’ pre-tax income, excluding realized gains
and losses from investment securities and gains and losses on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange, totaled $56.5 million in 2005, up
48% over 2004. At December 31, 2005, principal and accrued interest
outstanding on investment agreement and medium-term note obligations and securities sold under agreements to repurchase totaled $15.7
billion compared to $12.5 billion at December 31, 2004. Assets supporting these agreements had market values of $15.9 billion and $12.6
billion at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
These assets are comprised of high quality securities with an average
credit quality rating of Double-A. In 2004, asset/liability products’ pretax income, excluding net realized losses and foreign currency and
derivative losses, totaled $38.1 million compared with $31.3 million in
2003, an increase of 22%.
Advisory services’ pre-tax income, excluding realized gains and
losses from investment securities and gains and losses on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange, totaled $19.6 million in 2005, up
19% over 2004. Third-party ending assets under management were
$17.9 billion and $16.0 billion at December 31, 2005 and December
31, 2004, respectively. The market values of assets related to the Company’s insurance and corporate investment portfolios managed by the
investment management services operations at December 31, 2005
were $10.2 billion, slightly down from the balance at December 31,
2004 of $10.3 billion. In 2004, advisory services pre-tax income,
excluding realized gains and losses from investment securities and gains
and losses on derivative instruments and foreign exchange, totaled
$16.5 million compared with $17.3 million in 2003, a 4% decrease.
Conduit program pre-tax income, excluding gains and losses
on derivative instruments and foreign exchange, totaled $10.7 million
in 2005 compared with $7.6 million in 2004 and $0.4 million in 2003.
Certain of MBIA’s consolidated subsidiaries have invested in MBIA’s
conduit debt obligations or have received compensation for services
provided to MBIA’s conduits. As such, MBIA has eliminated intercompany transactions with its conduits from its balance sheet and income
statement. After the elimination of such intercompany assets and
liabilities, conduit investments and conduit debt obligations were $4.5
billion and $4.2 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2005. The
difference between the investments and debt obligations is primarily
the result of the elimination of conduit debt owned by other MBIA
subsidiaries. The effect of the elimination on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet is a reduction of fixed-maturity investments,
representing investments in conduit medium-term notes by other
MBIA subsidiaries, with a corresponding reduction of conduit
medium-term notes.
In October 2005, Moody’s announced that it is undertaking a
review of the non-core activities of financial guaranty insurance companies in order to assess the impact of such activities on the overall credit
profile of financial guarantors. In its announcement, Moody’s identified
non-core activities as including investment management and related
services and sponsored medium-term note programs. While Moody’s
acknowledged that well managed non-core activities can provide certain benefits, it asserted that such activities introduce distinct risks that
may contribute to stress at financial guaranty insurance companies.
Moody’s also noted that significant growth in non-core activities could
negatively impact the credit ratings assigned to affected financial guarantors if such growth occurred prior to publishing its findings. Moody’s
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expects to publish a report highlighting its findings upon completion of
its review. While MBIA has had discussions with Moody’s with respect
to its review, the Company cannot predict with certainty the outcome
of the review or the effect the outcome will have on MBIA. However,
MBIA does not anticipate that the outcome of the review will have a
material impact on the Company’s ability to grow its investment management services operations.
MUNICIPAL SERVICES
MBIA’s municipal services operations are consolidated under MBIA
MuniServices Company (MBIA MuniServices) and provide revenue
enhancement services and products to public-sector clients nationwide,
consisting of discovery, audit, collections/recovery and information
(data) services. The municipal services operations also include Capital
Asset, a servicer of delinquent tax certificates. MBIA currently insures
an unconsolidated Capital Asset securitization, which matures in 2008
and has an outstanding balance of $117 million or $49 million net of
existing loss reserves of $68 million. This securitization was structured
through the sale by Capital Asset of tax liens to an off-balance sheet
qualifying special purpose entity that was established in 1999 in connection with the securitization.
In 2005, the municipal services operations reported pre-tax
income of $2.1 million, compared with pre-tax income of $1.6 million
in 2004. Revenues decreased by 10% and expenses decreased by 13%
due to a decline in the delinquent tax certificate portfolio serviced by
Capital Asset as a result of tax certificate redemptions. In addition, revenue enhancement services’ margins improved in 2005 compared with
2004. Excluding gains and losses on investment securities and derivatives instruments, operating income was $2.1 million in 2005 compared to $1.9 million in 2004 and $1.0 million in 2003.
CORPORATE
The corporate operations consist of net investment income, net realized
gains and losses on holding company investment assets, interest expense
and corporate expenses. The corporate operations incurred a loss of
$173 million, $84 million and $59 million for the years ended 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.
In 2005, net investment income increased 97% to $16.6 million, from $8.5 million in 2004. The increase was driven by substantially higher invested assets and a shift to longer term higher yielding
investments. The increase in the invested assets resulted from additional
debt issued by MBIA Inc. and dividends paid by MBIA Corp. to MBIA
Inc. in the fourth quarter of 2004, somewhat offset by share repurchases of the Company’s common stock during the first half of 2005. In
2004, net investment income decreased 6% to $8.5 million, from $9.0
million in 2003. The decrease resulted from the Company maintaining
a short duration on holding company investments despite an average
asset base growth of 35%.
Net realized losses from investment securities in the corporate
operations were $1.0 million in 2005 and $0.5 million in 2004 compared with net realized gains of $15 million in 2003. Net realized gains
and losses for all periods presented were generated from the ongoing
management of the investment portfolios.
The corporate operations incurred interest expense of $91 million, $75 million and $68 million for the years ended 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The increase in interest expense from year to year
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primarily resulted from the issuance of $350 million of debt, partially
offset by the retirement of $50 million of debt, in the fourth quarter of
2004. Additionally, $100 million of debt was retired in the fourth quarter of 2005.
Corporate expenses were $97 million in 2005 compared with
$18 million in 2004. The increase was principally due to a $75 million
accrual of estimated penalties and disgorgement related to the potential
settlement of regulatory investigations, as well as additional legal and
consulting costs associated with the investigations. In 2004, corporate
expenses increased 18% from 2003 principally due to costs associated
with a Singapore-based insurer in which the Company indirectly
invested in and an increase in audit fees.
TAXES
MBIA’s tax policy is to optimize after-tax income by maintaining the
appropriate mix of taxable and tax-exempt investments. In general, the
effective tax rate fluctuates from time to time as the Company manages
its investment portfolio on an after-tax total return basis. The effective
tax rate for 2005, including tax related to discontinued operations,
increased to 29.9% from 28.4% for 2004. The increase was primarily
due to the accrual of regulatory penalties, which are not deductible for
purposes of calculating the Company’s Federal income taxes. The effective tax rate for 2004 of 28.4% decreased from 29.3% for 2003 as a
result of foreign tax credits available from international operations.
On October 22, 2004, The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004
(the Act) was introduced and signed into law. The Act has a provision
which allows for a special one-time dividends received deduction of
85% on the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to the U.S. parent
with limitations. The Company has completed its evaluation of the
repatriation provision and has determined this special one-time dividend will not be claimed.

CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Company carefully manages its capital resources to minimize its
cost of capital while maintaining appropriate claims-paying resources to
sustain its Triple-A claims-paying ratings. Capital resources are defined
by the Company as total shareholders’ equity, long-term debt issued for
general corporate purposes and various soft capital credit facilities. At
December 31, 2005, total shareholders’ equity was $6.6 billion and
total long-term debt was $1.2 billion. The Company uses debt financing to lower its overall cost of capital. MBIA maintains debt at levels it
considers to be prudent based on its cash flow and total capital (shareholders’ equity plus long-term debt). The following table shows the
Company’s long-term debt and the ratio used to measure it:

Long-term debt (in millions)
Long-term debt to total capital

2005

2004

2003

$1,210
16%

$1,333
17%

$1,022
14%

In August 1999, the Company announced that its board of
directors had authorized the repurchase of 11.25 million shares of common stock of the Company, after adjusting for the 2001 stock split.
The Company began the repurchase program in the fourth quarter of
1999. In July 2004, the Company completed the repurchase of all
11.25 million shares at an average price of $44.08 per share and
received authorization from its board of directors to repurchase 1 million shares under a new repurchase program. On August 5, 2004, the
Company’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of an additional 14 million shares of common stock in connection with the new
repurchase program. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had
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repurchased a total of 10.0 million shares under the current plan at an
average price of $57.25 per share. A total of 5.9 million shares were
repurchased in 2005 at an average price of $57.77 per share, all of
which were repurchased in the first and second quarters of the year.
The Company has various soft capital credit facilities, such as
lines of credit and equity-based facilities at its disposal, which further
support its claims-paying resources. At December 31, 2005, MBIA
Corp. maintained a $450 million limited recourse standby line of credit
facility, reduced from $700 million at December 31, 2004, with a
group of major Triple-A rated banks to provide funds for the payment
of claims in excess of the greater of $500 million of cumulative claims,
net of recoveries, or 5% of average annual debt service with respect to
public finance transactions. The agreement is for a ten-year term,
amended from a seven-year term, which expires in March 2015.
MBIA Corp. has access to $400 million of CPCT securities
issued by eight trusts, which were created for the primary purpose of
issuing CPCT securities and investing the proceeds in high quality
commercial paper or short-term U.S. Government obligations. MBIA
Corp. has a put option to sell to the trusts the perpetual preferred stock
of MBIA Corp. If MBIA Corp. exercises its put option, the trusts will
transfer the proceeds to MBIA Corp. in exchange for the preferred
stock that will be held by the trusts. The trusts are vehicles for providing
MBIA Corp. the opportunity to access new capital at its sole discretion
through the exercise of the put options. The trusts are rated AA and
Aa2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively. To date, MBIA Corp. has not
exercised its put options under any of these arrangements.
From time to time, MBIA accesses the capital markets to support the growth of its businesses. As such, MBIA filed a $500 million
registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC utilizing a “shelf ” registration process. In November 2004, the Company completed its $350
million debt issuance of senior notes and currently has in effect a shelf
registration with the SEC for $150 million. This shelf registration permits the Company to issue various debt and equity securities described
in the prospectus filed as part of the registration statement.

paid regular dividends of $95 million and $372 million, respectively, to
MBIA Inc. Additionally, MBIA Corp. declared and paid regular dividends of $280 million to MBIA Inc. in February 2006.
In addition to its regular dividends, in the fourth quarter of
2004 MBIA Corp. declared and paid a special dividend of $375 million
to MBIA Inc., which was approved by the NYSID. MBIA Corp.’s
capital position, relative to its insured exposure, had improved substantially over the past several years as a result of improved premium rates
and a higher quality insured portfolio, exceeding both the capital
required by New York State insurance law and the rating agencies for
purposes of maintaining its Triple-A ratings. The proceeds have been
used primarily for share repurchases and general liquidity and other
corporate purposes.
The Company has significant liquidity supporting its businesses.
At the end of 2005, cash equivalents and short-term investments
totaled $1.9 billion. If, for any reason, significant cash flow reductions
occur in any of its businesses, MBIA has alternatives for meeting ongoing cash requirements. They include selling or pledging its fixedincome investments in its investment portfolio, tapping existing
liquidity facilities and new borrowings.
As a part of MBIA’s external borrowing capacity, it maintained
two bank lines totaling $500 million as of December 31, 2004. These
bank lines were maintained with a group of highly rated global banks
and were comprised of a renewable $167 million facility with a term of
364 days and a $333 million facility with a five-year term maturing in
April 2009. In April 2005, the $167 million facility expired on its
stated expiration date and the $333 million facility was increased to
$500 million and the term was extended one year to April 2010. During 2005, there was no balance outstanding under the facility.
The available-for-sale investment portfolio provides a high
degree of liquidity, since it is comprised of readily marketable highquality fixed-income securities and short-term investments. At year-end
2005, the fair value of the consolidated available-for-sale investment
portfolio was $26.4 billion, as shown in the following table:
Percent
Change

LIQUIDITY
Cash flow needs at the parent company level are primarily for dividends
to its shareholders and interest payments on its debt. Liquidity and
operating cash requirements of the Company are met by its cash flows
generated from operations, which were more than adequate in 2005.
Management of the Company believes that cash flows from operations
will be sufficient to meet the Company’s liquidity and operating cash
requirements for the foreseeable future.
Cash requirements have historically been met by upstreaming
dividend payments from MBIA Corp. to MBIA Inc. In 2005, the
Company’s operating cash flow from continuing operations totaled
$781 million compared with $889 million in 2004 and $1.0 billion in
2003. The majority of net cash provided by operating activities is generated from premium writings and investment income in the Company’s insurance operations.
Under New York State insurance law, without prior approval of
the superintendent of the state insurance department, financial guarantee insurance companies can pay dividends from earned surplus subject
to retaining a minimum capital requirement. In MBIA Corp.’s case,
regular dividends in any 12-month period cannot be greater than 10%
of policyholders’ surplus as shown on MBIA Corp.’s latest filed statutory financial statements. In 2005 and 2004, MBIA Corp. declared and

In millions

2005
vs.
2004

2005

2004

$ 9,944
310

$ 9,205
531

8%
(42)%

Fair value
Investment management
services operations:
Amortized cost
Unrealized net gain (loss)

$10,254

$ 9,736

5%

$15,684
286

$12,209
398

28%
(28)%

Fair value
Corporate operations:
Amortized cost
Unrealized net gain (loss)

$15,970

$12,607

27%

$

166
(1)

$

731
4

(77)%
n/m

$

165

$

735

(78)%

$25,794
595

$22,145
933

16%
(36)%

$26,389

$23,078

14%

Available-for-sale investments:
Insurance operations:
Amortized cost
Unrealized net gain (loss)

Fair value
Total available-for-sale portfolio:
Amortized cost
Unrealized net gain (loss)
Fair value
n/m – Percentage change not meaningful.
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The increase in the amortized cost of insurance-related availablefor-sale investments in 2005 was the result of positive cash flow from
operations. The increase in the amortized cost of available-for-sale
investments in the investment management services operations was the
result of growth in the Company’s asset/liability products program.
Corporate investments decreased in 2005 compared with 2004 due to a
decrease in dividends received from the insurance operations while
share repurchase activity continued during the first half of 2005.
The fair value of the Company’s investments is based on quoted
market prices, if available. If a quoted market price is not available, fair
value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. Differences between fair value and amortized cost arise primarily as a result
of changes in interest rates occurring after a fixed-income security is
purchased, although other factors influence fair value, including creditrelated actions, supply and demand forces and other market factors.
When the Company holds its available-for-sale investments to matu-

Insurance
% of
Fixed-Income
Investments

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

rity, unrealized gains or losses currently recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income in the shareholders’ equity section of the balance sheet will decrease over time as the investments approach maturity.
As a result, the Company expects to realize a value substantially equal to
amortized cost. However, when investments are sold prior to maturity,
the Company will realize any gains or losses in current net income. The
Conduit portfolios are considered held-to-maturity, as the Company
has the ability and intent to hold these investments to their contractual
maturity. Therefore, these portfolios are reported at amortized cost and
are not adjusted to reflect unrealized changes in fair value.
The weighted-average credit quality of the Company’s fixedincome portfolios has been maintained at Double-A since its inception.
The quality distribution of the Company’s fixed-maturity investment
portfolios, excluding short-term investments, based on ratings from
Moody’s as of December 31, 2005 is presented in the following table.
Alternate ratings sources, such as S&P, have been used for a small percentage of securities that are not rated by Moody’s.

Investment
Management Services
% of
Fixed-Income
Fair Value
Investments

Investments
Held-to-Maturity
% of
Fixed-Income
Fair Value
Investments

Total

In millions

Fair Value

Aaa
Aa
A
Baa
Not rated

$6,454
1,843
913
50
5

70%
19%
10%
1%
—

$ 9,366
2,902
2,873
71
—

62%
19%
19%
—
—

$4,456
479
800
—
—

78%
8%
14%
—
—

$20,276
5,224
4,586
121
5

67%
17%
16%
—
—

Total

$9,265

100%

$15,212

100%

$5,735

100%

$30,212

100%

MBIA’s consolidated investment portfolio includes investments
that are insured by MBIA Corp. (MBIA Insured Investments). At
December 31, 2005, MBIA Insured Investments, excluding conduit
investments, at fair value represented $4.4 billion or 14% of total
investments. Conduit investments represented $4.5 billion or 14% of
total investments. Without giving effect to the MBIA guarantee of the
MBIA Insured Investments in the consolidated investment portfolio, as
of December 31, 2005, based on the actual or estimated underlying ratings (i) the weighted average rating of the investment portfolio would
be in the Aa range, (ii) the weighted average rating of just the MBIA
Insured Investments in the investment portfolio would be in the A
Underlying Ratings Scale
In millions

Fair Value

% of
Fixed-Income
Investments

range and (iii) less than 1% of the investment portfolio would be rated
below investment grade.
The underlying ratings of the MBIA Insured Investments as of
December 31, 2005 are reflected in the following table. Amounts represent the fair value of such investments including the benefit of the
MBIA guarantee. The ratings in the table below are the lower underlying rating assigned by S&P or Moody’s when an underlying rating
exists from either rating service, or when an external underlying rating
is not available, the underlying rating is based on the Company’s best
estimate of the rating of such investment.

Insurance
Portfolio

Investment
Management
Services
Portfolio

Held-toMaturity
Investment
Portfolio

Total

Aaa
Aa
A
Baa
Below investment grade

$

10
234
624
286
107

$ 479
209
966
1,291
155

$ 214
432
1,812
1,998
—

$ 703
875
3,402
3,575
262

Total

$1,261

$3,100

$4,456

$8,817

Typically, conduit programs involve the use of rating agencies in
assessing the quality of asset purchases and in assigning ratings to the
various programs funded through the conduits. All transactions currently funded in the conduits had an underlying rating of at least
investment grade by Moody’s and S&P prior to funding. The weighted
average underlying rating for transactions currently funded in the conduits was A- by S&P and A3 by Moody’s at the time such transactions
were funded. MBIA estimates that the current weighted average underlying rating of all outstanding conduit transactions was A- by S&P and
A3 by Moody’s as of December 31, 2005.
36

The Company generates significant liquidity from its operations, as described above. Because of its risk management policies and
procedures, diversification and reinsurance, the Company believes that
the occurrence of an event that would significantly adversely affect liquidity is unlikely.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2005. For information on the Company’s financial guarantee exposure see “Note 21: Net Insurance In Force” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
As of December 31, 2005
Total

Less than
1 Year

1-3 Years

3-5 Years

More than
5 Years

Investment agreements
Commercial paper
Medium-term notes
Variable interest entity floating rate notes
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Long-term debt
Gross insurance claim obligations

$11,496,336
861,979
8,636,276
1,280,160
646,343
1,225,737
655,451

$2,948,794
861,979
2,167,872
120,405
599,676
14,014
147,245

$2,286,956
—
2,497,416
75,772
46,667
4,550
323,297

$2,150,588
—
1,071,372
60,537
—
—
65,965

$4,109,998
—
2,899,616
1,023,446
—
1,207,173
118,944

Total

$24,802,282

$6,859,985

$5,234,658

$3,348,462

$9,359,177

In thousands

Investment agreements, commercial paper, medium-term notes,
variable interest entity floating rate notes, securities sold under agreement to repurchase and long-term debt include accrued interest and
exclude premiums or discounts and estimates of future interest payments. Gross insurance claim obligations represent the future value of
payments MBIA expects to make, before estimated recoveries and reinsurance, under actual or probable insurance policy claims. The discounted value of such actual or estimated claims, after estimated
recoveries, is reported as case basis reserves within loss and loss adjustment expense reserves on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

MARKET RISK
In general, market risk relates to changes in the value of financial instruments that arise from adverse movements in factors such as interest
rates, credit spreads, equity prices and foreign exchange rates. MBIA is
exposed mainly to changes in interest rates that affect the fair value of
its financial instruments, namely investment securities, investment
agreement liabilities, debentures and certain derivative transactions.
The Company’s investment portfolio holdings are primarily U.S. dollar-denominated fixed-income securities including municipal bonds,
U.S. Government bonds, mortgage-backed securities, collateralized
mortgage obligations, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities. In
periods of rising and/or volatile interest rates, profitability could be
adversely affected should the Company have to liquidate these securities. Some mortgage-backed securities are subject to significant prepayment risk in periods of declining interest rates.
MBIA minimizes its exposure to interest rate risk through active
portfolio management to ensure a proper mix of the types of securities
held and to stagger the maturities of its fixed-income securities. In addition, the Company enters into various swap agreements that hedge the
risk of loss due to interest rate and foreign currency volatility.
Interest rate sensitivity can be estimated by projecting a hypothetical instantaneous increase or decrease in interest rates. As of
December 31, 2005, a hypothetical increase in interest rates of 100 and
300 basis points would have resulted in an after-tax decrease in the net
fair value of the Company’s financial instruments of approximately
$322.2 million and $927.7 million, respectively. A decrease in interest
rates of 100 and 300 basis points would have resulted in an after-tax
increase in the net fair value of the Company’s financial instruments of
approximately $318.3 million and $952.2 million, respectively.

The effects of changes in investment grade corporate credit
spreads on the fair value of the Company’s credit derivative transactions
will also impact earnings. These transactions primarily consist of synthetic structured credit derivatives guaranteed by MBIA Corp., as well
as single name credit default swaps directly entered into by the investment management services operations as part of their asset management activities. Sensitivity to changes in credit spreads for these
transactions can be estimated by projecting a hypothetical instantaneous shift in credit spreads. As of December 31, 2005, a hypothetical
instantaneous increase in investment grade corporate credit spreads of
25, 50 and 75 basis points would have resulted in an after-tax decrease
in the net fair value of the Company’s credit derivatives of approximately $6.2 million, $19.5 million and $29.5 million, respectively.
Conversely, a hypothetical instantaneous decrease in investment grade
corporate credit spreads of 25, 50 and 75 basis points would have
resulted in an after-tax increase in the net fair value of the Company’s
credit derivatives of approximately $3.2 million, $3.5 million and $3.3
million, respectively. Under SFAS 133, if such hypothetical shifts in
credit spreads were to occur, the resulting change in the net fair value of
the Company’s credit derivatives would be recorded within the Company’s income statement.
Since the Company is able and primarily expects to hold its
fixed-maturity securities and derivative transactions to maturity or until
such time unrealized losses reverse, it does not expect to recognize any
adverse impact to income or cash flows under the above scenarios.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management of MBIA Inc. and its subsidiaries is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
MBIA’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; (2) provide reasonable assurances that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and that receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; and, (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Company’s financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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As of December 31, 2005, management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment and those criteria, management has determined that the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005 was effective.
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 has
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears
herein.

Gary C. Dunton
Chief Executive Officer

Nicholas Ferreri
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of MBIA Inc.:
We have completed integrated audits of MBIA Inc.’s 2005 and 2004
consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, and an audit of its 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our
opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.
Consolidated Financial Statements
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of MBIA Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

New York, NY
March 8, 2006
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December 31, 2005

December 31, 2004

$23,747,204

$19,679,905

5,765,182

7,540,218

729,072
1,678,281
234,927

730,870
2,405,192
261,865

32,154,666
233,046
396,048
427,111
407,614
58,965
79,406
109,275
74,787
326,867
293,609

30,618,050
366,236
312,208
406,035
434,968
34,610
79,406
114,692
67,205
288,564
314,321

$34,561,394

$33,036,295

$ 3,185,200
721,502
10,806,277
859,997
7,542,416
1,280,160
646,343
58,745
1,210,405
569,536
20,379
83,369
384,611
600,810

$ 3,211,181
748,869
8,678,768
2,598,655
6,943,840
600,505
647,104
58,745
1,332,540
599,627
26,780
94,609
527,455
408,820

27,969,750

26,477,498

—

—

ASSETS
Investments:
Fixed-maturity securities held as available-for-sale, at fair value
(amortized cost $23,189,684 and $18,802,894)
Investments held-to-maturity, at amortized cost
(fair value $5,734,335 and $7,535,787)
Investment agreement portfolio pledged as collateral,
at fair value (amortized cost $712,054 and $713,704)
Short-term investments, at amortized cost (which approximates fair value)
Other investments
Total investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Deferred acquisition costs
Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Goodwill
Property and equipment, at cost (less accumulated depreciation of $121,165 and $108,848)
Receivable for investments sold
Derivative assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deferred premium revenue
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
Investment agreements
Commercial paper
Medium-term notes
Variable interest entity floating rate notes
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes, net
Deferred fee revenue
Payable for investments purchased
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, par value $1 per share; authorized shares — 10,000,000; issued and
outstanding — none
Common stock, par value $1 per share; authorized shares — 400,000,000; issued shares —
155,601,779 and 155,607,737
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred income tax of $238,881 and $321,565
Unearned compensation — restricted stock
Treasury stock, at cost — 22,554,528 and 16,216,405 shares

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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156,602
1,479,447
5,747,171
399,381
(43,857)
(1,147,100)

155,608
1,410,799
5,187,484
618,606
(34,686)
(779,014)

6,591,644

6,558,797

$34,561,394

$33,036,295
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Consolidated Statements of Income

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

Years ended December 31

In thousands except per share amounts

2005

2004

2003

INSURANCE
Revenues:
Gross premiums written
Ceded premiums
Net premiums written
Increase in deferred premium revenue
Premiums earned (net of ceded premiums of $151,101, $146,537 and $192,647)
Net investment income
Advisory fees
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and foreign exchange
Total insurance revenues
Expenses:
Losses and loss adjustment
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs
Operating
Total insurance expenses
Insurance income

$ 984,908
(127,107)

$1,116,915
(158,831)

$1,268,808
(193,889)

857,801
(15,059)
842,742
491,857
28,235
(8,075)
(4,436)
1,350,323

958,084
(108,414)
849,670
474,415
41,539
108,874
6,627
1,481,125

1,074,919
(301,925)
772,994
437,696
59,719
48,157
104,030
1,422,596

84,274
66,577
143,378
294,229
1,056,094

84,753
66,412
122,309
273,474
1,207,651

77,114
60,491
118,584
256,189
1,166,407

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Revenues
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and foreign exchange
Total investment management services revenues
Interest expense
Expenses
Total investment management services expenses
Investment management services income

866,154
1,384
42,558
910,096
705,340
74,194
779,534
130,562

551,926
(4,120)
(9,670)
538,136
413,615
76,912
490,527
47,609

403,990
17,135
(8,995)
412,130
302,224
55,005
357,229
54,901

24,388
(187)
230
24,431
22,316
2,115

27,593
(81)
(279)
27,233
25,649
1,584

26,814
139
—
26,953
25,857
1,096

16,646
(989)
90,999
97,481
(172,823)
1,015,948
303,869
712,079
(1,093)
—
(1,093)
$ 710,986

8,446
(467)
74,651
17,579
(84,251)
1,172,593
332,123
840,470
(602)
3,178
2,576
$ 843,046

9,000
15,237
68,368
14,874
(59,005)
1,163,399
340,151
823,248
2,104
—
2,104
$ 825,352

$
$

5.31
5.19

$
$

5.92
5.80

$
$

5.74
5.68

$
$

5.30
5.18

$
$

5.94
5.82

$
$

5.75
5.69

MUNICIPAL SERVICES
Revenues
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and foreign exchange
Total municipal services revenues
Expenses
Municipal services income

CORPORATE
Net investment income
Net realized gains (losses)
Interest expense
Corporate expenses
Corporate loss
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

NET INCOME
Income from continuing operations per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Net income per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Gross revenues from continuing operations
Gross expenses from continuing operations

134,098,392
137,220,731
$2,300,507
$1,284,559

141,861,225
144,799,513
$2,054,473
$ 881,880

143,449,007
144,980,396
$1,885,916
$ 722,517

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Common Stock
In thousands except per share amounts

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Change in unrealized appreciation of investments
net of change in deferred income taxes of $34,698
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
net of change in deferred income taxes of $7,127
Change in foreign currency translation net of change
in deferred income taxes of $3,085

Shares

152,555

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive
Earnings Income (Loss)

$152,555 $1,239,313 $3,771,034

$541,320

Unearned
Unallocated Compensation
ESOP
–Restricted
Shares
Stock

$(653)

$(12,646)

Treasury Stock
Shares

Amount

(7,781) $ (321,580) $5,369,343

—

—

—

825,352

—

—

—

—

—

825,352

—

—

—

—

64,886

—

—

—

—

64,886

—

—

—

—

13,235

—

—

—

—

13,235

—

—

—

—

16,771

—

—

—

—

16,771

Other comprehensive income

94,892

Total comprehensive income
Capital issuance costs
Treasury shares acquired
Unallocated ESOP shares
Variable interest entity equity
Stock-based compensation
Dividends (declared per common share $0.800,
paid per common share $0.770)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss:
Change in unrealized appreciation of investments
net of change in deferred income taxes of $(26,944)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
net of change in deferred income taxes of $4,055
Change in foreign currency translation net of change
in deferred income taxes of $5,346

920,244
—
—
—
—
996

—
—
—
—
996

(4,056)
—
(2)
46
60,337

—

—

—

153,551

153,551

1,295,638

—

—

—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
653
—
—

—
—
—
—
347

—

—

—

4,481,174

636,212

—

—

843,046

—

—

—

—

—

843,046

—

—

—

(46,877)

—

—

—

—

(46,877)

—

—

—

—

7,532

—

—

—

—

7,532

—

—

—

—

21,739

—

—

—

—

21,739

(115,212)

(12,299)

—
(1,895)
—
—
—
—
(9,676)

—
(82,404)
—
—
—
—

Other comprehensive loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss:
Change in unrealized appreciation of investments
net of change in deferred income taxes of $(109,413)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
net of change in deferred income taxes of $26,862
Change in foreign currency translation net of change
in deferred income taxes of $(133)

(17,606)

—
—
2,057

—
—
2,057

(2,353)
—
117,514

—

—

—

155,608

155,608

1,410,799

—

—

—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—

—

5,187,484

618,606

—

—

710,986

—

—

—

—

—

710,986

—

—

—

(228,453)

—

—

—

—

(228,453)

—

—

—

—

49,888

—

—

—

—

49,888

—

—

—

—

(40,660)

—

—

—

—

(136,736)

—
—
(22,387)
—
(34,686)

—
(6,540)
—
—
(16,216)

—
(375,030)
—
—

(136,736)

(40,660)
(219,225)
491,761

—
994
—
156,602

—
994

—
68,648

—

—

—
—
(151,299)

$156,602 $1,479,447 $5,747,171

DISCLOSURE OF RECLASSIFICATION AMOUNT:

—
—

—
—

—

—

$399,381

$ —

2003

—
(9,171)
—
$(43,857)
2004

(6,387)
48
—

(369,715)
1,629
—

2005

$120,555
(55,669)

$ 19,320
(66,197)

$(196,709)
(31,744)

Net unrealized appreciation, net of taxes

$ 64,886

$(46,877)

$(228,453)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(369,715)
62,100
(151,299)

(22,555) $(1,147,100) $6,591,644

Unrealized appreciation of investments arising during the period, net of taxes
Reclassification adjustment, net of taxes

42

(2,353)
(375,030)
97,184

(779,014) 6,558,797

Total comprehensive income

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005

(115,212)

825,440

Other comprehensive loss

Treasury shares acquired
Stock-based compensation
Dividends (declared per common share $1.120,
paid per common share $1.080)

(4,056)
(82,404)
651
46
61,680

(403,984) 6,150,292

Total comprehensive income
Capital issuance costs
Treasury shares acquired
Stock-based compensation
Dividends (declared per common share $0.960,
paid per common share $0.920)

Total
Shareholders’
Equity
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

Years ended December 31

In thousands
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Net income
Loss (income) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax

2005
$

Net income from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing operations to net cash provided
by operating activities of continuing operations:
Increase in accrued investment income
Increase in deferred acquisition costs
Decrease (increase) in prepaid reinsurance premiums
(Decrease) increase in deferred premium revenue
(Decrease) increase in loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
(Increase) decrease in reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Depreciation
Amortization of bond discount (premium), net
Amortization of medium-term notes and commercial paper (premium) discount, net
Net realized (gains) losses on sale of investments
Current income tax benefit
Deferred income tax provision
Net (gains) losses on derivative instruments and foreign exchange
Stock option compensation
Accrued interest payable
Penalties and disgorgement
Other, net
Total adjustments to net income
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Purchase of fixed-maturity securities, net of payable for investments purchased
Sale of fixed-maturity securities, net of receivable for investments sold
Redemption of fixed-maturity securities, net of receivable for investments redeemed
Acquisition of conduits
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments
Redemptions of held-to-maturity investments
Sale (purchase) of short-term investments
Sale (purchase) of other investments
Capital expenditures
Disposals of capital assets
Other

843,046
602
(3,178)

$

825,352
(2,104)
—

712,079

840,470

823,248

(83,840)
(21,076)
27,354
(25,981)
(27,367)
(24,355)
12,317
58,233
(18,244)
7,867
(7,998)
55,308
(38,352)
19,421
104,923
75,000
(44,145)

(42,299)
(33,003)
(44,197)
143,544
37,038
26,792
13,904
69,962
(20,536)
(104,206)
(33,779)
112,907
3,322
16,701
40,497
—
(138,248)

(38,637)
(22,936)
(12,237)
296,668
73,598
(17,587)
11,483
(96,868)
100,886
(80,668)
(2,397)
43,715
(95,035)
26,428
12,782
—
3,528

69,065

48,399

202,723

781,144

888,869

1,025,971

(25,367,369)
20,687,363
877,070
—
(1,442,684)
2,840,711
4,544
74,419
(8,740)
2,255
—

(26,187,781)
22,390,745
1,597,511
1,134
(1,465,209)
—
(104,638)
(53,523)
(11,089)
1,016
—

(2,188,907)

(2,332,431)

(3,831,834)

7,591,807
(5,331,607)
(1,739,438)
3,343,531
(2,658,319)
678,611
(761)
(147,247)
—
—
(101,000)
(2,899)
(9,957)
(369,715)
23,249

6,007,451
(4,278,787)
(39,329)
3,186,567
(3,315,061)
—
141,221
(132,072)
1,408
348,553
(50,000)
(2,353)
11,579
(375,030)
63,390

4,364,322
(3,792,703)
—
2,840,770
(301,682)
—
(33,678)
(110,999)
57,337
—
—
(4,056)
6,736
(82,404)
25,806

1,276,255

1,567,537

2,969,449

Net cash used by investing activities of continuing operations

Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing operations
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (REVISED – SEE NOTE 3):
Net cash used by operating activities
Net cash provided by investing activities

(1,682)
—

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES:
Income taxes paid
Interest paid:
Investment agreements
Commercial paper
Medium-term notes
Variable interest entity floating rate notes
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Other borrowings and deposits
Long-term debt
Non cash items:
Stock compensation
Dividends declared but not paid

$

2003

(15,792,509)
11,569,513
428,175
—
(1,530,911)
3,006,393
104,566
33,912
(9,356)
1,650
(340)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Proceeds from issuance of investment agreements
Payments for drawdowns of investment agreements
Decrease in commercial paper
Issuance of medium-term notes
Principal paydown of medium-term notes
Issuance of variable interest entity floating rate notes
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, net
Dividends paid
Net proceeds from issuance of short-term debt
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net repayment for retirement of long-term debt
Capital issuance costs
Other borrowings and deposits
Purchase of treasury stock
Exercise of stock options

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

710,986
1,093
—

2004

(7,421)
22,138

(133,190)
366,236

(4,452)
56

138,692
227,544

159,190
68,354

$

233,046

$

366,236

$

227,544

$

254,344

$

273,058

$

293,695

$

352,202
61,581
248,516
24,264
20,060
1,805
87,047

$

259,494
33,677
128,579
9,287
11,783
6,564
70,970

$

245,632
7,445
56,090
1,369
15,597
10,454
70,024

$

19,421
37,541

$

16,701
33,489

$

26,428
28,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1: BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
MBIA Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries, (collectively,
MBIA or the Company) is a leading provider of financial guarantee
products and specialized financial services. MBIA provides innovative
and cost-effective products and services that meet the credit enhancement, financial and investment needs of its public- and private-sector
clients worldwide. MBIA manages its activities primarily through
three principal business operations: insurance, investment management services and municipal services. The Company’s corporate
operations include revenues and expenses that arise from general
corporate activities and not from one of the Company’s three principal
business operations.
MBIA’s insurance operations are principally conducted through
MBIA Insurance Corporation and its subsidiaries (MBIA Corp.) MBIA
Insurance Corporation has Triple-A financial strength ratings from
Standard and Poor’s Corporation (S&P), Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc. (Moody’s), Fitch, Inc. and Rating and Investment Information,
Inc. Additionally, MBIA Insurance Corporation’s insurance subsidiaries
have Triple-A financial strength ratings from at least S&P and Moody’s.
MBIA Corp. issues financial guarantees for municipal bonds, assetbacked and mortgage-backed securities, investor-owned utility bonds,
bonds backed by publicly or privately funded public-purpose projects,
bonds issued by sovereign and sub-sovereign entities, obligations collateralized by diverse pools of corporate loans and credit default swaps and
pools of corporate and asset-backed bonds, both in the new issue and
secondary markets. The financial guarantees provide an unconditional
and irrevocable guarantee of the payment of principal and interest on
insured obligations when due.
MBIA’s investment management services operations provide an
array of products and services to the public, not-for-profit and corporate sectors. Such products and services are provided primarily through
wholly owned subsidiaries of MBIA Asset Management, LLC and
include cash management, discretionary asset management and fund
administration services and investment agreement, medium-term note
and commercial paper programs related to funding assets for thirdparty clients and for investment purposes.
MBIA’s municipal services operations provide revenue enhancement services and products to public-sector clients nationwide, consisting of discovery, audit, collections/recovery and information services
through MBIA MuniServices Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Additionally, the municipal services operations include Capital Asset Holdings GP, Inc. and certain affiliated entities (collectively,
Capital Asset), a servicer of delinquent tax certificates.

NOTE 2: RESTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
On November 8, 2005, MBIA announced its decision to correct and
restate its previously issued financial statements for 1998 and subsequent years in connection with potential settlements of investigations
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the New York
Attorney General’s Office (NYAG) regarding agreements entered into
by its subsidiary, MBIA Insurance Corporation, in 1998. On November 12, 2005, MBIA filed with the SEC Amendment No. 1 on Form
10-K/A to its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 to
reflect the restatement of its financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998.
In 1998, three reinsurers, Converium Reinsurance (North
America) Inc. (Converium), AXA Re Finance S.A. (ARF) and Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-Gesellshaft (Munich Re) paid the Company
$170 million under three separate agreements (the Excess-of-Loss
44
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Agreements) in connection with losses the Company incurred on $265
million of MBIA-insured bonds issued by the Alleghany Health, Education and Research Foundation (AHERF). The Excess-of-Loss Agreements were structured as three successive excess-of-loss facilities that
aggregated to $170 million. Under the Excess-of-Loss Agreements,
Converium paid the Company $70 million, and Munich Re and ARF
each paid the Company $50 million.
In connection with the arrangements for the Excess-of-Loss
Agreements, the Company entered into quota share agreements with
Munich Re, ARF and Converium (each a Quota Share Agreement and,
collectively, the Quota Share Agreements). Under the Quota Share
Agreements, the Company agreed to cede to the three reinsurers new
business written with an aggregate par sufficient to generate $297 million in gross premiums over a six year period ending October 1, 2004.
Of the $297 million in premiums to be ceded under the Quota Share
Agreements, the Company agreed to cede to Converium cash premiums equal to $102 million, to ARF adjusted gross premiums of $97
million and to Munich Re adjusted gross premiums of $98 million over
this period.
On March 8, 2005, the Company announced its decision to
restate its financial statements for 1998 and subsequent years to correct
the accounting for the agreements with Converium and reflected this
correction in the consolidated financial statements of its original
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.
At that time, the Company believed that the accounting for the Excessof-Loss Agreements and Quota Share Agreements with Munich Re and
ARF was appropriate under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 113, “Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance of
Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts.”
The restatement of the Company’s financial statements for the
Munich Re and ARF Excess-of-Loss and Quota Share Agreements,
made in connection with the potential settlements, corrects and restates
its accounting for these agreements because, taking into account developments in the regulatory investigations since March and further
accounting analyses, they did not satisfy the risk transfer requirements
for reinsurance accounting under SFAS 113. As a result, the Company
restated its financial statements issued prior to September 30, 2005 to
reflect the Excess-of-Loss and Quota Share Agreements with Munich
Re and ARF under deposit accounting in accordance with Statement
of Position (SOP) 98-7, “Deposit Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Risk” instead
of under reinsurance accounting. The Company also corrected and
restated its 2004 statutory financial statements for the Munich Re and
ARF Excess-of-Loss and Quota Share Agreements because they did
not satisfy the requirements for reinsurance accounting under Regulation 108 of the New York State Insurance Department (NYSID).
The restatements did not have a significant effect on the Company’s
financial position.
Additionally, in the third quarter of 2005, the Company completed a detailed review of its derivative instruments for which it
applied shortcut method hedge accounting under SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended.
Shortcut method hedge accounting allows the assumption that the
change in fair value of a hedged item exactly offsets the change in fair
value of the related derivative. After completing its review, the Company determined that certain hedging relationships did not meet every
technical aspect of shortcut method hedge accounting, although, such
hedging relationships would have qualified for basic hedge accounting.
Since the documentation that the Company prepared was designed to
support shortcut method hedge accounting, it was not sufficient to sup-
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port basic hedge accounting. As a result, the Company must account
for these derivatives, from 2001 through September 30, 2005, as if they
were not part of hedging relationships, which requires the change in fair
value of these derivatives to be reflected in the Company’s income statement without an offsetting change in fair value of the hedged items.
The Company has restated its financial statements to correct the
accounting for these derivatives for the year ended December 31, 2001
and subsequent periods through June 30, 2005. As of October 1, 2005,

all of the subject hedging relationships met the requirements for basic
hedge accounting and have been recorded as such in the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The following table presents the effects of the ARF, Munich Re
and derivative accounting restatement on the unaudited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the three months ended
March 31, 2005 and June 30, 2005. The effect of the Converium
restatement was reflected in the previously issued consolidated financial
statements of the Company for these periods.

Unaudited
As of and For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2005
Previously
Reported

In thousands except per share information

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Ceded premiums
Net premiums written
Increase in deferred premium revenue
Scheduled premiums earned
Refunding premiums earned
Premiums earned
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and
foreign exchange-insurance
Total insurance revenues
Losses and loss adjustment expenses
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs
Operating expenses
Total insurance expenses
Insurance income
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments and
foreign exchange-IMS
Investment management services income
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Basic EPS:
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations
Net income
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Deferred acquisition costs
Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Derivative assets
Other assets
Total assets
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
Investment agreements
Deferred income taxes, net
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity

$

(35,688)
246,931
(40,693)
169,873
36,365
206,238

Unaudited
As of and For the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2005
Previously
Reported

Restated

$

(32,126)
250,493
(39,648)
173,760
37,085
210,845

$

(33,641)
215,324
(6,391)
177,207
31,726
208,933

Restated

$

(31,622)
217,343
(3,958)
180,902
32,483
213,385

(6,075)
325,945
20,385
16,293
29,166
65,844
260,101

(6,072)
330,555
20,851
16,657
30,262
67,770
262,785

4,119
339,264
21,265
16,506
32,268
70,039
269,225

4,002
343,599
21,708
16,858
33,261
71,827
271,772

$

11,178
36,812
277,706
77,202
200,504
200,504

$

27,421
53,055
296,633
83,826
212,807
212,807

$

(3,439)
15,372
261,312
73,722
187,590
187,590

(27,395)
(8,584)
239,903
66,229
173,674
173,674

$
$

1.46
1.46

$
$

1.55
1.55

$
$

1.40
1.40

$
$

1.30
1.30

$
$

1.43
1.43

$
$

1.52
1.52

$
$

1.37
1.37

$
$

1.27
1.27

371,932
462,390
33,202
270,648
282,295
33,756,665
755,563
9,316,470
573,849
428,360
381,426
27,320,654
5,377,327
500,516
$ 6,436,011

$

417,454
427,028
34,091
270,485
281,406
33,766,662
778,064
9,318,116
563,551
427,334
397,724
27,349,775
5,361,923
496,796
$ 6,416,887

$

383,006
451,113
42,869
252,637
253,843
34,784,595
667,570
10,005,780
661,184
484,842
396,596
28,197,097
5,527,063
630,628
$ 6,587,498

$

$

$

428,613
418,184
41,671
252,544
255,041
34,797,180
690,801
9,998,534
654,888
484,003
412,019
28,221,370
5,497,743
648,260
$ 6,575,810
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The restatement of the Company’s financial statements did not
have a material effect on its financial condition and MBIA does not
expect the restatement to have any impact on its ratings or on the
Triple-A ratings of MBIA Insurance Corporation. Information presented in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements gives effect to
the restatement, as applicable.

NOTE 3: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis
of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. As additional information becomes available or
actual amounts become determinable, the recorded estimates are
revised and reflected in operating results. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. The Company’s significant accounting policies
are as follows:
CONSOLIDATION The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company, its subsidiaries and entities under its control for which the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards. This includes variable interest entities (VIEs) consolidated
under the requirements of Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Interpretation No. (FIN) 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities.” All significant intercompany balances have been
eliminated. Certain amounts have been reclassified in prior years’ financial statements to conform to the current presentation. In addition, the
Company has revised its 2004 and 2003 Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows to separately disclose the operating and investing portions
of the cash flows attributable to discontinued operations. These
amounts were previously reported on a combined basis.
INVESTMENTS The Company classifies its fixed-maturity investments as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity, as defined by
SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities.” Available-for-sale investments are reported in the financial
statements at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of deferred
taxes, reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Bond discounts and premiums are amortized using the
effective yield method over the remaining term of the securities. For
pre-refunded bonds, the remaining term is determined based on the
contractual refunding date. Investment income is recorded as earned.
Realized gains or losses on the sale of investments are determined by
specific identification and are included as a separate component of
revenues.
Held-to-maturity investments consist mainly of debt securities,
loans, lease receivables, trade receivables and floating rate notes. These
investments are reported in the financial statements at amortized cost.
Discounts and premiums are amortized using the straight-line method
over the remaining term of the securities. Using an effective yield
method to amortize discounts and premiums would not have produced
materially different results. Investment income is recorded as earned.
Short-term investments are carried at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value, and include all fixed-maturity securities with a
remaining effective term to maturity of less than one year.
Other investments include the Company’s interest in equityoriented and equity method investments. The Company records its
share of the unrealized gains and losses on equity-oriented investments,
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net of applicable deferred income taxes, in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. The carrying amounts of
equity method investments are initially recorded at cost and adjusted
to recognize the Company’s share of the profits or losses, net of any
intercompany gains and losses, of the investees subsequent to the purchase date. Such profits and losses are recorded within net investment
income in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.
Dividends are applied as a reduction of the carrying amount of equity
method investments.
MBIA regularly monitors its investments in which fair value is
less than amortized cost in order to assess whether such a decline in
value is other than temporary and, therefore, should be reflected as a
realized loss in net income. Such an assessment requires the Company
to determine the cause of the decline and whether the Company possesses both the ability and intent to hold the investment to maturity or
until the value recovers to an amount at least equal to amortized cost.
This assessment requires management to exercise judgment as to
whether an investment is impaired based on market conditions, trends
and the availability of relevant data.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and demand deposits with banks with original
maturities of less than 90 days.
POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS Policy acquisition costs include
those expenses that relate primarily to, and vary with, the acquisition of
new insurance business. The Company periodically conducts a study to
determine which operating costs have been incurred to acquire new
insurance business and qualify for deferral. For business produced
directly by MBIA Corp., such costs include compensation of employees
involved in underwriting and policy issuance functions, certain rating
agency fees, state premium taxes and certain other underwriting
expenses, reduced by ceding commission income on premiums ceded
to reinsurers. Policy acquisition costs, net of ceding commissions, are
deferred and amortized over the period in which the related premiums
are earned.
MBIA will recognize a premium deficiency if the sum of
expected loss and loss adjustment expenses and unamortized policy
acquisition costs exceed the related unearned premiums. If MBIA were
to have a premium deficiency that is greater than unamortized acquisition costs, the unamortized acquisition costs would be reduced by a
charge to expense, and a liability (if necessary) would be established for
any remaining deficiency. As of December 31, 2005, there have been
no premium deficiencies. Although GAAP permits the inclusion of
anticipated investment income when determining a premium deficiency, it is currently not being included in the Company’s evaluation.
GOODWILL Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquiring a business enterprise over the fair value of the net assets acquired.
Under SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company tests the carry value of its goodwill for impairment at least annually. See Note 5 for an explanation of the Company’s annual
impairment test.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Property and equipment consists of
land, buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and computer equipment and software. All property and equipment is recorded
at cost and, except for land, is depreciated over the appropriate useful
life of the asset using the straight-line method. Maintenance and repairs
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are charged to current earnings as incurred. The useful lives of each
class of assets are as follows:
Buildings and site improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment and software

5-31 years
4-10 years
8 years
3-5 years

DERIVATIVES Under SFAS 133, all derivative instruments are
recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value, and changes in fair
value are recognized immediately in earnings unless the derivatives
qualify as hedges. If the derivatives qualify as hedges, depending on the
nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are
either offset against the change in fair value of assets, liabilities, or firm
commitments through earnings, or are recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in
earnings. Any ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value is
recognized immediately in earnings. If circumstances or events arise
that require the termination and settlement of a derivative contract
prior to maturity, any unrealized gain or loss will be recognized immediately in earnings. For qualifying fair value hedges, if the hedge relationship is terminated, the derivative fair value adjustment is reported
as part of the basis of the hedged item and is amortized to earnings as a
yield adjustment. For qualifying cash flow hedges, if the hedge relationship is terminated, the derivative fair value adjustment recorded in
other comprehensive income is recognized in earnings at the time the
hedged cash flows are recognized, consistent with the original hedge
strategy. If the underlying hedged item of a hedge relationship ceases to
exist, all changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized in
earnings each period until the derivative matures or terminates.
The nature of the Company’s business activities require the
management of various financial and market risks, including those
related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.
The Company uses derivative instruments to mitigate or eliminate
certain of those risks. See Note 7 for a further discussion of the
Company’s use of derivatives and their impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES The financial guarantees issued by MBIA Corp. insure scheduled payments of principal and
interest due on various types of financial obligations against a payment
default on such payments by the issuers of the obligations. Loss and loss
adjustment expense (LAE) reserves are established by the Company’s
Loss Reserve Committee, which is comprised of members of senior
management, and require the use of judgment and estimates with
respect to the occurrence, timing and amount of a loss on an insured
obligation. As discussed below, the accounting for non-derivative financial guarantee loss reserves is possibly subject to change.
The Company establishes two types of loss and LAE reserves for
non-derivative financial guarantees: an unallocated loss reserve and case
basis reserves. The unallocated loss reserve is established on an undiscounted basis with respect to the Company’s entire insured portfolio.
The Company’s unallocated loss reserve represents its estimate of losses
that have or are probable to occur as a result of credit deterioration in
the Company’s insured portfolio but which have not yet been specifically identified and applied to specific insured obligations. The unallocated loss reserve is increased on a quarterly basis using a formula that
applies a “loss factor” to the Company’s scheduled net earned premium
for the respective quarter, both of which are defined and set forth
below. This increase in the unallocated reserve is the Company’s provision for loss and loss adjustment expenses as reported on the Com-

pany’s income statement. Scheduled net earned premium represents
quarterly premium earnings, net of reinsurance, from all policies in
force less the portion of quarterly premium earnings that have been
accelerated as a result of the refunding or defeasance of insured obligations. Total earned premium as reported on the Company’s income
statement includes both scheduled net earned premium and premium
earnings that have been accelerated, net of reinsurance. Once a policy is
originated, the amount of scheduled net earned premium recorded in
earnings will be included in the Company’s calculation of its unallocated loss reserve. When an insured obligation is refunded, defeased or
matures, the Company does not reverse the unallocated loss reserve previously generated from the scheduled net earned premium on such
obligation as the Company’s unallocated loss reserve is not specific to
any individual obligation.
Each quarter, the Company calculates its provision for the unallocated loss reserve as a fixed percent of scheduled net earned premium.
This amount is recorded as “Losses and loss adjustment expense” on
the income statement. Annually, the Loss Reserve Committee evaluates
the appropriateness of the fixed percent loss factor. In performing this
evaluation, the Loss Reserve Committee considers the composition of
the Company’s insured portfolio by municipal sector, structured asset
class, remaining maturity and credit quality, along with the latest industry data, including historical default and recovery experience for the
relevant sectors of the fixed-income market in order to determine if a
trend is developing that indicates the loss factor should be increased or
decreased. In addition, the Company considers its own historical loss
activity and how those losses develop over time. The Loss Reserve
Committee reviews the results of its annual evaluation over several
years to determine whether any long-term trends are developing. The
Company’s additions to specific case basis reserves in the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 exceeded the 12% loss factor currently
used by the Company. The Loss Reserve Committee is continuing
to monitor this trend and evaluate whether an adjustment to the Company’s current loss factor is appropriate. During the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company calculated its
provision for the unallocated loss reserve as 12% of scheduled net
earned premium.
When a case basis reserve is established, MBIA reclassifies the
estimated amount from its unallocated loss reserve in an amount equal
to the specific case basis loss reserve. Therefore, the amount of available
unallocated loss reserve at the end of each period is reduced by the
actual case basis reserves established in the same period. Such reclassification has no effect on the Company’s income statement as the unallocated loss reserve and specific case basis reserves, gross of recoveries
from reinsurers, are reported as liabilities within “Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves” on the Company’s balance sheet. In the event
that case basis reserves develop at a significantly faster or slower rate
than anticipated by applying the loss factor to net scheduled earned
premium, the Company will perform a qualitative evaluation with
respect to the adequacy of the remaining unallocated loss reserve. In
performing this evaluation, the Company considers the anticipated
amounts of future transfers to existing case basis reserves, as well as the
likeliness those policies for which case basis reserves have not been
established will require case basis reserves at a faster or slower rate than
initially expected.
If, after establishing case basis reserves for the period, the
Company determines that the remaining unallocated loss reserve is not
sufficient to cover its estimate of losses not yet specifically identified
in its insured portfolio, additional unallocated loss reserves will be
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accrued at such time which, as a result, will reduce the Company’s earnings for the period. Conversely, if the Company determines that the
remaining unallocated loss reserve is in excess of the amount needed to
cover its estimate of unidentified losses, the Company will reverse the
excess at such time which, as a result, will increase the Company’s
earnings for the period. The Company has not made any such adjustment to its unallocated loss reserve during the periods presented in
these financial statements.
MBIA establishes new case basis reserves with respect to a specific insurance policy when the Loss Reserve Committee determines
that (i) a claim has been made or is probable in the future with respect
to such policy based on specific credit events that have occurred and (ii)
the amount of the ultimate loss that MBIA will incur under such policy
can be reasonably estimated. The amount of the case basis reserve with
respect to any policy is based on the net present value of the expected
ultimate losses and loss adjustment expense payments that the Company expects to pay with respect to such policy, net of expected recoveries under salvage and subrogation rights. The amount of the expected
loss, net of expected recoveries, is discounted based on a discount
rate equal to the actual yield of the fixed-income portfolio held by the
Company’s insurance subsidiaries at the end of the preceding fiscal
quarter. The Company believes this yield is an appropriate rate of
return for present valuing its reserves as it reflects the rate of return on
the assets supporting future claim payments by the Company. The
discount rate used at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was 5.0%,
4.8% and 4.7%, respectively. When a case basis reserve is established
for an insured obligation, the Company continues to record premium
revenue until it believes that premiums will no longer be collected on
that obligation.
Case basis reserves are established in the same manner for policies with respect to which an insured event (i.e., a payment default on
the insured obligation) has already occurred and for those policies
where the Company expects that an insured event will occur in the
future based upon credit deterioration which has already occurred and
has been identified. This reserving methodology is different from case
basis reserves that are established by traditional property and casualty
insurance companies, which determine case basis reserves only upon
the occurrence of an insured event when reported. The Company does
not establish case basis reserves for all payments due under an insured
obligation but rather only those that the Company believes the issuer of
the insured obligation will be unable to make. Case basis reserves cover
the amount of principal and interest owed that the Company expects to
pay on its insured obligations and the costs of settlement and other loss
mitigation expenses, net of expected recoveries. Expected recoveries
reduce the amount of case basis reserves established by the Company.
When MBIA becomes entitled to the underlying collateral of an
insured credit under salvage and subrogation rights as a result of a claim
payment, it records salvage and subrogation as an asset. Such amounts
are included in the Company’s balance sheet within “Other assets.”
A number of variables are taken into account in establishing
specific case basis reserves for individual policies. These variables
include the creditworthiness of the underlying issuer of the insured
obligation, whether the obligation is secured or unsecured and the
expected recovery rates on the insured obligation, the projected cash
flow or market value of any assets that support the insured obligation
and the historical and projected loss rates on such assets. Factors that
may affect the actual ultimate realized losses for any policy include the
state of the economy, changes in interest rates, rates of inflation and
the salvage values of specific collateral. The methodology for determining when a case basis reserve is established may differ from other finan-
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cial guarantee insurance companies, as well as from other property
and casualty insurance enterprises.
Management believes that the Company’s reserves are adequate
to cover the ultimate net cost of claims. However, because the reserves
are based on management’s judgment and estimates, there can be no
assurance that the ultimate liability will not exceed such estimates. See
Note 23 for additional information regarding the Company’s loss and
LAE reserves.
The Company’s loss reserving policy, described above, is based
on guidance provided in SFAS 60, “Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises,” SFAS 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” and
analogies to Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 85-20, “Recognition of
Fees for Guaranteeing a Loan.” SFAS 60 requires that, for short-duration contracts, a liability for unpaid claim costs relating to insurance
contracts, including estimates of costs relating to incurred but not
reported claims, be accrued when insured events occur. Additionally,
SFAS 5, requires that a loss be recognized where it is probable that one
or more future events will occur confirming that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of loss
can be reasonably estimated.
Although SFAS 60 provides guidance to insurance enterprises,
the Company does not believe SFAS 60 comprehensively addresses the
unique attributes of financial guarantee insurance contracts, as the standard was developed prior to the maturity of the financial guarantee
industry. SFAS 60 provides guidance with respect to insurance contracts that are either short-duration or long-duration in nature. Financial guarantee contracts typically have attributes of both and, therefore,
are difficult to classify as either. For instance, financial guarantee contracts are reported for regulatory purposes as property and liability
insurance, normally considered short-duration, but have elements of
long-duration contracts in that they are irrevocable and extend over a
period that may be in excess of 30 years.
The Company believes its loss reserving policy reflects the
requirements of applicable accounting literature, as well as the fact that
financial guarantee losses occur over time as a result of credit deterioration, operational difficulties of the insured obligor or fraud, which may
not be specifically detected when they occur but which can be generally
estimated across a portfolio of insured obligations based on the credit
quality and nature of the portfolio and historical default data. The
Company does, however, recognize premium revenue and policy acquisition costs in a manner consistent with the guidance provided in SFAS
60 for short-duration contracts. If the Company and the rest of the
financial guarantee industry were required to classify its insurance contracts as either short-duration or long-duration or if new specific guidance for financial guarantee insurance emerges, different methods of
accounting could apply with respect to loss reserving and liability
recognition, and possibly extend to premium revenue and policy acquisition cost recognition. Additionally, there are differences in the
methodology and measurement of loss reserves followed by other financial guarantee companies.
As a result of discussions in January and February 2005 between
the SEC staff and several financial guarantee industry participants,
including MBIA, the FASB staff is considering whether additional
guidance with respect to accounting for financial guarantee insurance
should be provided. In June 2005, the FASB decided to add to its
agenda a project to consider the accounting by insurers for financial
guarantee insurance. As part of this project, the FASB is considering
several aspects of the insurance accounting model for financial guarantee insurers, including claims liability recognition, premium recogni-
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tion and the related amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs.
When the FASB or the SEC reaches a conclusion on this issue, the
Company and its financial guarantor peers may be required to change
some aspects of their respective loss reserving policies and the potential
changes could extend to premium and expense recognition. The Company cannot currently assess how the FASB and SEC staff ’s ultimate
resolution of this issue will impact its loss reserving policy or the effect
it might have on recognizing premium revenue and policy acquisition
costs. Until the issue is resolved, the Company intends to continue to
apply its existing policy with respect to the establishment of both case
basis and unallocated loss reserves and the recognition of premium revenue and policy acquisition costs.
INVESTMENT AGREEMENTS, MEDIUM-TERM NOTES AND COMInvestment agreements, medium-term notes and
commercial paper are recorded on the balance sheet at the time such
agreements are executed. The liabilities for investment agreements and
medium-term notes are carried at their face value plus accrued interest.
Interest expense is accrued at the contractual interest rate, adjusted for
any premiums or discounts. Commercial paper is carried at face value
adjusted for any discounts. Premiums and discounts related to investment agreements and medium-term notes are amortized on a constant
yield basis. Discounts related to commercial paper are amortized on a
straight-line basis, which approximates a constant yield to maturity.
MERCIAL PAPER

SECURITIES BORROWED OR PURCHASED UNDER AGREEMENTS TO
RESELL AND SECURITIES LOANED OR SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO
REPURCHASE Securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to
resell and securities loaned or sold under agreements to repurchase are
accounted for as collateralized transactions and are recorded at contract
value plus accrued interest, subject to the provisions of SFAS 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities.” It is the Company’s policy to take possession
of securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell. Securities borrowed or loaned are primarily entered into to obtain securities
that are repledged as part of MBIA’s collateralized investment and
repurchase agreement activity and are only transacted with high quality
dealer firms.
PREMIUM REVENUE RECOGNITION Upfront premiums are
earned in proportion to the expiration of the related insured par. Therefore, for transactions in which the premium is received upfront, premium earnings are greater in the earlier periods when there is a higher
amount of par outstanding. The upfront premiums are apportioned to
individual sinking fund payments of a bond issue according to an
amortization schedule. After the premiums are allocated to each scheduled sinking fund payment, they are earned on a straight-line basis over
the period of that sinking fund payment. Accordingly, deferred premium revenue represents the portion of premiums written that is
applicable to the unexpired risk of insured bonds and notes. When an
MBIA-insured issue is retired early, is called by the issuer, or is in substance paid in advance through a refunding accomplished by placing
U.S. Government securities in escrow, the remaining deferred premium
revenue is earned at that time since there is no longer risk to the Company. Installment premiums are earned on a straight-line basis over each
installment period, generally one year or less.
Premiums ceded to reinsurers reduce the amount of earned premium the Company will recognize from its insurance policies. For both
upfront and installment policies, ceded premium expense is recognized
in earnings in proportion to and at the same time the related premium
revenue is recognized. Ceding commission income is recognized in
earnings at the time the related premium is recognized.

ADVISORY FEE REVENUE RECOGNITION The Company collects
advisory fees in connection with certain transactions. Depending upon
the type of fee received and whether it is related to an insurance policy,
the fee is either earned when it is due or deferred and earned over the
life of the related transaction. Work, waiver and consent, termination,
administrative and management fees and expense reimbursements are
earned when the related services are completed. Structuring fees are
earned on a straight-line basis over the life of the related insurance policy and commitment fees are earned on a straight-line basis over the
commitment period.
EMPLOYEE STOCK COMPENSATION The Company follows
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.” Under the modified prospective transition method selected by the Company under the provisions of SFAS
148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and
Disclosure,” compensation costs related to stock options are reflected
in net income. See Notes 4 and 25 for further discussions regarding
the methodology utilized in recognizing employee stock compensation expense.
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES OPERATIONS Investment
management services (IMS) results are comprised of net investment
income, fee income, expenses and gains and losses related to the Company’s investment agreement, medium-term note and conduit programs and asset management advisory and administrative services. Fees
related to asset management services are recognized in earnings as such
services are performed.
MUNICIPAL SERVICES OPERATIONS Municipal services results
are comprised of the net investment income, operating revenues,
expenses and gains and losses of MBIA MuniServices Company and its
subsidiaries. Operating revenues primarily consist of fees, which are recognized in earnings as the related services are performed.
CORPORATE Corporate results consist of net investment
income, interest expense on MBIA Inc. debt and general corporate
expenses. All legal and consulting costs associated with the investigations by the SEC, the NYAG and the NYSID are expensed as incurred.
GAINS AND LOSSES Net realized gains and losses are primarily
generated from the sale of investments. Realized losses also include
amounts resulting from the write-down of assets for which a decline in
fair value below the Company’s carry value is determined to be other
than temporary. Net gains and losses on derivative instruments and foreign exchange are the result of fair valuing the Company’s derivative
instruments and gains and losses resulting from revaluing transactions
denominated in foreign currencies.
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at year-end exchange
rates. Operating results are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during the year. Unrealized gains or losses, net of deferred taxes,
resulting from translation are included in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Gains and losses resulting from
transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in current earnings.
INCOME TAXES Deferred income taxes are provided with
respect to the temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and the reported amounts in the financial statements
that will result in deductible or taxable amounts in future years when
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.
Such temporary differences relate principally to premium revenue
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recognition, deferred acquisition costs, unrealized appreciation or
depreciation of investments and derivatives, and MBIA Corp.’s statutory contingency reserve.
The Internal Revenue Code permits companies writing financial
guarantee insurance to deduct from taxable income amounts added to
the statutory contingency reserve, subject to certain limitations. The tax
benefits obtained from such deductions must be invested in non-interest-bearing U.S. Government tax and loss bonds. The Company
records purchases of tax and loss bonds as payments of federal income
taxes. The amounts deducted must be restored to taxable income when
the contingency reserve is released, at which time the Company may
present the tax and loss bonds for redemption to satisfy the additional
tax liability.

NOTE 4: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 115-1,
“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments,” which nullifies certain requirements of
EITF 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and
Its Application to Certain Investments” and amends SFAS 115 and
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) 18, “The Equity Method
of Accounting for Investments in Common Stocks.” FSP 115-1 outlines a three-step model to identify investment impairments in each
reporting period. First, for each reporting period, individual securities
are determined to be impaired if the fair value of a security is less than
its cost. Second, impaired securities are evaluated as to whether the
impairment is other than temporary based on existing applicable guidance. Lastly, if the impairment is other than temporary, an impairment
loss is recognized in earnings equal to the difference between the investment’s cost and fair value as of the reporting date. Under FSP 115-1,
the disclosure requirements required by EITF 03-1 issued in December
2003 remain in effect. EITF 03-1 requires the Company to disclose
certain information about unrealized losses on its investment portfolio
that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments.
The requirements under FSP 115-1 are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company believes that the
adoption of FSP 115-1 will not have a material effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations. See Note 12 for disclosures
required by EITF 03-1.
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R), “ShareBased Payment.” SFAS 123(R) is a revision of SFAS 123 and supersedes
APB 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123(R)
requires the Company to expense the fair value of employee stock
options and other forms of stock-based compensation. In addition,
SFAS 123(R) classifies share-based payment awards as either liability
awards, which are remeasured at fair value at each balance sheet date, or
equity awards, which are measured at fair value on the grant date and
not subsequently remeasured. Generally, awards with cash-based settlement, repurchase features or that are settled at a fixed dollar amount are
classified as liability awards, and changes in fair value will be reported in
earnings. Awards with net-settlement features or that permit a cashless
exercise with third-party brokers are classified as equity awards and
changes in fair value are not reported in earnings. The requirements are
effective for the Company as of January 1, 2006. The Company’s longterm incentive plans include features which would result in both liability and equity awards. The Company adopted the fair value provisions
of SFAS 123 effective January 1, 2002 and does not believe that the
adoption of SFAS 123(R) for equity awards will have a material effect
on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. For liability awards, the Company currently remeasures these awards and does
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not believe that the adoption of SFAS 123(R) will have a material effect
on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 149, “Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS 149 amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS
133. SFAS 149 amends SFAS 133 for decisions made as part of the
Derivatives Implementation Group process that effectively required
amendments to SFAS 133, decisions made in connection with other
FASB projects dealing with financial instruments and in connection
with implementation issues raised in relation to the application of the
definition of a derivative. SFAS 149 is effective for contracts entered
into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships
designated after June 30, 2003. The Company’s financial position and
results of operations did not change as a result of the adoption of
SFAS 149.
In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, which was revised in
December 2003 as FIN 46(R), as an interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletin No. (ARB) 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements.”
FIN 46(R) addresses consolidation of VIEs by business enterprises. An
entity is considered a VIE subject to consolidation if the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support or if the equity
investors lack one of three characteristics of a controlling financial
interest. First, the equity investors lack the ability to make decisions
about the entity’s activities through voting rights or similar rights. Second, they do not bear the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the
entity if they occur. Lastly, they do not claim the right to receive
expected returns of the entity if they occur, which is the compensation
for the risk of absorbing the expected losses. MBIA determined that
FIN 46(R) applies to entities that it sponsors and, in certain cases,
unaffiliated entities that it guarantees. See Note 6 for a further discussion on the impact of adoption of FIN 46(R) on the Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 5: GOODWILL
Goodwill totaled $79.4 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
of which $76.9 million was within the insurance reporting segment and
$2.5 million was within the investment management services reporting
segments. As a result of the sale of the assets of 1838 Investment Advisors, LLC (1838) in May 2004, goodwill within the investment management services operations declined by $10.6 million during 2004.
The Company performed its annual impairment testing of
goodwill as of January 1, 2005 and January 1, 2006. On both dates,
the fair values of the insurance reporting segment and the investment
management services’ reporting segment exceeded their carrying values
indicating that goodwill was not impaired. In performing this evaluation, the Company determined that the best measure of the fair value
of the insurance reporting segment was its book value adjusted for
the after-tax effects of net deferred premium revenue less deferred
acquisition costs, the present value of installment premiums and a
provision for losses to arrive at adjusted book value. Adjusted book
value is a common measure used by analysts to determine the value of
financial guarantee companies. For the investment management services’ reporting segment, the fair value was determined using a multiple
of earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA), as this is a common measure of fair value in the investment
management industry.
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NOTE 6: VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES
The Company provides structured funding and credit enhancement
services to global finance clients through the use of certain MBIAadministered, bankruptcy-remote special purpose vehicles (SPVs) and
through third-party SPVs. The purpose of the MBIA-administered
SPVs is to provide clients with an efficient source of funding, which
may offer MBIA the opportunity to issue financial guarantee insurance
policies. These SPVs purchase various types of financial instruments,
such as debt securities, loans, lease receivables and trade receivables, and
fund these purchases through the issuance of asset-backed short-term
commercial paper or medium-term notes. The assets and liabilities
within the medium-term note programs are managed primarily on a
match-funded basis and may include the use of derivative hedges, such
as interest rate and foreign currency swaps. By match-funding, the
SPVs eliminate the risks associated with fluctuations in interest and foreign currency rates, indices and liquidity. Typically, programs involve
the use of rating agencies in assessing the quality of asset purchases and
in assigning ratings to the various programs. In general, asset purchases
at the inception of a program are required to be investment grade by at
least one major rating agency. The primary SPVs administered by
MBIA are Triple-A One Funding Corporation (Triple-A), Meridian
Funding Company, LLC (Meridian) and Polaris Funding Company,
LLC (Polaris) (collectively, the Conduits). Third-party SPVs are used in
a variety of structures guaranteed or managed by MBIA, whereby the
Company has risks analogous to those of MBIA-administered SPVs.
The Company has determined that such SPVs fall within the definition
of a VIE under FIN 46(R).
Under the provisions of FIN 46(R), an entity is considered a
VIE subject to consolidation if the equity investment at risk is not
sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support or if the equity investors lack one of
three characteristics of a controlling financial interest. First, the equity
investors lack the ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities
through voting rights or similar rights. Second, they do not bear the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity if they occur.
Lastly, they do not claim the right to receive expected returns of the
entity if they occur, which is the compensation for the risk of absorbing the expected losses. A VIE is consolidated with its primary beneficiary, which is the entity that will absorb the majority of the expected
losses, receive the majority of the expected residual returns, or both,
of the VIE.
On September 30, 2003, prior to the applicable effective date of
FIN 46(R), MBIA purchased the equity and acquired all controlling
interests of the Conduits and began consolidating them in the financial
statements of the Company. The Conduits fall within the scope of FIN
46(R) and continue to be consolidated by the Company. The conduit
segment within the Company’s investment management services operations is principally comprised of the activities of these entities. MBIA
has included on its balance sheet the assets and liabilities of each Conduit, which consist primarily of various types of investments and
medium-term notes and commercial paper, and has included in its
income statement the operating revenues and expenses of the Conduits
subsequent to their acquisition date. Certain of MBIA’s consolidated
subsidiaries have invested in Conduit debt obligations or have received
compensation for services provided to the Conduits. As such, MBIA
has eliminated intercompany transactions with the Conduits from its
balance sheet and income statement. After the elimination of such
intercompany assets and liabilities, Conduit total assets and liabilities
were $4.6 billion and $4.4 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2005
and $7.0 billion and $6.7 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2004.

In 2004, the Company consolidated two VIEs established in
connection with the securitization of Capital Asset tax liens. As a result
of a clean-up call exercised for the Capital Asset Research Funding
Series 1997A and Series 1998A tax lien securitizations, these securitizations no longer met the conditions of a qualifying special purpose
entity under SFAS 140. MBIA holds a variable interest in these entities,
which resulted from its insurance policies, and has determined that it is
the primary beneficiary under FIN 46(R). MBIA has reported the
assets of the securitizations, totaling $2.5 million and $16.8 million at
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively, principally
within “Other assets” on its consolidated balance sheet. Liabilities of
the securitizations substantially represented amounts due to MBIA,
which were eliminated in consolidation.
In addition to MBIA-administered SPVs, MBIA must determine whether it has variable interests in third-party VIEs and if so,
whether those variable interests would cause MBIA to be the primary
beneficiary and, therefore, consolidate such entities. Under FIN 46(R),
MBIA’s guarantee of the assets or liabilities of a VIE constitute a variable interest and require MBIA to assess whether it is the primary beneficiary. Consolidation of such VIEs does not increase MBIA’s exposure
above that already committed to in its insurance policies. The Company has consolidated third-party VIEs as a result of guarantees provided by its insurance operations. Third-party VIEs’ assets and
liabilities are primarily reported in “Investments held-to-maturity” and
“Variable interest entity floating rate notes,” respectively, on the face of
the Company’s balance sheet. The assets and liabilities of these VIEs
each totaled $1.3 billion at December 31, 2005 and $600.5 million at
December 31, 2004. Third-party VIEs’ creditors do not have recourse
to the general assets of MBIA outside of the financial guarantee policy
provided to the VIEs.

NOTE 7: DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
MBIA enters into derivative transactions as an additional form of financial guarantee and for purposes of hedging risks associated with existing
assets and liabilities and forecasted transactions. The Company
accounts for derivative transactions in accordance with SFAS 133, as
amended, which requires that all such transactions be recorded on the
Company’s balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings within “Net
gains (losses) on derivative instruments and foreign exchange” or in
shareholders’ equity within “Accumulated other comprehensive
income,” depending on whether the derivative is designated as a hedge,
and if so designated, the type of hedge.
INSURANCE The Company has entered into derivative transactions that it views as an extension of its core financial guarantee business but do not qualify for the financial guarantee scope exception
under SFAS 133 and, therefore, must be stated at fair value. The insurance operations, which represent the majority of the Company’s
notional derivative exposure, have insured derivatives primarily consisting of structured pools of credit default swaps that the Company
intends to hold for the entire term of the contract. The insurance operations have also provided guarantees on the value of certain structured
closed-end funds, which meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS
133. The Company reduces risks embedded in its insured portfolio by
entering into derivative transactions or other types of hedging arrangements. These arrangements may include reinsurance agreements and
capital markets transactions in which the Company hedges a portion of
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the credit and market risk associated with its insured credit derivative
portfolio. Premiums received on insured derivatives are recorded as part
of premiums earned. Additionally, changes in fair values of derivative
transactions within MBIA’s insurance operations are recorded in
current earnings.
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES The investment management services operations have entered into derivative transactions primarily consisting of interest rate, cross currency, credit default and total
return swaps and principal protection guarantees. Interest rate swaps
are entered into to hedge the risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates or fair values of certain contracts. Cross currency swaps are
entered into to hedge the variability in cash flows resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency rates. Credit default swaps are entered into to
hedge credit risk or to replicate investments in cash assets consistent
with the Company’s risk objectives and credit guidelines for its investment management business. The maximum amount of future payments the Company may be required to make under credit default
swap contracts, should a full credit event occur on all of its outstanding
contracts, is $1.6 billion. These credit default swaps reference credits
with an average quality of AA-/Aa3 and have a maturity range of 1-5
years. In accordance with SFAS 133, the fair values of these credit
default swaps at December 31, 2005 are recorded on the consolidated
balance sheet as assets and liabilities, representing gross gains and losses,
of $5.2 million and $17 thousand, respectively. Total return swaps are
entered into to enable the Company to earn returns on certain obligations without directly owning the underlying obligations. The Company has also provided loss protection on certain MBIA-MISC
managed municipal pools that invest in highly rated short-term fixedincome securities. Such protection is accounted for as a derivative
under SFAS 133 and is included as part of the Company’s principal
protection guarantees.
Certain interest rate and cross currency swaps qualify as cash
flow hedges and fair value hedges under SFAS 133. The cash flow
hedges mitigate or offset fluctuations in cash flows arising from variable
rate assets or liabilities. The unrealized gains and losses relating to the
cash flow hedges are reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income and will be reclassified into earnings as interest revenue and
expense are recognized on the hedged assets and liabilities. The fair
value hedges are used to protect against changes in the market value of
the hedged assets or liabilities. The gains and losses relating to the fair
value hedges are recorded directly in earnings. Cash flow and fair value
hedges are hedging existing assets, liabilities or forecasted transactions.
During 2005, the Company recorded gains of $.9 million (net of tax)
and losses of $19 thousand (net of tax) in earnings within net gains

(losses) on derivative instruments and foreign exchange due to the ineffectiveness of fair value and cash flow hedges, respectively.
The Conduits primarily enter into interest rate and cross currency swaps as economic hedges against interest rate and currency risks.
The cross currency swaps qualify as fair value hedges of foreign currency risk under SFAS 133. During 2005, the Company recorded gains
of $1.7 million (net of tax) in earnings due to the ineffectiveness of
these hedges. The Company also recorded gains of $12.4 million (net
of tax) on economic hedges that did not qualify for hedge accounting
under SFAS 133.
Cash flow hedges related to the investment management services
operations resulted in an aggregate net unrealized gain of $4.2 million
(net of tax) in accumulated other comprehensive income at December
31, 2005. The aggregate net unrealized gain is composed of both positive and negative future cash flows. The Company expects that approximately $.8 million of unrealized gains (net of tax) will migrate from
accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings during 2006
and the remaining amount over the term of the contracts.
MUNICIPAL SERVICES Capital Asset entered into an interest rate
collar to economically hedge interest rate risk on a floating rate note.
The change in the fair value of the collar is recorded each period in
earnings, as the collar is not a qualifying hedge under SFAS 133.
CORPORATE The corporate operations has entered into a cross
currency swap to hedge foreign exchange risks related to the issuance of
certain MBIA long-term debt in accordance with the Company’s risk
management policies. The cross currency swap has been designated as a
cash flow hedge and hedges the variability arising from currency
exchange rate movements on the foreign denominated fixed rate debt.
Changes in the fair value of the cross currency swap are recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income. As the debt is revalued at
the spot exchange rate in accordance with SFAS 52, “Foreign Currency
Translation,” an amount that will offset the related transaction gain or
loss arising from the revaluation will migrate each period from accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings. This cash flow hedge
was 100% effective during 2005.
The cross currency swap resulted in an aggregate unrealized gain
of $1.8 million (net of tax) remaining in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2005. The Company expects that
approximately $1.0 million of unrealized losses (net of tax) will migrate
from accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings during
2006 and the remaining balance over the term of the contract.
The notional values of the derivative instruments, net of reinsurance contracts where applicable, by business operations for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2005

In millions

Insurance

Investment
Management
Services

Credit default swaps
Interest rate swaps
Principal protection guarantees
Currency swaps
Total return swaps
Credit linked notes
Interest rate caps/floors
All other

$77,112
—
1,955
—
331
295
—
—

$ 1,662
14,124
2,654
3,894
608
200
450
95

$ —
—
—
—
—
—
4
—

$ —
—
—
133
—
—
—
—

$ 78,774
14,124
4,609
4,027
939
495
454
95

Total

$79,693

$23,687

$

$133

$103,517
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Year ended December 31, 2004

In millions

Insurance

Investment
Management
Services

Credit default swaps
Interest rate swaps
Principal protection guarantees
Currency swaps
Total return swaps
Credit linked notes
Interest rate caps/floors
All other

$80,093
—
2,514
—
377
800
—
—

$ 1,122
10,783
2,226
3,476
779
100
450
94

$ —
—
—
—
—
—
6
—

$ —
—
—
154
—
—
—
—

$ 81,215
10,783
4,740
3,630
1,156
900
456
94

Total

$83,784

$19,030

$

$154

$102,974

The Company manages counterparty credit risk on an individual counterparty basis through master netting agreements covering
derivative transactions in the investment management services, municipal services and corporate operations. These agreements allow the
Company to contractually net amounts due from a counterparty with
those amounts due to such counterparty when certain triggering events
occur. The Company only executes swaps under master netting agreements, which typically contain mutual credit downgrade provisions
that generally provide the ability to require assignment or termination
in the event either MBIA or the counterparty is downgraded below a
specified credit rating. If the Company were to settle all transactions
covered under netting agreements as of December 31, 2005, the
amount required to be paid to counterparties would have been reduced
by $173.4 million as a result of its contractual right to offset amounts
due from such counterparties. The Company has chosen not to net
receivables due from counterparties with payables due to counterparties
in its balance sheet, but instead report these amounts on a gross basis as
assets and liabilities.

Municipal
Services

Corporate

Total

6

In certain cases, the Company also manages credit risk through
collateral agreements that give the Company the right to hold or
the obligation to provide collateral when the current market value
of certain derivative contracts exceeds an exposure threshold. Under
these arrangements, the Company may receive or provide U.S. Treasury
and other highly rated securities or cash to secure counterparties’ exposure to the Company or its exposure to counterparties, respectively.
Such collateral is available to the holder to pay for replacing the counterparty in the event that the counterparty defaults. As of December 31,
2005, no securities or cash were held or placed by the Company under
these agreements.
FINANCIAL STATEMENT IMPACT As of December 31, 2005 and
2004, the Company held derivative assets of $326.9 million and
$288.6 million, respectively, and derivative liabilities of $384.6 million
and $527.5 million, respectively, which are shown separately on the
consolidated balance sheets. The following tables display the amount of
the derivative assets and liabilities by business operations for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
Year ended December 31, 2005

In millions

Derivative assets
Derivative liabilities

Insurance

Investment
Management
Services

Municipal
Services

Corporate

Total

$40.3
$32.1

$250.2
$352.5

$—
$—

$36.4
$ —

$326.9
$384.6

Year ended December 31, 2004

In millions

Derivative assets
Derivative liabilities

Insurance

Investment
Management
Services

Municipal
Services

Corporate

Total

$39.8
$25.3

$191.9
$501.9

$—
$0.3

$56.9
$ —

$288.6
$527.5

The income statement impact for all derivative transactions for
2005 was an after-tax increase in net income of $77.9 million. The
impact of all derivative transactions for 2004 and 2003 was an after-tax
increase in net income of $32.1 million and $95.5 million, respectively.
The income statement impact of derivative activity is broken down into
revenues, net realized gains (losses), net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange and expenses. Interest and fee
income, including premiums received on insured derivatives, and inter-

est and fee expense on derivatives are recorded within revenues and
expenses. For derivatives that have been designated as qualifying
hedges, income and expense are recorded as an adjustment to those of
the hedged items. The following tables display the impact described
above on the 2005, 2004 and 2003 income statements by business
operation of all derivative transactions.
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Year ended December 31, 2005

In millions

Revenues*
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange:
Credit derivatives
Ineffectiveness on hedges
Economic hedges
Total revenues
Expenses*
Income (loss) before income taxes
Tax (provision) benefit
Net income (loss)

Investment
Management
Services

Municipal
Services

Corporate

$ 22.7
(4.5)

$ —
—

$ —
—

$ 95.9
(4.5)

(6.3)
—
—

(0.9)
4.1
41.3

—
—
0.2

—
—
—

(7.2)
4.1
41.5

66.9
(8.6)

62.7
—

0.2
(0.1)

—
(1.2)

129.8
(9.9)

58.3
(20.4)

62.7
(22.0)

0.1
—

(1.2)
0.4

119.9
(42.0)

$ 0.1

$(0.8)

Insurance

$ 73.2
—

$ 37.9

$ 40.7

Total

$ 77.9

Year ended December 31, 2004

In millions

Revenues*
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange:
Credit derivatives
Ineffectiveness on hedges
Economic hedges
Total revenues
Expenses*
Income (loss) before income taxes
Tax (provision) benefit
Net income (loss)

Insurance

Investment
Management
Services

Municipal
Services

Corporate

$ —
—

$ —
—

$ 62.9
(0.8)

Total

$ 68.9
—

$ (6.0)
(0.8)

6.6
—
—

1.9
(10.5)
(1.1)

—
—
(0.3)

—
—
—

8.5
(10.5)
(1.4)

75.5
(8.0)

(16.5)
—

(0.3)
(0.2)

—
(1.2)

58.7
(9.4)

67.5
(23.6)

(16.5)
5.8

(0.5)
0.2

(1.2)
0.4

49.3
(17.2)

$(10.7)

$(0.3)

$(0.8)

$ 43.9

$ 32.1

Year ended December 31, 2003

In millions

Revenues*
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange:
Credit derivatives
Ineffectiveness on hedges
Economic hedges

Insurance

Investment
Management
Services

Municipal
Services

Corporate

Total

$ 51.0
—

$ 5.5
0.7

$ —
—

$ 0.8
—

$ 57.3
0.7

104.0
—
—

8.1
(7.4)
(9.7)

—
—
—

—
—
—

112.1
(7.4)
(9.7)

Total revenues
Expenses*

155.0
(6.0)

(2.8)
—

—
—

0.8
—

153.0
(6.0)

Income (loss) before income taxes
Tax (provision) benefit

149.0
(52.2)

(2.8)
1.0

—
—

0.8
(0.3)

147.0
(51.5)

$ (1.8)

$ —

Net income (loss)

$ 96.8

$ 0.5

$ 95.5

* Includes premiums earned, advisory fees and losses incurred in the insurance operations and interest income and expenses in the investment management services and corporate operations.

At December 31, 2005, the Company reported an accumulated
unrealized gain of $6.0 million (net of tax) in other comprehensive
income related to the fair value of the cash flow hedges compared to a
$3.3 million unrealized gain (net of tax) at December 31, 2004. The
change resulted from a $2.3 million after-tax unrealized gain in the fair
value of the cash flow hedges and the transfer of $.5 million of after-tax
net expense to earnings as a result of scheduled interest payments and
receipts on the cash flow hedges. At December 31, 2005, the maximum
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term of derivative instruments that hedge forecasted transactions was
approximately 13 years.
The fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments is estimated using various valuation models that conform to industry standards. The Company utilizes both vendor-developed and proprietary
models, based on the complexity of transactions. Dealer market quotes
are typically obtained for regularly traded contracts and provide the
best estimate of fair value. However, when reliable dealer market quotes
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are not available, the Company uses a variety of market and portfolio
data relative to the type and structure of contracts. Several of the more
significant types of data that influence the Company’s valuation models
include interest rates, credit quality ratings, credit spreads, default probabilities and diversity scores. This data is obtained from highly recognized sources and is reviewed for reasonableness and applicability to the
Company’s derivative portfolio.
The use of market data requires management to make assumptions on how the fair value of derivative instruments is affected by current market conditions. Therefore, results can significantly differ
between models and due to changes in management assumptions. The
Company has dedicated resources to the development and ongoing
review of its valuation models and has instituted procedures for the
approval and control of data inputs. In addition, regular reviews are
performed to ensure that the Company’s valuation models are appropriate and produce values reflective of the current market environment.
In 2003, the Company added an additional third-party data
source for generic credit spread information used by the Company in
its valuation process to avoid undue reliance on any single data vendor,
as well as to enhance its assessment of fair values. In 2004 and 2005,
there were no significant changes to the valuation process.

NOTE 8: TRANSFERS AND SERVICING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND EXTINGUISHMENTS OF LIABILITIES
The Company enters into securities borrowing and lending contracts in
connection with MBIA’s collateralized investment and repurchase
agreement activities and to invest short-term cash balances or provide
liquidity to the Company’s asset/liability programs. Such contracts are
only transacted with high quality dealer firms. It is the Company’s policy to take possession of securities borrowed under these contracts.
The Company minimizes the credit risk of counterparties to
transactions that might be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations
by monitoring customer credit exposure and collateral value and requiring additional collateral to be deposited with the Company when
deemed necessary.
SFAS 140 requires the Company to reclassify financial assets
pledged as collateral under certain agreements and to report those assets
at fair value as a separate line item on the balance sheet. At December
31, 2005 and 2004, the fair values of financial assets pledged as collateral under securities borrowing contracts were $729 million and $731
million, respectively.

NOTE 9: EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing
income available to common shareholders by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share shows the dilutive effect of all stock options and
other items outstanding during the period that could potentially result
in the issuance of common stock. As of December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003 there were 2,837,793, 2,294,297 and 5,606,205 stock options,
respectively, that were not included in the diluted earnings per share
calculation because they were antidilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and
diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003:
Years ended December 31

In thousands except per share amounts

Income from continuing
operations, net of tax
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations,
net of tax
Net income
Basic weighted-average
shares
Effect of common stock
equivalents
Diluted weighted-average
shares

2005

2004

2003

$712,079

$840,470

$823,248

2,576

2,104

$843,046

$825,352

(1,093)
$710,986

134,098,392 141,861,225 143,449,007
3,122,339

2,938,288

1,531,389

137,220,731 144,799,513 144,980,396

Basic EPS:
Income from continuing
operations
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations

$5.31
(0.01)

0.02

0.01

Net income

$5.30

$5.94

$5.75

Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing
operations
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations

$5.19

$5.80

$5.68

(0.01)

0.02

0.01

Net income

$5.18

$5.82

$5.69

$5.92

$5.74

NOTE 10: STATUTORY ACCOUNTING PRACTICES
The financial statements have been prepared on a GAAP basis, which
differs in certain respects from the statutory accounting practices
prescribed or permitted by the insurance regulatory authorities. Statutory accounting practices differ from GAAP in the following respects:
• upfront premiums are earned on a basis proportionate to the
scheduled periodic maturity of principal and payment of interest
(“debt service”) to the original total principal and interest insured
as opposed to earning in proportion to the expiration of the
related risk;
• acquisition costs are charged to operations as incurred rather than
deferred and amortized as the related premiums are earned;
• fixed-maturity investments are generally reported at amortized cost
rather than fair value;
• a contingency reserve is computed on the basis of statutory requirements, and reserves for losses and LAE are established at present
value for specific insured issues that are identified as currently or
likely to be in default. Under GAAP, reserves are established based
on the Company’s reasonable estimate of the identified and unallocated losses and LAE on the insured obligations it has written;
• changes in net deferred income taxes are recognized as a separate
component of gains and losses in surplus. Under GAAP, changes in
the Company’s net deferred income tax balances are recognized in
net income;
• the Internal Revenue Service permits financial guarantee insurance
companies a deduction for increases to the statutory contingency
reserve resulting in the purchase of tax and loss bonds equal to the
tax benefit derived. Tax and loss bonds purchased are recorded as
admitted assets and credited to surplus. Contingency reserves are
not permitted under GAAP;
55
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• the acquisitions of MBIA Corp. and MBIA Illinois were recorded at
statutory book value. Therefore, no goodwill was recorded. Under
GAAP, goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisitions over
the fair value of the net assets acquired;
• derivative assets and liabilities exclude insurance guarantees, while
under GAAP, guarantees that do not qualify for the financial guarantee scope exception under SFAS 133 are recorded at fair value; and
• certain assets designated as “non-admitted assets” are charged
directly against surplus but are reflected as assets under GAAP.
Consolidated net income of MBIA Corp. determined in accordance with statutory accounting practices for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $633.0 million, $768.5 million and
$669.2 million, respectively.
The following is a reconciliation of consolidated shareholders’
equity presented on a GAAP basis for the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries to statutory capital and surplus for MBIA Corp. and
its subsidiaries:
As of December 31
In thousands

2005

2004

Company’s GAAP shareholders’ equity
Non-insurance segment assets and
liabilities, net
Premium revenue recognition
Deferral of acquisition costs
Investments, including unrealized gains
Contingency reserve
Unallocated loss and LAE reserves
Deferred income tax liabilities, net
Tax and loss bonds
Goodwill
Derivative assets and liabilities
Non-admitted assets
Other items

$ 6,591,644 $ 6,558,797

Statutory capital and surplus

$ 3,800,399 $ 3,280,271

303,525
225,804
(730,541)
(670,765)
(427,111)
(406,035)
(443,776)
(894,834)
(2,768,992) (2,705,147)
344,755
290,460
512,542
619,273
455,824
394,717
(76,938)
(76,938)
(8,289)
(14,506)
(45,671)
(51,038)
93,427
10,483

The NYSID recognizes only statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the State of New York and the NYSID has
adopted the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC)
Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual as a component of the
NYSID’s prescribed or permitted practices.
The NYSID does not allow goodwill to be an admitted asset,
while the NAIC requires goodwill recognition. At December 31, 2005
and 2004, MBIA Corp. has reduced admitted assets by $76.9 million
related to goodwill. The NYSID prescribes discounting of case basis
loss reserves. Incurred losses and LAE include amounts discounted at
5.0% and 4.8% for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The discount for
2005 was $28.1 million and for 2004 was $37.6 million. NYSID prescribed procedure enables MBIA Corp. to account for Channel Reinsurance Ltd. (Channel Re), a Triple-A rated financial guarantee
reinsurance company in which MBIA Corp. holds a 17.4% ownership
interest, as other investments rather than as an affiliate. The NYSID
prescribes the treatment of estimated lease receipts related to a paid loss
as a non-admitted asset, while the NAIC requires these anticipated
receipts to offset loss reserves. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
MBIA Corp. has reduced admitted assets by $22.2 million and $34.4
million, respectively.

NOTE 11: PREMIUMS EARNED FROM REFUNDED AND
CALLED BONDS
When an MBIA-insured issue is retired early, is called by the issuer, or is
in substance paid in advance through a refunding accomplished by
placing U.S. Government securities in escrow, the remaining deferred
premium revenue is earned at that time since there is no longer risk to
the Company. Premiums earned, after reinsurance, include $140.5 million, $143.4 million and $130.4 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, related to refunded and called MBIA-insured bonds.

NOTE 12: INVESTMENTS
The Company’s investment objective is to optimize long-term, aftertax returns while emphasizing the preservation of capital through
maintenance of high quality investments with adequate liquidity. The
Company’s investment policies limit the amount of credit exposure
to any one issuer. The fixed-maturity portfolio is comprised of high
quality (average rating Aa) taxable and tax-exempt investments of
diversified maturities.
The following tables set forth the amortized cost and fair value
of the available-for-sale fixed-maturity and short-term investments
included in the consolidated investment portfolio of the Company as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004:

In thousands

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

As of December 31, 2005
Taxable bonds:
United States
Treasury and
government
agency
$ 557,270 $ 17,232 $ (4,787) $ 569,715
Foreign
governments
621,364 39,677
(2,716)
658,325
Corporate and
other obligations 16,309,834 426,446
(86,219) 16,650,061
Mortgage-backed 2,725,206 10,487
(34,652) 2,701,041
Tax-exempt bonds:
State and
municipal
obligations
5,366,345 216,240
(7,170) 5,575,415
Total

In thousands

$25,580,019 $710,082 $(135,544) $26,154,557
Gross
Amortized Unrealized
Cost
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

As of December 31, 2004
Taxable bonds:
United States
Treasury and
government
agency
$ 690,741 $ 33,876 $
(662) $ 723,955
Foreign
governments
495,736 47,153
(2,292)
540,597
Corporate and
other obligations 13,522,517 517,809
(27,217) 14,013,109
Mortgage-backed 2,426,051 28,357
(8,470) 2,445,938
Tax-exempt bonds:
State and
municipal
obligations
4,786,745 306,463
(840) 5,092,368
Total
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Gross
Amortized Unrealized
Cost
Gains

$21,921,790 $933,658 $ (39,481) $22,815,967
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Fixed-maturity investments carried at fair value of $12.9 million
and $13.8 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
were on deposit with various regulatory authorities to comply with
insurance laws.
A portion of the obligations under investment agreements
require the Company to pledge securities as collateral. As of December
31, 2005 and 2004, the fair value of securities pledged as collateral
with respect to these obligations approximated $4.6 billion and $3.6
billion, respectively.
The following table sets forth the distribution by contractual
maturity of the available-for-sale fixed-maturity and short-term investments at amortized cost and fair value at December 31, 2005. Contractual maturity may differ from expected maturity because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations.
Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Within 1 year
$ 1,457,190
Beyond 1 year but within 5 years
5,418,781
Beyond 5 years but within 10 years
5,769,642
Beyond 10 years but within 15 years 2,663,365
Beyond 15 years but within 20 years 1,425,107
Beyond 20 years
6,065,445
Mortgage-backed
2,780,489

$ 1,457,190
5,421,816
5,880,556
2,828,374
1,529,474
6,280,130
2,757,017

Total fixed-maturity and
short-term investments

$26,154,557

In thousands

$25,580,019

Investments that are held-to-maturity are reported on the Company’s balance sheet at amortized cost. These investments, which relate
to the Company’s Conduit program and consolidated VIEs, primarily
consist of asset-backed securities and loans issued by major national and
international corporations and other structured finance clients. The following table sets forth the distribution of held-to-maturity investments
by contractual maturity at amortized cost and fair value at December
31, 2005.
Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Within 1 year
Beyond 1 year but within 5 years
Beyond 5 years but within 10 years
Beyond 10 years but within 15 years
Beyond 15 years but within 20 years
Beyond 20 years
Mortgage-backed

$
—
3,094,214
834,360
23,333
—
902,022
911,253

$
—
3,072,261
825,466
23,333
—
902,022
911,253

Total held-to-maturity investments

$5,765,182

$5,734,335

In thousands

of the MBIA Insured Investments as of December 31, 2005 are
reflected in the following table. Amounts represent the fair value of
such investments including the benefit of the MBIA guarantee. The
ratings in the table below are the lower underlying rating assigned by
S&P or Moody’s when an underlying rating exists from either rating
service, or when an external underlying rating is not available, the
underlying rating is based on the Company’s best estimate of the rating
of such investment.
Underlying
Ratings Scale
In thousands

Total

Investments
Held-toMaturity

Total

9,716 $ 478,784 $ 213,502
233,642
209,400
432,254
624,185
965,835 1,811,929
285,871 1,291,230 1,998,039

$ 702,002
875,296
3,401,949
3,575,140

Insurance
Portfolio

Aaa
$
Aa
A
Baa
Below investment
grade

Investment
Management
Services
Portfolio

—

262,245

$1,260,461 $3,100,447 $4,455,724

107,047

155,198

$8,816,632

It is MBIA’s policy to obtain an underlying rating from both
Moody’s and S&P for each new Conduit transaction prior to the
execution of such transactions. All transactions currently funded in
the Conduits have an underlying rating of investment grade by
Moody’s and S&P prior to funding. The weighted-average underlying
rating for transactions currently funded in the Conduits was A- by
S&P and A3 by Moody’s at the time such transactions were funded.
MBIA estimates that the weighted-average underlying rating of all outstanding Conduit transactions was A- by S&P and A3 by Moody’s as
of December 31, 2005.
The following table sets forth the gross unrealized losses
included in accumulated other comprehensive income as of December
31, 2005 related to available-for-sale fixed-maturity and equity
investments. The table segregates investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months from those that
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months
or longer.

Included in the preceding tables are investments that have been
insured by MBIA Corp. (MBIA Insured Investments). At December
31, 2005, MBIA Insured Investments, at fair value, represented $8.8
billion or 28% of the total portfolio, of which $4.5 billion or 14%
relate to Conduit investments. Without giving effect to the MBIA
guarantee of the MBIA Insured Investments, the underlying ratings
(those given to an investment without the benefit of MBIA’s guarantee)
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In thousands
Description of Securities

United States Treasury and government agency
Foreign governments
Corporate and other obligations
Mortgage-backed
State and municipal obligations
Total debt securities
Equities
Total

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

Less than 12 Months
Fair
Value

12 Months or Longer

Unrealized
Losses

$ 268,059
126,673
4,556,528
1,320,528
889,454

$ (3,986)
(2,716)
(64,841)
(18,993)
(6,648)

7,161,242
—

(97,184)
—

$7,161,242

$(97,184)

Fair
Value

$

36,443
—
1,100,380
658,203
24,698

Total

Unrealized
Losses

$

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

(801)
—
(21,378)
(15,659)
(522)

$ 304,502
126,673
5,656,908
1,978,731
914,152

$

(4,787)
(2,716)
(86,219)
(34,652)
(7,170)

1,819,724
—

(38,360)
—

8,980,966
—

(135,544)
—

$1,819,724

$(38,360)

$8,980,966

$(135,544)

The following table sets forth the gross unrealized losses of the held-to-maturity investments as of December 31, 2005. Held-to-maturity
investments are reported at amortized cost on the Company’s balance sheet. The table segregates investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months from those that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer.
In thousands
Description of Securities

Corporate and other obligations

Less than 12 Months
Fair
Value

$1,161,205

As of December 31, 2005, the Company’s available-for-sale
fixed-maturity, equity and held-to-maturity investment portfolios’ gross
unrealized losses totaled $167.3 million. There were 244 securities that
were in an unrealized loss position for a continuous twelve-month
period or longer. Only two of the 244 securities had unrealized losses in
which their book value exceeded market value by more than 5%. MBIA
determined that the unrealized losses on these two securities were temporary in nature because there was no deterioration of credit quality
spreads or a downgrade to below investment grade by at least one rating
agency. Additionally, the Company has both the ability and intent to
hold these investments until the value recovers to an amount at least
equal to amortized cost or to maturity. See Note 13 for information on
realized losses due to other-than-temporary impairments.

NOTE 13: INVESTMENT INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES
The following table includes total investment income from all operations. Net realized gains (losses) from investment security sales are generated as a result of the ongoing management of the Company’s
investment portfolios. Other investment net realized losses in 2005 of
$5 million were primarily due to other-than-temporary impairment of
an investment in the Company’s other investment portfolio. Other
investment net realized gains in 2004 were largely due to the sale of a
common stock investment the Company purchased in 2002, which
resulted in a $77 million gain. Other net realized losses of $27 million
in 2005 include $19 million of impairment losses on receivables the
Company recorded through salvage and subrogation rights it obtained
as a result of claim payments it previously made on insured credits.
Other net realized gains of $41 million in 2004 resulted from the termination of certain transactions that were accounted for as deposits.
Additionally, in 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recognized net
realized losses of $3 million, $11 million and $4 million, respectively,
due to other-than-temporary impairments of taxable fixed-maturity
investments. In 2003, net realized gains on fixed-maturity investments
were mainly the result of the Company selling securities to shorten the
duration of its fixed-maturity portfolio.
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Unrealized
Losses

$(6,811)

12 Months or Longer
Fair
Value

$1,408,395

Total

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

$(24,974)

$2,569,600

Unrealized
Losses

$(31,785)

Years ended December 31

In thousands

Fixed-maturity
Held-to-maturity
Short-term investments
Other investments
Gross investment income
Investment expenses

2005

2004

2003

$1,082,498 $ 842,213
187,809
127,446
51,260
20,467
35,974
53,915

$746,084
62,616
17,485
13,763

1,357,541
743,257

1,044,041
455,635

839,948
332,546

Net investment income

614,284

588,406

507,402

Net realized gains (losses):
Fixed-maturity
Gains
Losses

68,470
(44,837)

42,382
(56,392)

121,651
(43,656)

23,633

(14,010)

77,995

4,230
(8,856)

81,310
(4,386)

6,786
(4,113)

Net
Other investments
Gains
Losses
Net

(4,626)

76,924

2,673

Other
Gains
Losses

2,618
(29,492)

41,292
—

—
—

Net

(26,874)

41,292

—

(7,867)

104,206

80,668

$ 606,417 $ 692,612

$588,070

Total net realized gains (losses)
Total investment income
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Years ended December 31

Net unrealized gains, including related deferred income taxes,
reported in accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity consisted of:

In thousands

As of December 31

In thousands

2005

Fixed-maturity:
Gains
Losses
Net
Other investments:
Gains
Losses
Net
Total
Deferred income taxes
Unrealized gains, net

2004

$ 710,082
(135,544)

$933,658
(39,481)

574,538

894,177

28,312
—

47,491
(952)

28,312

46,539

602,850
218,323

940,716
327,736

$ 384,527

$612,980

The change in net unrealized gains consisted of:
Years ended December 31

In thousands

Fixed-maturity
Other investments
Total
Deferred income tax
Change in unrealized gains, net

2005

2004

2003

$(319,639)
(18,227)

$ 15,043
(88,864)

$(31,916)
131,500

(337,866)
(109,413)

(73,821)
(26,944)

99,584
34,698

$(228,453)

$(46,877)

$ 64,886

NOTE 14: INCOME TAXES
Income from operations before provision for income taxes consisted of:
Years ended December 31

In thousands

United States
Non-United States
Income from continuing
operations
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations
Gain on sale of discontinued
operations
Income before income taxes

2005

2004

2003

$ 953,243 $1,114,125 $1,121,899
62,705
58,468
41,500
1,015,948
(1,682)
—

1,172,593
(672)
4,722

Current taxes:
Federal
State
Foreign
Deferred taxes:
Federal
Foreign
Provision for income taxes from
continuing operations
Taxes on income/(loss) from
discontinued operations
Taxes on gain from sale of
discontinued operations

—

$1,014,266 $1,176,643 $1,166,743

The Company files a consolidated tax return that includes all of
its U.S. subsidiaries. The effect of income taxes on income and shareholders’ equity is comprised of:

$231,817
734
16,010

2004

$217,457
(106)
1,865

2003

$290,002
1,215
5,219

50,917
4,391

96,274
16,633

39,995
3,720

303,869

332,123

340,151

(589)

(70)

1,240

—

1,544

—

303,280

333,597

341,391

(109,413)

(26,944)

34,698

26,862

4,055

7,127

5,346

3,085

(1,554)

(5,875)

(7,834)

Total income taxes charged
(credited) to shareholders’ equity (84,238)

(23,418)

37,076

Total income taxes charged to
income
Income taxes charged (credited)
to shareholders’ equity:
Unrealized (losses) gains on
investment securities
Change in fair value of
derivative instruments
Change in foreign currency
translation
Exercise of stock options and
vested restricted stock

Total effect of income taxes

(133)

$219,042

$310,179

$378,467

The provision for income taxes gives effect to permanent differences between financial and taxable income. Accordingly, the Company’s effective income tax rate differs from the statutory rate on
ordinary income. The reasons for the Company’s lower effective tax
rates are as follows:
Years ended December 31

1,163,399
3,344

2005

Income taxes computed on
pre-tax financial income at
statutory rates
Increase (reduction) in taxes
resulting from:
Tax-exempt interest
Non-deductible costs
Other
Provision for income taxes

2005

2004

2003

35.0%

35.0%

35.0%

(7.2)
2.3
(0.2)

(5.8)
—
(0.8)

(5.5)
—
(0.2)

29.9%

28.4%

29.3%

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included
in the financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The
effect of a change in tax rates on tax assets and liabilities is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred
tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are presented
in the following table:
As of December 31

In thousands

Deferred tax assets:
Tax and loss bonds
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
Compensation and employee benefits
Other

2005

2004

$ 455,824 $ 394,717
73,265
101,193
61,123
51,027
(1,109)
4,006

Total gross deferred tax assets

594,218

545,828

Deferred tax liabilities:
Contingency reserve
Deferred premium revenue
Deferred acquisition costs
Unrealized gains
Investments

564,149
158,219
149,488
238,881
53,017

502,899
139,526
142,112
321,565
39,353

1,163,754

1,145,455

Total gross deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liability

$ 569,536 $ 599,627

The Company believes that its deferred tax assets will be fully
recognized in future periods and, therefore, has not established a valuation allowance with respect to such assets.
As it is the Company’s practice and intent to permanently reinvest the earnings of MBIA Assurance, S.A. and MBIA UK Insurance
Limited (MBIA UK), no U.S. deferred income taxes have been provided with respect to the undistributed earnings of these entities. The
cumulative amounts of such untaxed earnings were $144.4 million,
$106.0 million and $67.2 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.
On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004
(the Act) was introduced and signed into law. The Act has a provision
which allows for a special one-time dividends received deduction of 85
percent on the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to the U.S. parent, with limitations. The Company has completed its evaluation of the
repatriation provision and has determined this special one-time dividend will not be claimed.

NOTE 15: BUSINESS SEGMENTS
MBIA provides innovative and cost-effective products and services that
meet the credit enhancement, financial and investment needs of its
public- and private-sector clients worldwide. MBIA manages its activities primarily through three principal business operations: insurance,
investment management services and municipal services. The Company has defined reportable segments within its business operations
based on the way management assesses the performance and resource
requirements of such operations.
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The insurance operations constitute a reportable segment and
provide an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee of the payment of
principal and interest on insured obligations when due. MBIA issues
financial guarantees for municipal bonds, asset-backed and mortgagebacked securities, investor-owned utility bonds, bonds backed by
publicly or privately funded public-purpose projects, bonds issued by
sovereign and sub-sovereign entities, obligations collateralized by
diverse pools of corporate loans and credit default swaps and pools
of corporate and asset-backed bonds, both in the new issue and
secondary markets. This segment includes all activities related to
global credit enhancement services provided principally by MBIA
Corp. and its subsidiaries.
The Company’s investment management services operations
provide an array of products and services to the public, not-for-profit
and corporate sectors. Such products and services are provided primarily through wholly owned subsidiaries of MBIA Asset Management,
LLC (MBIA-AML) and include cash management, discretionary asset
management and fund administration services and investment agreement, medium-term note and commercial paper programs related to
funding assets for third-party clients and for investment purposes. The
investment management services operations’ reportable segments are
comprised of: asset/liability products, which include investment agreements and medium-term notes (MTNs) not related to the conduit
program; advisory services, which consist of third-party and relatedparty fee-based asset management; and conduits. During the second
quarter of 2004, the Company completed the sale of the assets of 1838,
the Company’s equity advisory services segment. This segment is
reported as a discontinued operation. See Note 16 for further information related to the Company’s discontinued operations.
The asset/liability products segment is principally comprised of
the activities of MBIA Investment Management Corp. (IMC), MBIA
Global Funding, LLC (GFL) and Euro Asset Acquisition Limited
(EAAL). IMC, along with MBIA Inc., provides customized investment
agreements, guaranteed by MBIA Corp., for bond proceeds and other
public funds for such purposes as construction, loan origination,
escrow and debt service or other reserve fund requirements. It also provides customized products for funds that are invested as part of assetbacked or structured product issuances. GFL raises funds through the
issuance of MTNs with varying maturities, which are in turn guaranteed by MBIA Corp. GFL lends the proceeds of these MTN issuances
to MBIA Inc. and EAAL (GFL Loans). MBIA Inc. and EAAL invest
the proceeds of investment agreements and GFL Loans in eligible
investments, which consist of investment grade securities with a minimum average Double-A credit quality rating. These investments are
pledged to MBIA Corp. as security for its guarantees on investment
agreements and MTNs. MBIA Inc. primarily purchases domestic assets
and EAAL primarily purchases foreign assets as permitted under the
Company’s investment guidelines.
The advisory services segment is primarily comprised of the
operations of MBIA Municipal Investors Service Corporation (MBIAMISC) and MBIA Capital Management Corp. (CMC). MBIA-MISC
provides investment management programs including pooled investments products and customized asset management services. In addition, MBIA-MISC provides portfolio accounting and reporting for
state and local governments including school districts. MBIA-MISC is
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a SEC-registered investment adviser. CMC provides fee-based asset
management services to the Company, its affiliates and third-party
institutional clients. CMC is a SEC-registered investment advisor and
National Association of Securities Dealers member firm.
The Company’s conduit segment administers three multi-seller
conduit financing vehicles, Triple-A, Meridian and Polaris through
MBIA Asset Finance, LLC. The Conduits provide funding for multiple
customers through special purpose vehicles that issue primarily commercial paper and medium-term notes.
The Company’s municipal services operations constitute a
reportable segment and provide revenue enhancement services
and products to public-sector clients nationwide, consisting of discovery, audit, collections/recovery and information services through

MBIA MuniServices Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
Additionally, the municipal services operations include Capital Asset
Holdings GP, Inc. and certain affiliated entities, a servicer of delinquent
tax certificates.
The Company’s corporate operations constitute a reportable segment and include investment income, interest expense and general
expenses that relate to general corporate activities and not to one of the
Company’s three principal business operations.
Reportable segment results are presented net of material intersegment transactions. Transactions between the Company’s segments
are executed at an arm’s length basis, as established by management.
The following table summarizes the Company’s operations for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003:
Year ended December 31, 2005

In thousands

Insurance

Revenues
$ 1,362,834
Net realized gains (losses)
(8,075)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange
(4,436)
(a)

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses
Total expenses

Investment
Management
Services

$

1,350,323
—
294,229
294,229

866,154
1,384

Municipal
Services

Corporate

$24,388
(187)

$ 16,646
(989)

Total

$ 2,270,022
(7,867)

42,558

230

—

38,352

910,096
705,340
74,194

24,431
—
22,316

15,657
90,999
97,481

2,300,507
796,339
488,220

779,534

22,316

188,480

130,562

$ 2,115

$(172,823)

$ 1,015,948

$21,143,754

$25,770

$ 316,309

$34,561,394

Corporate

Total

Net income (loss) before taxes

$ 1,056,094

$

Identifiable assets (b)

$13,075,561

1,284,559

Year ended December 31, 2004

In thousands

Insurance

Revenues
$ 1,365,624
Net realized gains (losses)
108,874
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange
6,627
(a)

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses
Total expenses

Investment
Management
Services

$

Municipal
Services

551,926
(4,120)

$27,593
(81)

(9,670)

(279)

$

8,446
(467)
—

$ 1,953,589
104,206
(3,322)

1,481,125
—
273,474

538,136
413,615
76,912

27,233
—
25,649

7,979
74,651
17,579

2,054,473
488,266
393,614

273,474

490,527

25,649

92,230

881,880

Net income (loss) before taxes

$ 1,207,651

$

47,609

$ 1,584

$ (84,251)

$ 1,172,593

Identifiable assets (b)

$12,446,431

$20,146,474

$29,150

$ 414,240

$33,036,295
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Year ended December 31, 2003

In thousands

Insurance

Revenues
$ 1,270,409
Net realized gains (losses)
48,157
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange
104,030
(a)

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses

$

Municipal
Services

403,990
17,135

$26,814
139

(8,995)

1,422,596
—
256,189

Total expenses

Investment
Management
Services

412,130
302,224
55,005

256,189

$

Corporate

Total

9,000
15,237

$ 1,710,213
80,668

—

—

95,035

26,953
—
25,857

24,237
68,368
14,874

1,885,916
370,592
351,925

357,229

25,857

54,901

$ 1,096

$ (59,005)

$ 1,163,399

$16,640,294

$26,445

$ 481,210

$30,275,712

Net income (loss) before taxes

$ 1,166,407

$

Identifiable assets (b)

$13,127,763

83,242

722,517

(a) Represents

the sum of net premiums earned, net investment income, advisory fees, investment management fees and other fees.
(b) At December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no assets associated with the Company’s discontinued operations. Identifiable assets relating to the Company’s discontinued operations were
$25.0 million at December 31, 2003.

The following table summarizes the segments within the investment management services operations for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003:
Year ended December 31, 2005

Asset/
Liability
Products

Advisory
Services

Conduits

Revenues
$
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange

622,722
1,383

$56,760
1

$ 203,323
—

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses

644,711
527,471
38,753

In thousands
(a)

Total expenses

20,606

(16)

37,150

78,487

$19,595

$

$16,782,346

$62,633

$4,645,771

$

Identifiable assets

$ (16,651)
—

910,096
705,340
74,194

(16,506)
$

(145)

$(346,996)

866,154
1,384
42,558

(16,651)
—
(16,506)

192,666
32,625

$

—

225,291
177,034
15,632

566,224

Net income (loss) before taxes

Eliminations

21,968

56,745
835
36,315

Total
Investment
Management
Services

779,534
$

130,562

$21,143,754

Year ended December 31, 2004

Total
Investment
Management
Services

Asset/
Liability
Products

Advisory
Services

Revenues (a)
$
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange

405,466
(3,750)

$51,013
(370)

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses

393,497
329,790
37,530

50,635
—
34,466

108,637
83,825
18,704

(14,633)
—
(13,788)

538,136
413,615
76,912

367,320

34,466

102,529

(13,788)

490,527

In thousands

Total expenses

(8,219)

Conduits

$ 110,080
—

(8)

$ (14,633)
—

(1,443)

Net income (loss) before taxes

$

26,177

$16,169

$

Identifiable assets

$13,428,870

$53,822

$7,024,024

62

Eliminations

6,108

$

—

$

(845)

$(360,242)

551,926
(4,120)
(9,670)

$

47,609

$20,146,474
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Year ended December 31, 2003

Asset/
Liability
Products

Advisory
Services

Revenues
$
Net realized gains (losses)
Net gains (losses) on derivative
instruments and foreign exchange

354,386
17,135

$52,742
—

Total revenues
Interest expense
Operating expenses

361,848
294,068
29,010

In thousands
(a)

Total expenses

Eliminations

21,134
—

$ (24,272)
—

—

678

52,742
—
35,473

21,812
15,776
4,984

323,078

35,473

38,770

$17,269

$

$10,029,664

$29,170

$6,949,714

Net income (loss) before taxes

$

Identifiable assets
(a) Represents

(9,673)

$

Conduits

$

—

412,130
302,224
55,005

(22,082)
$

403,990
17,135
(8,995)

(24,272)
(7,620)
(14,462)

20,760
1,052

Total
Investment
Management
Services

357,229

(2,190)

$

$(368,254)

54,901

$16,640,294

the sum of interest income, investment management services fees and other fees.

An increasingly significant portion of premiums reported within
the insurance segment is generated outside the U.S. The following table
summarizes net premiums earned by geographic location of risk for
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.
Years ended December 31

In millions

2005

2004

2003

Total premiums earned:
United States
Non-United States

$620
223

$637
213

$615
158

Total

$843

$850

$773

NOTE 16: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
In May 2004, the Company completed the sale of the assets of 1838, a
full service equity-focused asset management firm, to the management
of 1838 together with an investor group led by Orca Bay Partners,
which resulted in a $3.2 million after-tax gain. The sale of 1838
resulted from the Company’s decision to exit the equity advisory market and focus on fixed-income asset management. 1838 comprised the
equity advisory services segment of the Company’s investment management services operations.
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were a loss of $1.1
million, $0.6 million and income of $2.1 million, respectively. In 2005,
expenses of $1.1 million, net of tax, were incurred to terminate an operating lease. The following table reports the amounts included in
income/(loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes:

Years ended December 31

In thousands

2005

2004

2003

Revenues
Expenses

$

—
1,682

$5,494
6,166

$18,665
15,321

Income/(loss) before income taxes

$(1,682)

$ (672)

$ 3,344

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no assets associated
with the Company’s discontinued operations. Identifiable assets at
December 31, 2003 were $25.0 million. The identifiable assets in 2003
primarily consisted of cash, goodwill, property and equipment and
other miscellaneous assets.

NOTE 17: DIVIDENDS AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
Under New York State insurance law, without prior approval of the
superintendent of the state insurance department, financial guarantee
insurance companies can pay dividends from earned surplus subject to
retaining a minimum capital requirement. In MBIA Corp.’s case, regular dividends in any twelve-month period cannot be greater than 10%
of policyholders’ surplus as shown on MBIA Corp.’s latest filed statutory financial statements. In 2005 and 2004, MBIA Corp. declared and
paid regular dividends of $95 million and $372 million, respectively, to
MBIA Inc.
In addition to its regular dividends, in the fourth quarter of
2004 MBIA Corp. declared and paid a special dividend of $375 million
to MBIA Inc., which was approved by the NYSID. MBIA Corp.’s capital position, relative to its insured exposure, had improved substantially
over the past several years as a result of improved premium rates and a
higher quality insured portfolio, exceeding both the capital required by
New York State insurance law and the rating agencies for purposes of
maintaining its Triple-A ratings. The proceeds have been used primarily
for share repurchases, general liquidity and other corporate purposes.
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NYSID and certain other statutory insurance regulatory authorities in and outside the U.S., and the agencies that rate the bonds
insured by MBIA Corp. and its subsidiaries, have various requirements
relating to the maintenance of certain minimum ratios of statutory capital and reserves to net insurance in force. MBIA Corp. and its subsidiaries were in compliance with these requirements as of December
31, 2005 and 2004.

NOTE 18: STOCK REPURCHASES
In August 1999, the Company announced that its board of directors
had authorized the repurchase of 11.25 million shares of common stock
of the Company, after adjusting for the 2001 stock split. The Company
began the repurchase program in the fourth quarter of 1999. In July
2004, the Company completed the repurchase of all 11.25 million
shares and received authorization from its board of directors to repurchase 1 million shares under a new repurchase program. On August 5,
2004, the Company’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of an
additional 14 million shares of common stock in connection with the
new repurchase program.
During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company purchased 5.9 million, 5.8 million and 1.9 million shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of $341.5 million, $328.9 million and $79.9 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had repurchased
a total of 21.3 million shares under these plans at an average price of
$50.28 per share. The Company will only repurchase shares under this
program when it is economically attractive and within rating agency
constraints, including the Triple-A claims-paying ratings of MBIA
Corp. Share repurchases increase the Company’s treasury stock, which
is carried at cost as a component of stockholders’ equity.
During 2005, 474,148 shares were purchased by the Company
for settling awards under the Company’s long-term incentive plans.

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

NOTE 19: SHORT-TERM DEBT, LONG-TERM DEBT AND
OTHER BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS
The Company’s short-term debt consists of floating rate certificates
issued as part of Tender Option Bond (TOB) trades. A TOB trade is a
repackaging of municipal bonds, effectively providing MBIA with
leveraged securitized financing of long-term bonds at short-term taxexempt rates. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, floating rate certificates
related to the TOB trades included in short-term debt totaled $58.7
million. The aggregate weighted-average interest rate as of December
31, 2005 and 2004 was 3.55% and 1.43%, respectively. Assets supporting these certificates are included in the Company’s available-for-sale
fixed-maturity investment portfolio.
The Company’s long-term debt consists of notes and debentures
listed in the following table by maturity date:
As of December 31

In thousands

5.180% Notes due 2008*
7.560% Notes due 2010
9.375% Notes due 2011
6.400% Senior Notes due 2022**
7.000% Debentures due 2025
7.150% Debentures due 2027
6.625% Debentures due 2028
5.700% Senior Notes due 2034***
8.000% Public Income Notes
due 2040****
Less unamortized discount
Plus unamortized premium
Total

2005

$

4,550
132,782
100,000
299,391
75,000
100,000
150,000
350,000

2004

$

5,550
153,900
100,000
299,411
75,000
100,000
150,000
350,000

—

100,000

1,211,723

1,333,861

1,767
449

1,861
540

$1,210,405

$1,332,540

* Bears interest at three-month LIBOR plus a fixed spread. The interest rate in effect as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 was 5.180% and 3.170%, respectively.
** Callable 8/2006 at 100.00
*** Callable at any time at the greater of 100.00 or the present value of the remaining
scheduled payments of principal and interest.
**** Called 12/2005 at 100.00

The Company’s long-term debt is subject to certain covenants,
none of which significantly restricts the Company’s operating activities
or dividend-paying ability.
In December 2005, the Company called and redeemed its $100
million outstanding 8% Public Income Notes Securities (PINES) due
on December 15, 2040. The PINES were redeemed at a price equal to
one hundred percent of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon to the date of redemption.
In November 2004, the Company completed a $350 million
debt offering of 30-year senior notes, which carry a coupon rate of
5.7%. These notes are redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole
or in part, at any time prior to maturity. Part of the proceeds from this
offering were used to redeem the Company’s $50 million 6.95% Senior
Quarterly Income Debt Securities (Senior QUIDS) due November 1,
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2038, in December 2004. The Senior QUIDS were redeemed at a price
equal to one hundred percent of the principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds were used to redeem the $100 million 8% PINES in
December 2005 and for general corporate purposes.
In connection with the 7.56% Notes due 2010, MBIA entered
into a swap transaction that met the criteria for cash flow hedge

accounting. The swap transaction converts the interest rate from a fixed
Swiss franc debt rate of 4.5% to a fixed U.S. dollar rate of 7.56% and
converts the Swiss franc principal amount due at maturity to a fixed
U.S. dollar amount of approximately $99.3 million.
The aggregate maturity of long-term debt obligations, excluding
accrued interest and premiums or discounts, as of December 31, 2005
for each of the next five years and thereafter commencing in 2006 was:

In thousands

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

After
2010

Total

Long-term debt obligations due

$—

$—

$4,550

$—

$132,782

$1,074,391

$1,211,723

MBIA Corp. has a limited recourse standby line of credit facility
in the amount of $450 million, reduced from $700 million at December 31, 2004, with a group of major Triple-A rated banks to provide
funds for the payment of claims in excess of the greater of $500 million
of cumulative claims, net of recoveries, or 5% of average annual debt
service with respect to public finance transactions. The agreement is for
a ten-year term, amended from a seven-year term, which expires in
March 2015.
MBIA Corp. has access to $400 million of Money Market Committed Preferred Custodial Trust securities (CPCT securities) issued by
eight trusts, which were created for the primary purpose of issuing
CPCT securities and investing the proceeds in high quality commercial
paper or short-term U.S. Government obligations. MBIA Corp. has a
put option to sell to the trusts the perpetual preferred stock of MBIA
Corp. If MBIA Corp. exercises its put option, the trusts will transfer the
proceeds to MBIA Corp. in exchange for the preferred stock. The trusts
will hold the preferred stock and distribute the preferred dividend to
their holders. MBIA Corp. has the right to redeem the preferred shares,
and then put the preferred stock back to the trust again, indefinitely.
Any preferred stock issued by MBIA Corp. would be non-cumulative
unless MBIA Corp. pays dividends on its common stock, during which
time the dividends on its preferred stock would be cumulative. Preferred stockholders would have rights that are subordinated to insurance claims, as well as to general unsecured creditors, but senior to any
common stockholders of MBIA Corp.
The trusts are vehicles for providing capital support to MBIA
Corp. by allowing it to obtain immediate access to new capital at
its sole discretion at any time through the exercise of the put options.
S&P and Moody’s rate the trusts AA and Aa2, respectively. To date,
MBIA Corp. has not exercised its put options under any of these
arrangements.
As a part of MBIA’s external borrowing capacity, it maintained
two bank lines totaling $500 million as of December 31, 2004. These
bank lines were maintained with a group of highly rated global banks
and were comprised of a renewable $167 million facility with a term of

364 days and a $333 million facility with a five-year term maturing in
April 2009. In April 2005, the $167 million facility expired on its
stated expiration date and the $333 million facility was increased to
$500 million and the term was extended one year to April 2010. The
facility contains certain covenants including, among others, that the
consolidated net worth of MBIA Inc. and MBIA Corp. will not fall
below $2.8 billion and that the ratio of consolidated debt to equity for
MBIA Inc. and MBIA Corp. will not exceed 30%, at any time. During
2005, there were no balances outstanding under the facility.
The Company has $19.8 million of outstanding letters of credit
for MBIA-MISC that are intended to support the net asset value of
certain investment pools managed by MBIA-MISC. These letters of
credit can be drawn upon in the event that the liquidation of such
assets is required and the proceeds are less than the cost. In addition,
the Company has issued commitments to three pooled investment
programs managed or administered by MBIA-MISC and its subsidiary.
These commitments cover losses in such programs should the net
asset values per share decline below specified per share values. At
December 31, 2005, the maximum amount of future payments that
the Company would be required to make under these commitments
was $2.7 billion. These commitments shall be in effect so long as
MBIA-MISC and its subsidiary remain as manager or administrator
and each program remains in compliance with its respective investment
objectives and policies.

NOTE 20: INVESTMENT AGREEMENT, COMMERCIAL PAPER
AND MEDIUM-TERM NOTE OBLIGATIONS
Obligations under investment agreement contracts are recorded as liabilities on the Company’s balance sheet based upon proceeds received
plus unpaid accrued interest at the balance sheet date. Upon the occurrence of certain contractually agreed-upon events, some of these funds
may be withdrawn prior to their expected withdrawal dates by the
investor. Investment agreements have been issued with either fixed or
floating interest rates. As of December 31, 2005, the annual interest
rates on these agreements ranged from 0.61% to 7.93% and the
weighted-average interest rate was 4.11%. As of December 31, 2004,
the annual interest rates on these agreements ranged from 0.61% to
8.02% and the weighted-average interest rate was 3.49%. Principal
payments due under these investment agreements in each of the next
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five years ending December 31 and thereafter, based upon expected
withdrawal dates, are as follows:
In thousands

Principal Amount*

Expected withdrawal date:
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter

$ 2,886,507
1,610,932
676,024
796,779
1,353,809
4,109,998

Total

$11,434,049

* Foreign currency denominated investment agreements are presented in U.S. dollars.
Amounts reflect principal due at maturity for investment agreements issued at a discount.

IMC also provides agreements obligating it to purchase designated securities in a bond reserve fund at par value upon the occurrence
of certain contractually agreed-upon events. The opportunities and
risks in these agreements are analogous to those of investment agreements. The total par value of securities subject to these agreements was
$19.1 million at December 31, 2005.
Under private placement offerings, Triple-A issues commercial
paper with maturities of up to 270 days. Outstanding commercial
paper obligations, net of unamortized discount, at December 31, 2005
were $860 million and at December 31, 2004 were $2.6 billion. As of
December 31, 2005, commercial paper outstanding had original issue
maturities ranging from January 3, 2006 to March 22, 2006, interest
rates ranging from 4.21% to 4.52% and a weighted-average interest
rate of 4.35%. As of December 31, 2004, commercial paper outstanding had original issue maturities ranging from January 3, 2005 to
March 30, 2005, interest rates ranging from 2.09% to 2.55% and a
weighted-average interest rate of 2.34%. Triple-A enters into 364-day
or shorter term credit facilities with multiple independent third-party
credit support providers as a source of liquidity in the event of a commercial paper market disruption.
Medium-term note obligations are recorded as liabilities on the
Company’s balance sheet based upon proceeds received, net of unamortized discounts and premiums, plus unpaid accrued interest at the balance sheet date. Medium-term notes are issued by GFL as part of
MBIA’s asset/liability products and by Meridian, Triple-A and Polaris as
part of MBIA’s conduit program. In 2005, GFL issued 2.3 billion of
U.S. dollar and 250.0 million of Euro-denominated medium-term
notes. Medium-term notes have been issued with either fixed or floating interest rates. As of December 31, 2005, the annual interest rates of
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the medium-term notes ranged from 2.80% to 5.89% and the
weighted-average interest rate was 5.24%. As of December 31, 2004,
the annual interest rates of the medium-term notes ranged from 0.09%
to 5.98% and the weighted-average interest rate was 3.09%. Principal
payments due under medium-term note obligations based on their contractual maturity dates are as follows:
In thousands

Principal Amount*

Maturity date:
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter

$2,124,406
1,752,615
744,801
619,328
452,044
2,899,616

Total

$8,592,810

* Foreign currency denominated medium-term notes are presented in U.S. dollars.
Amounts reflect the principal due at maturity for notes issued at a discount or premium.

NOTE 21: NET INSURANCE IN FORCE
MBIA Corp. guarantees the timely payment of principal and interest
on municipal, asset-/mortgage-backed and other non-municipal securities. MBIA Corp.’s ultimate exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the insured is represented by the net insurance in force
in the tables that follow.
The insurance policies issued by MBIA Corp. are unconditional
commitments to guarantee timely payment on insured obligations to
holders of the insured obligations. The creditworthiness of each insured
issue is evaluated prior to the issuance of insurance, and each insured
issue must comply with MBIA Corp.’s underwriting guidelines. Further, the payments to be made by the issuer on the bonds or notes may
be backed by a pledge of revenues, reserve funds, letters of credit,
investment contracts or collateral in the form of mortgages or other
assets. The right to such funds or collateral would typically become
MBIA Corp.’s upon the payment of a claim by MBIA Corp.
MBIA Corp. maintains underwriting guidelines based on those
aspects of credit quality that it deems important for each category of
obligation considered for insurance. For global public finance transactions these include economic and social trends, debt and financial management, adequacy of anticipated cash flow, satisfactory legal structure
and other security provisions, viable tax and economic bases, adequacy
of loss coverage and project feasibility. For global structured finance
transactions, MBIA Corp.’s underwriting guidelines, analysis and due
diligence focus on seller/servicer credit and operational quality. MBIA
also analyzes the quality of asset pools, as well as their historical and
projected performance. The strength of a structure, including legal segregation of the assets, cash flow analysis, the size and source of first loss
protection, asset performance triggers and financial covenants are also
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reviewed. Such guidelines are subject to periodic review by management, which is responsible for establishing the criteria for the Company’s underwriting standards as well as maintaining the standards in
its insurance operations.
As of December 31, 2005, insurance in force, net of cessions to
reinsurers and other reimbursement agreements, had an expected
maturity range of 1-51 years. Other reimbursement agreements that
have been netted from the Company’s insurance in force as reported
below relate to contracts under which the Company is entitled to reimbursement of losses on its insured portfolio but which do not qualify as
reinsurance under GAAP. These agreements resulted in deductions of
$11.2 billion and $14.1 billion for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
distribution of net insurance in force by geographic location, excluding
$15.7 billion and $12.7 billion relating to transactions guaranteed by
MBIA Corp. on behalf of various investment management services’
affiliated companies in 2005 and 2004, respectively, is set forth in the
following table:
As of December 31

2005
In billions
Geographic Location

California
New York
Florida
Texas
Illinois
New Jersey
Massachusetts
Pennsylvania
Washington
Michigan

Net
Insurance
In Force

$115.4
64.5
42.8
36.2
32.4
31.3
23.6
22.7
20.9
20.5

2004

% of Net
Insurance
In Force

13.0%
7.3
4.8
4.1
3.6
3.5
2.6
2.6
2.4
2.3

Net
Insurance
In Force

$113.6
65.1
40.5
35.4
33.1
31.4
23.2
23.4
20.6
17.7

% of Net
Insurance
In Force

12.9%
7.3
4.5
4.0
3.7
3.5
2.6
2.6
2.3
2.0

Subtotal
Nationally diversified
Other states

410.3
127.4
234.6

46.2
14.3
26.4

404.0
134.7
221.6

45.4
15.1
24.9

Total United States

772.3

86.9

760.3

85.4

Internationally diversified
Country specific

49.5
67.2

5.5
7.6

57.6
72.3

6.5
8.1

Total Non-United States

116.7

13.1

129.9

14.6

$889.0

100.0%

$890.2

100.0%

Total

The net insurance in force by type of bond is set forth in the following table:
As of December 31

2005
In billions
Bond Type

Net
Insurance
In Force

Global Public Finance:
United States
$248.9
General obligation
114.5
Utilities
75.6
Special revenue
58.1
Transportation
52.4
Health care
38.9
Higher education
30.8
Housing
Investor-owned utilities 18.5

2004

% of Net
Insurance
In Force

28.0%
12.9
8.5
6.5
5.9
4.4
3.4
2.1

Net
Insurance
In Force

$236.5
107.9
87.9
55.4
58.0
34.8
29.3
21.8

% of Net
Insurance
In Force

26.7%
12.1
9.9
6.2
6.5
3.9
3.3
2.4

Total United States

637.7

71.7

631.6

71.0

Non-United States
Sovereign
Transportation
Utilities
Investor-owned utilities
Sub-sovereign
Housing
Health care
Higher education

15.2
13.9
8.9
5.2
1.0
0.5
0.4
0.1

1.7
1.6
1.0
0.6
0.1
0.1
0.0
0.0

16.1
14.8
9.1
5.2
1.4
0.5
0.6
0.1

1.7
1.6
1.0
0.6
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.0

Total Non-United
States

45.2

5.1

47.8

5.3

Total Global Public
Finance
682.9

76.8

679.4

76.3

44.3

5.0

47.4

5.3

20.8
9.6
4.3
0.4

2.3
1.1
0.5
0.0

6.6
11.1
7.8
0.8

0.7
1.2
0.9
0.1

19.2
8.3
3.9

2.2
0.9
0.4

17.9
10.3
4.2

2.0
1.2
0.5

22.2
1.6

2.5
0.2

21.1
1.5

2.4
0.2

134.6

15.1

128.7

14.5

37.3

4.2

41.4

4.7

13.1
5.5
0.7

1.5
0.6
0.1

13.2
8.3
1.2

1.5
0.9
0.1

7.6
5.0
2.3

0.9
0.6
0.2

9.9
5.6
2.5

1.1
0.6
0.3

71.5

8.1

82.1

9.2

Global Structured Finance:
United States
Collateralized debt
obligations
Asset-backed:
Other
Auto
Credit cards
Leasing
Mortgage-backed:
Home equity
Other
First mortgage
Pooled corp. obligations
& other
Financial risk
Total United States
Non-United States
Collateralized debt
obligations
Mortgage-backed:
First mortgage
Other
Home equity
Pooled corp. obligations
& other
Asset-backed
Financial risk
Total Non-United
States
Total Global
Structured
Finance
Total

206.1

23.2

210.8

23.7

$889.0

100.0%

$890.2

100.0%
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The insurance operations have entered into certain guarantees of
derivative contracts, included in the preceding tables, which do not
qualify for the financial guarantee scope exception under SFAS 133.
MBIA Corp. generally guarantees the timely payment of principal and
interest related to these derivatives upon the occurrence of a credit
event with respect to a referenced obligation. The maximum amount of
future payments that MBIA Corp. may be required to make under
these guarantees, should a full credit event occur, is $96.2 billion. This
amount is net of cessions to reinsurance companies of $17.0 billion.
MBIA Corp.’s guarantees of derivative contracts have a legal maximum
maturity range of 1-91 years. A small number of guaranteed credit
derivative contracts have long maturities to satisfy regulatory requirements imposed on MBIA’s counterparties. However, the expected
maturities of such contracts are much shorter due to amortizations and
prepayments in the underlying collateral pools. In accordance with
SFAS 133, the fair values of these guarantees at December 31, 2005 are
recorded on the balance sheet as assets and liabilities, representing gross
gains and losses, of $40.3 million and $32.1 million, respectively. These
derivative contracts are discussed further in Note 7.
MBIA Corp. may hold recourse provisions with third parties in
derivative transactions through both reinsurance and subrogation
rights. MBIA Corp.’s reinsurance arrangements provide that should
MBIA Corp. pay a claim under a guarantee of a derivative contract,
then MBIA Corp. could collect amounts from any reinsurers that have
reinsured the guarantee on either a proportional or non-proportional
basis, depending upon the underlying reinsurance agreement. MBIA
Corp. may also have recourse through subrogation rights whereby if
MBIA Corp. makes a claim payment, it is entitled to any rights of the
insured counterparty, including the right to any assets held as collateral.
MBIA Corp. has also issued guarantees of certain obligations
issued by its investment management affiliates that are not included in
the previous tables. These guarantees take the form of insurance policies
issued by MBIA Corp. on behalf of the investment management affiliates. Should one of these affiliates default on its insured obligations,
MBIA Corp. will be required to pay all scheduled principal and interest
amounts outstanding. As of December 31, 2005, the maximum
amount of future payments that MBIA Corp. could be required to
make under these guarantees, should a full default occur, is $15.7 billion. These guarantees have a maximum maturity range of 1-59 years,
were entered into on an arm’s length basis and are fully collateralized by
marketable securities. MBIA Corp. has both direct recourse provisions
and subrogation rights in these transactions. If MBIA Corp. is required
to make a payment under any of these affiliate guarantees, it would
have the right to seek reimbursement from such affiliate and to liquidate any collateral to recover all or a portion of the amounts paid under
the guarantee.
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NOTE 22: REINSURANCE
MBIA Corp. reinsures exposure to other insurance companies under
various treaty and facultative reinsurance contracts, both on a pro-rata
and non-proportional basis. Additionally, the Company has entered
into other reimbursement agreements under which it is entitled to
reimbursement of losses on its insured portfolio but which do not qualify as reinsurance under GAAP. These reimbursement agreements
totaled $11.2 billion and $14.1 billion at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively, and have been excluded from the tables below. In
the event that any or all of the reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations, MBIA Corp. would be liable for such defaulted amounts.
Amounts deducted from gross insurance in force for reinsurance
ceded by MBIA Corp. and its subsidiaries were $106.7 billion and
$112.8 billion. The distribution of ceded insurance in force by geographic location is set forth in the following table:
As of December 31

2005

In billions
Geographic Location

California
New York
Texas
Massachusetts
Florida
Colorado
Puerto Rico
New Jersey
Illinois
Pennsylvania

Ceded
Insurance
In Force

$

9.5
4.9
3.4
3.3
3.2
2.8
2.7
2.6
2.1
1.6

2004

% of
Ceded
Insurance
In Force

8.9%
4.6
3.2
3.1
3.0
2.6
2.5
2.4
2.0
1.5

Ceded
Insurance
In Force

$ 10.7
4.9
3.7
3.3
3.5
2.8
3.4
3.9
2.3
1.8

% of
Ceded
Insurance
In Force

9.5%
4.4
3.3
2.9
3.1
2.5
3.0
3.4
2.0
1.6

Subtotal
Nationally diversified
Other states

36.1
18.8
17.0

33.8
17.5
16.0

40.3
18.9
17.3

35.7
16.7
15.4

Total United States

71.9

67.3

76.5

67.8

Internationally diversified
Country specific

14.9
19.9

14.0
18.7

13.7
22.6

12.2
20.0

Total Non-United States

34.8

32.7

36.3

32.2

Total

$106.7

100.0%

$112.8

100.0%
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The distribution of ceded insurance in force, excluding
other reimbursement agreements, by type of bond is set forth in the
following table:
As of December 31

2005

In billions
Bond Type

Ceded
Insurance
In Force

Global Public Finance:
United States
$ 13.3
General obligation
9.9
Transportation
9.3
Utilities
8.9
Health care
6.1
Special revenue
1.8
Higher education
1.6
Housing
Investor-owned utilities
1.6

2004

% of
Ceded
Insurance
In Force

12.4%
9.3
8.7
8.4
5.7
1.7
1.5
1.5

Ceded
Insurance
In Force

$ 14.0
11.0
9.9
9.7
7.8
1.7
1.7
2.6

% of
Ceded
Insurance
In Force

12.4%
9.8
8.8
8.6
6.9
1.5
1.5
2.3

Total United States

52.5

49.2

58.4

51.8

Non-United States
Transportation
Sovereign
Utilities
Investor-owned utilities
Sub-sovereign
Health care and other

5.8
3.5
3.4
1.5
0.6
0.2

5.4
3.3
3.2
1.4
0.6
0.2

5.3
4.0
3.7
1.7
1.0
0.2

4.7
3.5
3.3
1.5
0.8
0.2

Total Non-United
States

15.0

14.1

15.9

14.0

Total Global Public
Finance
67.5

63.3

74.3

65.8

Global Structured Finance:
United States
Asset-backed:
Auto
Other
Credit cards
Leasing
Collateralized debt
obligations
Mortgage-backed:
Home equity
Other
First mortgage
Pooled corp. obligations
& other
Financial risk
Total United States
Non-United States
Collateralized debt
obligations
Mortgage-backed:
First mortgage
Other
Home equity
Pooled corp. obligations
& other
Financial risk
Asset-backed
Total Non-United
States
Total Global
Structured
Finance
Total

2.0
1.6
1.0
0.0

1.8
1.5
1.0
0.0

2.8
0.5
1.7
0.1

2.5
0.4
1.5
0.1

6.1

5.7

5.2

4.6

2.3
0.6
0.2

2.1
0.6
0.2

3.2
0.9
0.3

2.8
0.8
0.3

5.5
0.1

5.2
0.0

3.3
0.1

2.9
0.1

19.4

18.1

18.1

16.0

11.0

10.3

9.9

8.8

1.7
1.3
0.2

1.6
1.2
0.2

1.8
1.7
0.3

1.6
1.6
0.3

2.3
2.0
1.3

2.2
1.9
1.2

2.8
2.3
1.6

2.5
2.0
1.4

19.8

18.6

20.4

18.2

39.2
$106.7

36.7
100.0%

38.5
$112.8

Reinsurance enables the Company to cede exposure for purposes
of increasing its capacity to write new business while complying with
its single risk and credit guidelines. The rating agencies continuously
review reinsurers providing coverage to the financial guarantee industry.
When a reinsurer is downgraded, less capital credit is given to a financial guarantee provider under rating agency models. Over the past
several years, many of MBIA’s reinsurers have been downgraded and
others remain under review. Any reduced capital credit associated with
reinsurer downgrades has not and is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company. The Company generally retains the
right to reassume the business ceded to reinsurers under certain circumstances, including rating downgrades of its reinsurers. Additionally,
MBIA requires certain reinsurers to maintain bank letters of credit or
establish trust accounts to cover liabilities ceded to such reinsurers
under reinsurance contracts. As of December 31, 2005, the total
amount available under these letters of credit and trust arrangements
was $593.5 million. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, recoveries received under reinsurance contracts totaled $5.8
million, $17.7 million and $6.4 million, respectively. The following
table shows the percentage ceded to and reinsurance recoverable from
reinsurers by rating levels:

Reinsurers

Standard &
Poor’s
Rating

Percentage Reinsurance
Moody’s
of Total Recoverable
Rating Par Ceded (in thousands)

Channel Reinsurance Ltd. AAA
Aaa
Assured Guaranty Corp.
AAA
Aa1
Ram Reinsurance
Company, Ltd.
AAA
Aa3
Ambac Assurance
Corporation
AAA
Aaa
Mitsui Sumitomo
Insurance Company Ltd.
AAAa3
Swiss Reinsurance
Company, Zurich,
Switzerland
AA
Aa2
Radian Asset Assurance Inc. AA
Aa3
Assured Guaranty Re Ltd.
AA
Aa2
Sompo Japan Insurance Inc. AAAa3
Transatlantic Reinsurance
Company
AAAa3
Other (1)
A or above A1or above
Not Currently Rated
Total
(1) Several

45.19% $ 4,546
17.73
23,947
12.20

4,386

9.40

—

6.36

2

2.81
1.61
0.82
0.81

—
7,838
—
2

0.59
2.40
0.08

1,620
16,347
277

100.00% $58,965
reinsurers within this category are not rated by Moody’s.

While Channel Re continues to be a Triple-A rated reinsurer of
MBIA, S&P has revised their outlook on Channel Re from stable to
negative in 2005. Additionally, MBIA owned an equity interest of
17.4% and 11.4% in Channel Re and RAM Holdings Ltd., the holding company of Ram Reinsurance Company, Ltd., respectively, at
December 31, 2005.
In February 2004, MBIA Corp. and Channel Re entered into
treaty and facultative reinsurance arrangements whereby Channel Re
agreed to provide committed reinsurance capacity to MBIA Corp.
through June 30, 2008 and subject to renewal thereafter. Under these
reinsurance arrangements, MBIA Corp. agreed to cede to Channel Re
and Channel Re agreed to assume from MBIA Corp. varying percentages of designated policies issued by MBIA Corp. The amount of any

34.2
100.0%
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policy subject to the committed reinsurance arrangements is based on
the type of risk insured and on other factors. Additionally, the reinsurance arrangements provide Channel Re with certain preferential terms,
including those related to ceding commissions.

The components of net premiums written and earned, including
premiums assumed from and ceded to other companies, are set forth in
the following table:
Years ended December 31

In thousands

2005

Direct
Assumed
Gross
Ceded

Written

Earned

Written

Earned

$ 972,017
12,891

$ 974,608
19,235

$1,100,234
16,681

$ 971,427
24,780

$1,249,832
18,976

$ 933,448
32,193

$ 857,801

Ceding commissions received from reinsurers, before deferrals
and net of return ceding commissions, were $35.9 million, $37.2 million and $54.9 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 23: LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE RESERVES
Loss and LAE reserves are established in an amount equal to the Company’s estimate of unallocated losses, identified or case basis reserves
and costs of settlement and other loss mitigation expenses on obligations it has insured. See Note 3 for additional information regarding
the Company’s loss reserving policy.
A summary of the unallocated and case basis activity and the
components of the liability for loss and LAE reserves are shown in the
following table:
In thousands

2005

2004

2003

Case basis loss and LAE reserves:
Balance at January 1
$ 434,924
34,610
Less: reinsurance recoverable

$ 387,253
61,402

$330,960
43,815

Net balance at January 1

400,314

325,851

287,145

Case basis transfers from unallocated loss reserve related to:
Current year
Prior years

104,341
84,264

67,976
58,849

13,634
46,175

188,605

126,825

59,809

(2,949)
137,945

2,836
49,526

8,859
12,244

Total
Net paid (recovered) related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total net paid

134,996

52,362

21,103

Net balance at December 31
Plus: reinsurance recoverable

453,923
58,965

400,314
34,610

325,851
61,402

Case basis loss and LAE reserve
balance at December 31

512,888

434,924

387,253

324,578
84,753
(624)
32,063

307,273
77,114
—
—

(126,825)

(59,809)

Unallocated loss reserve:
Balance at January 1
313,945
Losses and LAE incurred
84,274
Channel Re elimination (1)
(1,000)
Reserves related to ASIA Ltd. (2)
—
Transfers to case basis and
LAE reserves
(188,605)
Unallocated loss reserve balance
at December 31
Total
(1)

208,614

313,945

324,578

$ 721,502

$ 748,869

$711,831

Represents the amount of losses and LAE incurred that have been eliminated in proportion to MBIA’s ownership interest in Channel Re, which is carried on an equity method
accounting basis.
(2) Represents reserves associated with the assumption of portfolios from ASIA Ltd.
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2003

Earned

984,908
(127,107)

Net

2004

Written

993,843
(151,101)
$ 842,742

1,116,915
(158,831)
$ 958,084

996,207
(146,537)
$ 849,670

1,268,808
(193,889)
$1,074,919

965,641
(192,647)
$ 772,994

Unallocated loss reserves approximated $209 million at December 31, 2005, which represent the Company’s estimate of losses associated with credit deterioration that has occurred in the Company’s
insured portfolio and are available for future case-specific activity. The
Company incurred $84 million of loss and loss adjustment expenses in
2005 based on 12% of scheduled earned premium. Additionally, the
Company had salvage and subrogation of $143 million and $154 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, included in
“Other assets.”

NOTE 24: PENSION AND PROFIT-SHARING PLANS
The Company has a non-contributory, defined contribution pension
plan to which the Company contributes 10% of each eligible
employee’s annual compensation. Annual compensation consists of
base salary, bonus and commissions, as applicable, for determining such
contributions. Pension benefits vest over a five-year period with 60%
vesting after three years and 20% in years four and five. Pension
expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
$9.5 million, $9.7 million and $10.1 million, respectively.
The Company also has a profit-sharing/401(k) plan. The plan is
a voluntary contributory plan that allows eligible employees to defer
compensation for federal income tax purposes under Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Employees may contribute through payroll deductions up to 10% of eligible compensation. The Company matches employee contributions up to the first 5%
of such compensation with MBIA Inc. common stock. The benefit of
the Company’s contributions vests over five years with 60% vesting
after three years and 20% in years four and five. Generally, a participating employee is entitled to distributions from the plan upon termination of employment, retirement, death or disability. Participants who
qualify for distribution may receive a single lump sum, transfer the
assets to another qualified plan or individual retirement account, or
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receive a series of specified installment payments. Company contributions to the profit-sharing/401(k) plan aggregated $4.5 million, $5.3
million and $5.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively.
Amounts relating to the above plans that exceed limitations
established by federal regulations are contributed to a non-qualified
deferred compensation plan. These non-qualified contributions are
included in the above stated pension and profit-sharing/401(k) match
amounts and totaled $2.7 million, $2.9 million and $3.4 million for
the pension plan, and $1.5 million, $1.6 million and $1.7 million for
the profit-sharing/401(k) plan for the years ending December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In addition, the interest credited to
the non-qualified deferred compensation plan totaled $2.6 million,
$2.9 million and $2.2 million for the years ending December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 25: LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS
On May 5, 2005, the Company’s shareholders approved the MBIA Inc.
2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the Omnibus plan). Under the
Omnibus plan, a maximum of 6,000,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock can be used for any type of award including stock
options, performance shares, performance units, restricted stock,
restricted stock units and dividend equivalents. Any shares issued under
the Omnibus plan in connection with stock options shall be counted
against this limit as one share covered by such option. For all awards
other than stock options, any shares issued shall be counted against this
limit as two shares for every share issued.
The stock option component of the Omnibus plan enables key
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to acquire shares of
common stock of the Company or to benefit from appreciation in the
price of the common stock of the Company. The stock option grants,
which may be awarded every year, provide the right to purchase shares
of common stock at the fair value of the stock on the date of the grant.
Options granted will either be Incentive Stock Options (ISOs), where
they qualify under Section 422(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, or
Non-Qualified Stock Options (NQSOs). ISOs and NQSOs are
granted at a price not less than 100% of the fair value, defined as the
closing price on the grant date, of the Company’s common stock.
Options are exercisable as specified at the time of grant depending on
the level of the recipient (generally four or five years) and expire ten
years from the date of grant (or shorter if specified or following termination of employment).
Under the restricted stock component of the Omnibus plan, certain employees are granted restricted shares of the Company’s common
stock. These awards have a restriction period lasting three, four or five
years depending on the type of award, after which time the awards fully
vest. During the vesting period these shares may not be sold. Restricted
stock grants are typically granted from the vice president level up to and
including the chief executive officer. Some of the awards made in 2005
are linked to the growth in book value per share of the Company’s
common stock including certain adjustments (modified book value)

over a three-year period following the grant date. Actual shares issued at
the vesting date will be determined based on the growth in modified
book value. If modified book value grows by 30% or more over the
three year period then 100% of the award will vest. If the growth in
modified book value over the three-year period is lower than 30%, then
the amount of restricted shares issued will be adjusted downward in
proportion to the amount by which actual growth in modified book
value is below 30%.
Following the effective date of the Omnibus plan, no new
options or awards were granted under any of the prior plans authorized
by the shareholders and all shares authorized but unissued were canceled. All options and awards granted under the prior plans and subsequently canceled or expired after the effective date of the Omnibus plan
become available for grant under the Omnibus plan. In 2005, 66,000
options were granted and 98,401 options were canceled or expired. In
2005, 50,421 restricted shares were granted and 51,100 restricted
shares were canceled. This restricted share activity affects the available
share balance for future grants in the Omnibus plan at a two for one
ratio. Therefore, 6,033,759 shares are available for future grants under
the Omnibus plan as of December 31, 2005. In addition, during 2005
prior to the adoption of the Omnibus plan, 750,000 options were
granted from the Company’s 2000 Stock Option Plan and 466,355
restricted shares (net of cancellations) were granted from the Company’s 2002 Restricted Stock Program.
In 2005 and 2004, under all plans in effect, a total of 465,676
and 603,267, respectively, restricted shares (net of cancellations) of the
Company’s common stock were granted to employees and directors of
the Company. The fair value of the shares awarded (net of cancellations) in 2005 and 2004, determined on the grant date, was $27.2 million and $36.6 million, respectively. Restricted shares have been
recorded as a separate component of shareholders’ equity as “Unearned
compensation-restricted stock” on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and have been included in “Stock-based compensation” on
the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity. Unearned compensation is amortized to expense over the
appropriate three- to five-year vesting period (except for a minor portion granted to members of the MBIA Inc. board of directors which is
amortized over a ten-year period). Compensation expense related to the
restricted stock was $18.5 million, $12.1 million and $6.3 million for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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In December 1995, the MBIA Inc. board of directors approved
the “MBIA Long-Term Incentive Program” (the incentive program).
The incentive program has been superceded by the Omnibus plan. The
incentive program included a stock option component and a compensation component linked to the growth in modified book value over a
three-year period following the grant date. Target levels for the incentive program awards were established as a percentage of total salary and
bonus, based upon the recipient’s position. Awards under the incentive
program typically were granted from the vice president level up to and
including the chief executive officer. Actual amounts to be paid are
adjusted upward or downward depending on the growth of modified
book value versus a baseline target, with a minimum growth of 8%
necessary to receive any payment and an 18% growth necessary to
receive the maximum payment. Awards under the incentive program
were divided equally between the two components, with approximately
50% of the award to be given in stock options and approximately 50%
of the award to be paid in cash or shares of Company stock. Payments
are made at the end of each three-year measurement period. During
2005, 2004 and 2003, $8.5 million, $25.1 million and $21.8 million,
respectively, were recorded as an expense related to modified book
value awards.
Effective January 1, 2002 the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123 and the modified prospective
method of adoption under SFAS 148. Under the modified prospective
method of adoption selected by the Company under the provisions of
SFAS 148, employee stock option compensation expense for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $18.6 million,
$16.7 million and $26.4 million, respectively.
The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The number
of significant options granted and the assumptions used for valuing
such option grants during the last three years are shown in the
following table:

Number of options granted
Exercise price
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected option term (in years)

February
2005

February
2004

February
2003

750,000

745,200

1,414,010

$58.84
2.357%
.3311
4.010%
6.55

$64.84
1.766%
.3384
3.700%
7.20

$36.69
2.180%
.3330
3.483%
6.40

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for
use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the
expected stock price volatility.
The following table displays the total number of options granted
during the last three years. The proxy officers represent the five most
highly compensated officers in 2005 and 2003. 2004 represents the
seven most highly compensated officers disclosed in the Company’s
proxy statement.
Number of Options Granted
2005

2004

2003

Proxy officers
Other senior officers

360,000
262,000

352,000
355,000

669,000
262,500

Senior officers
Other employees

622,000
194,000

707,000
350,515

931,500
504,510

Total

816,000

1,057,515

1,436,010

A summary of the Company’s stock option plan as of December
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and changes during the years ending on
those dates, is set forth in the following tables:
2005
Number
of Shares

Weighted-Avg.
Price per
Share

Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Expired or canceled

9,497,018
816,000
528,316
85,144

$45.4433
58.9362
59.4000
53.8047

Outstanding at year-end

9,699,558

$46.7513

Exercisable at year-end
Weighted-average fair value per share
of options granted during the year

5,321,616

$43.3642

Options

$18.3649
2004
Number
of Shares

Weighted-Avg.
Price per
Share

10,123,348
1,057,515
1,453,409
230,436

$42.7479
62.8713
63.3124
46.0938

Outstanding at year-end

9,497,018

$45.4433

Exercisable at year-end
Weighted-average fair value per share
of options granted during the year

5,140,182

$42.8981

Options

Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Expired or canceled

$21.5659
2003

Options

Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Expired or canceled
Outstanding at year-end
Exercisable at year-end
Weighted-average fair value per share
of options granted during the year
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Number
of Shares

Weighted-Avg.
Price per
Share

9,533,766
1,436,010
748,484
97,944

$42.1900
36.8754
52.5683
45.1221

10,123,348

$42.7479

2,976,626

$39.3808
$11.3446
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The following table summarizes information about the plan’s stock options at December 31, 2005:

Number
Outstanding
at 12/31/05

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Life in Years

Outstanding
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable
at 12/31/05

Exercisable
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

$25.92-32.92
$33.96-36.69
$36.72-47.95
$48.35-64.86

906,407
1,271,232
3,903,496
3,618,423

3.78
6.22
3.53
6.89

$32.37
$36.56
$44.39
$56.48

906,407
369,878
3,091,621
953,710

$32.37
$36.23
$44.87
$51.69

Total

9,699,558

5.16

$46.75

5,321,616

$43.36

Range of
Average
Exercise
Price

NOTE 26: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties are defined as the following:
• Affiliates of the Company: An affiliate is a party that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with
the Company. Control is defined as having, either directly or indirectly, the power to direct the management and policies of the Company through ownership, by contract or otherwise.
• Entities for which investments are accounted for using the equity
method by the Company.
• Trusts for the benefit of employees, such as pension and profit-sharing
trusts, that are managed by or under the trusteeship of management.
• Principal owners of the Company defined as owners of record or
known beneficial owners of more than 10 percent of the voting
interests of the Company.
• Management of the Company which includes persons who are
responsible for achieving the objectives of the Company and who
have the authority to establish policies and make decisions by
which those objectives are to be pursued. Management normally
includes members of the board of directors, the chief executive
officer, chief operating officer, vice president in charge of principal
business functions and other persons who perform similar policymaking functions.
• Members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management. This includes family members whom a
principal owner or a member of management might control or
influence or by whom they may be controlled or influenced because
of the family relationship.
• Other parties with which the Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly influence the management or policies of the
other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests.
• Other parties that can significantly influence the management or
policies of the transacting parties or that have an ownership interest
in one of the transacting parties and can significantly influence the
other to the extent that one or more of the transacting parties might
be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests.

From time to time the Company may enter into transactions
with related parties that the Company deems immaterial or which
occur in the normal course of business and are deemed to be transacted
at “arm’s length” by management. Since 1989, MBIA Corp. has executed five surety bonds to guarantee the payment obligations of the
members of the Municipal Bond Insurance Association (the Association), a voluntary unincorporated association of insurers writing
municipal bond and note insurance as agent for the member insurance
companies that had their S&P claims-paying rating downgraded from
Triple-A on their previously issued Association policies. In the event
that they do not meet their Association policy payment obligations,
MBIA Corp. will pay the required amounts directly to the paying
agent. The aggregate outstanding exposure on these surety bonds as of
December 31, 2005 is $340 million.
MBIA Inc., through its subsidiaries, is responsible for providing
investment advisory and certain related administrative services to the
MBIA Capital/Claymore Managed Duration Investment Grade
Municipal Fund and, prior to the sale of 1838, provided such services
to the 1838 Bond-Debenture Trading Fund and the 1838 Investment
Advisors Funds (collectively, the “Funds”). Additionally, MBIA Inc.,
through its subsidiaries, earned investment management, accounting,
administration and service fees related to the Funds, which aggregated
$0.7 million, $0.9 million and $1.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and are included in investment management services revenues in the Company’s income
statement.
The Company owns investments, included in other investments, which are recorded in the Company’s financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. These investments are comprised of
equity interests in limited partnerships and in Channel Re. All material
transactions between MBIA and these entities have been eliminated in
MBIA’s consolidated financial statements. During 2005, premiums
ceded to Channel Re totaled $61.4 million and ceding commissions
received from Channel Re totaled $14.2 million. Note 22 provides
information with respect to the terms of the reinsurance arrangements
between MBIA Corp. and Channel Re.

73

00195_MBIA_Financials.qxp

3/21/06

11:22 AM

Page 74

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MBIA Inc. & Subsidiaries

MBIA Corp. insures municipal bonds held by certain Guaranteed Series of Empire State Municipal Exempt Trusts. One of the cosponsors of these trusts is Lebenthal & Co., Inc., whose chairman
emeritus is James A. Lebenthal. Mr. Lebenthal served as a director of
MBIA during 2004. The Company believes that the terms of these
insurance policies and premiums charged are no less favorable than
those related to similar unit investment trusts.
The Company had no loans outstanding to any executive officers or directors during 2005.

DEFERRED PREMIUM REVENUE The fair value of the Company’s
deferred premium revenue is based on the estimated cost of entering
into a cession of the entire portfolio with third-party reinsurers under
current market conditions.

NOTE 27: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

INVESTMENT AGREEMENTS AND MEDIUM-TERM NOTES The
fair values of investment agreements and medium-term notes are
estimated using discounted cash flow calculations based upon interest
rates currently being offered for similar agreements and notes with
maturities consistent with those remaining for the agreements and
notes being valued.

The estimated fair value amounts of financial instruments shown in the
following table have been determined by the Company using available
market information and widely accepted valuation methodologies.
However, in certain cases considerable judgment was required to interpret market data in order to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the
amount the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The
use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies
may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.
FIXED-MATURITY SECURITIES The fair value of available-for-sale
fixed-maturity securities, including securities pledged as collateral, is
based upon quoted market prices, if available. If a quoted market price
is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for
similar securities.
INVESTMENTS HELD-TO-MATURITY The held-to-maturity
investments are comprised of fixed and floating rate fixed-maturity
securities. The fair value of the fixed rate investments is determined by
calculating the net present value of estimated future cash flows assuming prepayments, defaults and discount rates that the Company
believes market participants would use for similar assets. The carrying
value of the floating rate investments approximates their fair value.
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS Short-term investments are carried
at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
OTHER INVESTMENTS Other investments include the Company’s interest in equity-oriented and equity method investments. The
fair value of these investments is based on quoted market prices,
investee financial statements or cash flow modeling.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ACCRUED INVESTMENT
INCOME, REINSURANCE RECOVERABLE ON UNPAID LOSSES, RECEIVABLE
FOR INVESTMENTS SOLD, SHORT-TERM DEBT AND PAYABLE FOR
INVESTMENTS PURCHASED The carrying amounts of these items are
reasonable estimates of their fair values as they are short-term in nature.
PREPAID REINSURANCE PREMIUMS The fair value of the Company’s prepaid reinsurance premiums is based on the estimated cost of
entering into an assumption of the entire portfolio with third-party
reinsurers under current market conditions.
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LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE RESERVES The carrying
amount is composed of the present value of the expected cash flows for
specifically identified claims combined with an estimate for unidentified claims. Therefore, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of
the fair value of the reserve.

COMMERCIAL PAPER The carrying value of commercial paper
approximates its fair value primarily due to their short-term nature or
variability in interest rates.
VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY FLOATING RATE NOTES Variable
interest entity floating rate notes consist of floating rate securities and
related accrued interest. The carrying values of variable interest entity
notes approximate their fair values due to the term of the applicable
interest rates.
SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE The
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow calculations based
upon interest rates currently being offered for similar agreements.
LONG-TERM DEBT The fair value is estimated based on quoted
market prices for the same or similar securities.
DERIVATIVES The fair value is derived from market information
and appropriate valuation methodologies which reflect the estimated
amounts that the Company would receive or pay to terminate the
transaction at the reporting date.
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As of December 31, 2005

As of December 31, 2004

Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

ASSETS:
Fixed-maturity securities
Investments held-to-maturity
Short-term investments
Other investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Receivable for investments sold
Derivative assets

$24,476,275
5,765,182
1,678,281
234,927
233,046
396,048
407,614
58,965
74,787
326,867

$24,476,275
5,734,335
1,678,281
234,927
233,046
396,048
405,034
58,965
74,787
326,867

$20,410,775
7,540,218
2,405,192
261,865
366,236
312,208
434,968
34,610
67,205
288,564

$20,410,775
7,535,787
2,405,192
261,865
366,236
312,208
407,481
34,610
67,205
288,564

LIABILITIES:
Deferred premium revenue
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
Investment agreements
Commercial paper
Medium-term notes
Variable interest entity floating rate notes
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Payable for investments purchased
Derivative liabilities

$ 3,185,200
721,502
10,806,277
859,997
7,542,416
1,280,160
646,343
58,745
1,210,405
83,369
384,611

$ 3,100,263
721,502
10,996,041
859,997
7,554,408
1,280,160
644,605
58,745
1,251,507
83,369
384,611

$ 3,211,181
748,869
8,678,768
2,598,655
6,943,840
600,505
647,104
58,745
1,332,540
94,609
527,455

$ 3,005,482
748,869
9,162,017
2,598,655
6,930,925
600,505
645,683
58,745
1,345,860
94,609
527,455

In thousands

NOTE 28: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
A summary of selected quarterly income statement information follows:
2005
Restated
First

Restated
Second

Gross premiums written
Net premiums written
Premiums earned
Investment income and realized gains and losses
All other revenues
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income

$282,619
250,493
210,845
128,785
219,675
212,807
0
$212,807

$248,965
217,343
213,385
126,377
192,768
173,674
0
$173,674

$220,970
186,362
204,072
119,779
284,967
142,877
(1,093)
$141,784

$232,354
203,603
214,440
125,695
259,719
182,721
0
$182,721

$984,908
857,801
842,742
500,636
957,129
712,079
(1,093)
$710,986

Basic EPS:*
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

$

1.55
0.00

$

1.30
0.00

$

1.08
(0.01)

$

1.38
0.00

$

5.31
(0.01)

Net income

$

1.55

$

1.30

$

1.07

$

1.38

$

5.30

Diluted EPS:*
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

$

1.52
0.00

$

1.27
0.00

$

1.05
(0.01)

$

1.34
0.00

$

5.19
(0.01)

Net income

$

1.52

$

1.27

$

1.04

$

1.34

$

5.18

In thousands except per share amounts

Third

Fourth

Full Year
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2004
In thousands except per share amounts

First

Second

Third

Fourth

Full Year

Gross premiums written
Net premiums written
Premiums earned
Investment income and realized gains and losses
All other revenues
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income

$204,693
180,000
209,094
168,212
123,955
212,160
29
$212,189

$372,909
332,551
219,154
132,729
159,748
218,230
2,668
$220,898

$255,609
213,320
210,994
119,601
144,297
183,211
0
$183,211

$283,704
232,213
210,428
166,525
189,736
226,869
(121)
$226,748

$1,116,915
958,084
849,670
587,067
617,736
840,470
2,576
$ 843,046

Basic EPS:*
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

$

1.48
0.00

$

1.52
0.02

$

1.30
0.00

$

1.63
0.00

$

5.92
0.02

Net income

$

1.48

$

1.54

$

1.30

$

1.63

$

5.94

Diluted EPS:*
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

$

1.45
0.00

$

1.49
0.02

$

1.27
0.00

$

1.60
0.00

$

5.80
0.02

Net income

$

1.45

$

1.51

$

1.27

$

1.60

$

5.82

* Due to rounding, quarterly per share amounts may not add to the totals for the years.

NOTE 29: CONTINGENCIES
In July 2002, MBIA Corp. filed suit against Royal Indemnity Company
(Royal), in the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware, to enforce insurance policies that Royal issued on certain
vocational student loan transactions that MBIA Corp. insured. To date,
claims in the amount of approximately $352 million have been made
under the Royal policies with respect to loans that have defaulted.
MBIA Corp. expects that there will be additional claims made under
the policies with respect to student loans that may default in the future.
Royal has filed an action seeking a declaration that it is not obligated to
pay on its policies. If Royal does not honor its policies, MBIA Corp.
will be required to make payment on the notes it insured, and will incur
material losses under its policies. In October 2003, the court granted
MBIA Corp.’s motion for summary judgment and ordered Royal to pay
all claims under its policies. Royal appealed the order, and pledged
$389 million of investment grade collateral to MBIA Corp. to secure
the entire amount of the judgment, with interest, and has agreed to
post additional security for future claims and interest. The Federal District Court has ordered Royal to comply with the pledge agreement.
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On October 3, 2005, the Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit
upheld the decision of the United States District Court for the District
of Delaware enforcing the Royal insurance policies and remanded the
case to the District Court for a determination of whether the Royal
policies cover all losses claimed under the policies. In particular, the
Court of Appeals directed the District Court to consider whether the
Royal policies cover losses resulting from the misappropriation rather
than from defaults by students. MBIA Corp. believes that the Royal
policies cover losses even if they result from misappropriations of student payments, but in any event it appears that all or substantially all
of the claims made under the Royal policies relate to defaults by students rather than misappropriation of funds. Therefore, MBIA Corp.
expects Royal to be required to pay all or substantially all of the claims
made under its policies and to be reimbursed for any payments MBIA
Corp. made under its policies. Royal has requested that the case be
reheard en banc.
MBIA Corp. believes that it will prevail in the litigation with
Royal and will have no ultimate loss on these policies, although
there can be no assurance that MBIA Corp. will in fact prevail. If
MBIA Corp. does not prevail in the litigation and Royal does not
make payments on the Royal policies, MBIA Corp. expects to incur
material losses under its policies. MBIA Corp. does not believe, however, that any such losses will have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition.
In November 2004, the Company received identical document
subpoenas from the SEC and the NYAG requesting information with
respect to non-traditional or loss mitigation insurance products developed, offered or sold by the Company to third parties from January 1,
1998 to the present. While the subpoenas did not identify any specific
transaction, subsequent conversations with the SEC and the NYAG
revealed that the investigation included the arrangements entered into
by MBIA Corp. in 1998 in connection with the bankruptcy of the
Delaware Valley Obligated Group, an entity that is part of AHERF.
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On March 9, 2005, the Company received a subpoena from the
U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York (U.S.
Attorney) seeking information related to the agreements it entered into
in connection with the AHERF loss. Thereafter, the Company has
received additional subpoenas, substantively identical to each other,
and additional informal requests, from the SEC and the NYAG for
documents and other information.
On August 19, 2005, the Company received a “Wells Notice”
from the SEC indicating that the staff of the SEC is considering recommending that the SEC bring a civil injunctive action against the Company alleging violations of federal securities laws “arising from MBIA’s
action to retroactively reinsure losses it incurred from the AHERF
bonds MBIA had guaranteed, including, but not limited to, its entering
into excess of loss agreements and quota share agreements with three
separate counterparties.”
On November 8, 2005, the Company announced that it was in
discussions with the SEC, the NYAG and the NYSID regarding potential settlements of their investigations into agreements entered into by
MBIA Corp. in connection with the AHERF matter. In connection
with the potential settlements, the Company announced that it was
restating its financial statements to correct and restate its GAAP and
statutory accounting for 1998 and subsequent years as discussed in
Note 2 included herein. In connection with the proposed settlements,
the Company accrued $75 million for the total amount the Company
estimates, based on discussions to date, it will have to pay in connection
with any settlements.
The Company has been cooperating, and is continuing to cooperate fully with the investigations by the SEC, the NYAG, the NYSID
and the U.S. Attorney. To date, no settlements have been approved by
the regulatory agencies, and no assurance can be given that any settlements will be approved. Any settlements may have additional or different terms.
The Company has been named as a defendant in a consolidated
private securities litigation suit: In re MBIA Inc. Securities Litigation;
(Case No. 05 CV 03514(LLS); S.D.N.Y.) (filed October 3, 2005).
Joseph W. Brown, the Company’s Chairman and former Chief Executive Officer, Gary C. Dunton, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
Nicholas Ferreri, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Neil G. Budnick, a Vice President of the Company and the Company’s former
Chief Financial Officer and Douglas C. Hamilton, the Company’s
Controller were also named as defendants in the suit, as were former
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer David H. Elliott and former
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Julliette
S. Tehrani. The plaintiffs assert claims under Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act), Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, and Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. The lead
plaintiffs act as representatives for a class consisting of purchasers of the
Company’s stock during the period from August 5, 2003 to March 30,
2005 (the Class Period).

The allegations contained in the lawsuit include, among other
things, violations of the federal securities laws arising out of the Company’s allegedly false and misleading statements about its financial condition and the nature of the arrangements entered into by MBIA Corp.
in connection with the AHERF loss. The plaintiffs allege that, as a
result of these misleading statements or omissions, the Company’s stock
traded at artificially inflated prices. These lawsuits seek unspecified
compensatory damages in connection with purchases by members of
the class of the Company’s stock at such allegedly inflated prices during
the Class Period. The Company does not expect the outcome of the private securities litigation to have a material adverse affect on its financial
condition, although the outcome is uncertain and no assurance can be
given that the Company will not suffer a loss.
Certain officers of the Company and certain members of the
Company’s Board of Directors have been named as defendants in a
shareholder derivative action filed on behalf of the Company in the
Supreme Court of New York, Westchester County on November 9,
2005: Robert Purvis, Derivatively on Behalf of Nominal Defendant
MBIA Inc. v. Joseph W. Brown, Neil G. Budnick, C. Edward Chaplin,
David C. Clapp, Clifford D. Corso, Gary C. Dunton, Claire L. Gaudiani,
Daniel P. Kearney, Laurence H. Meyer, Debra J. Perry, John A. Rolls, and
Ruth M. Whaley (Case No. 20099-05). The plaintiff asserts claims for
the benefit of the Company to redress injuries suffered by the Company
as a result of alleged breaches of fiduciary duties by the named defendants in connection with the Company’s accounting for certain transactions, including the AHERF loss. In addition, the plaintiff alleges that
the officer defendants were unjustly enriched as a result of such alleged
breach. The lawsuit seeks disgorgement to the Company of compensation granted to such officers, legal costs and unspecified equitable relief
to remedy defendant’s breaches of fiduciary duties.
There are no other material lawsuits pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is a party.
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Shareholder Information

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
MBIA Inc. common stock is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange
(symbol: MBI). The approximate
number of shareholders of record
of MBIA’s common stock was 948
as of December 31, 2005.
SHARE CLASSES
MBIA only offers common stock
for sale.
VOTING RIGHTS
If you own MBIA stock at the
close of business on March 10,
2006, you are entitled to vote. You
have one vote for each share of
MBIA common stock you own.
ANNUAL MEETING
All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the annual shareholders’ meeting, which will be held
Thursday, May 4, 2006 at MBIA
Inc. in Armonk, New York. A formal notice of the meeting, together
with a proxy statement and proxy
form, will be mailed to all shareholders.

FINANCIAL AND OTHER
INFORMATION
Quarterly earnings, annual reports,
Form 10-K, corporate news and
other company information is
available on MBIA’s Web site:
www.mbia.com. Copies of MBIA’s
corporate financial information can
also be obtained by writing to
Shareholder Information at MBIA
Inc., 113 King Street, Armonk, NY
10504.
MBIA has submitted to the New
York Stock Exchange the certification of its CEO for the prior year
stating that he was not aware of
any violation by MBIA of the New
York Stock Exchange corporate
governance listing standards.
MBIA has filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, as an
exhibit to its most recently filed
Annual Report on Form 10-K, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302
certifications regarding the quality
of MBIA’s public disclosure.
Members of the financial community seeking additional information
about MBIA should contact:
Nicholas Ferreri
Chief Financial Officer
+1-914-765-3010
e-mail: nick.ferreri@mbia.com
Greg Diamond
Director
Equity Investor Relations
+1-914-765-3190
e-mail: greg.diamond@mbia.com

Charles E. Williams
Managing Director
Fixed-Income Investor Relations
+1-914-765-3481
e-mail: charlie.williams@mbia.com
2006 KEY FINANCIAL DATES
Payment of future dividends is
dependent upon results of MBIA’s
operations, financial condition and
other business considerations.
DIVIDEND DECLARATIONS
February 27, 2006
June 8, 2006
September 7, 2006
December 7, 2006
RECORD DATES
March 24, 2006
June 23, 2006
September 22, 2006
December 22, 2006
DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATES
April 17, 2006
July 17, 2006
October 16, 2006
January 16, 2007
TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR AND
DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075
+1-800-468-9716
www.wellsfargo.com/
shareownerservices
AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York

TRADEMARKS
The MBIA logo, MBIA Insurance
Corporation and CLASS are trademarks of MBIA.
ANALYST COVERAGE
The following equity analysts
report on MBIA:
Calyon Securities
Harry Fong
harry.fong@us.calyon.com
Citigroup
Joshua Shanker
joshua.shanker@citigroup.com
Deutsche Bank Securities
Darin Arita
darin.c.arita@db.com
Fox-Pitt, Kelton
Gary Ransom
gransom@foxpitt.com
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods
Geoffrey Dunn
gdunn@kbw.com
Merrill Lynch
Rob Ryan
robert_p_ryan@ml.com
Morgan Stanley
Ken A. Zerbe
ken.zerbe@morganstanley.com
Morningstar
Dreyfus Neenan
dreyfus.neenan@morningstar.com
Piper Jaffray
Michael Grasher
michael.f.grasher@pjc.com
William Blair & Company
Mark Lane
mlane@williamblair.com

COMMON STOCK DATA
Market Price*
High

Low

Close

2005
1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

$0.24
0.28
0.28
0.28

$63.33
61.35
63.23
64.00

$52.10
49.07
54.75
54.15

$52.28
59.31
60.63
60.16

2004
1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

$0.20
0.24
0.24
0.24

$67.34
64.90
59.14
65.21

$58.90
54.30
52.55
53.43

$62.70
57.12
58.12
63.28

* Based on New York Stock Exchange trading data

Published March 17, 2006.
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